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INDEPENDENT AUDITORSOREPORT

The Auditor
State of Hawaii:

Report onthe Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the-typsiness
activities,the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Hawaii as of and for the year ende@8Q2@3, and the
related notes to the financial statemewntsich collectively compse the State of Hawdi basic financial
statementgpage22i 93) as listed in theaccompanyingable of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thas@afis@tements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opingon theserespective financial statements based on our audit. We

did not audit the financial statements of bepartment of Transportatiagh Airports and Harbors

Divisions, which are major enterprise fig) the Water Pollution Control Revolving Futite Drinking

Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, the Emplayaion Health Benefits Trust Fund, which are
nonmajorenterprise funds, and the University of Hawaii, the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development
Corporation, the Hawaii Public Housing Authority, the Hawaii Tourism Authority, thedidaddurricane

Relief Fundthe Hawaii Community Development Authorind tke Hawaii Health Systems
Corporationwhich are discretely presented component units. These financial statements that we did not
audit reflect the following percentages of total assets and program revenues or additions for the indicated
opinion units.

Percent of
Percent of Opinion Ur
Opi ni on Un i TotalsProgram
Opinion Unit Total Assets Revenues/Additions
Governmental Activities - % - %
Business-Type Activities 94% 59%
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 100% 100%

Fiduciary Funds 50% 7%

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Those financial statements listed above were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts includedDeptrement of
Transportatior® Airports andHarbors Divisions, the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund, the
Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, the Empldyrion Health Benefits Trust Fund, the
University of Hawaii, the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation, the Hawlai Pub
Housing Authority, the Hawaii Tourism Authority, the Hawaii Hurricane Relief FtirlHawaii

Community Development Authoritgnd the Hawaii Health Systems Corporatigrbased solely on the
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our auditdardance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Amerdeal the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of the United Statkese standards
requirethat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the respective
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor derssinternal control relevanttotBet at e o f Hawai

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion actheréss of
theSt at e o finterda comtrol.iAGcerdingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by managenzeniyell as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinios.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and theor&pof other auditors, the financial statements referred to
abovepresent fairly, in all material respects, the respectivposgtionor financial position of the
governmental activitieghe businesgype activitiestheaggregateliscretely presentecbmponent units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Hawaii, as3® June
2013 and the respective changes in financial positmal, where applicable, cash flothereof for the
year then ended iaccordancavith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the
discussion and analysis (s 420), Schedule of Revenue and ExpenditdéeBudget and Actual

(pageL6-98 and 108-113), and Schedules of Funding Progress ([ be presented to supplement

the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basiafisiatements, is

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and ahauditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of gyeparinformation

and comparing the information for consistency wi

t |



financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinionfrovide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on thectespfinancial statements that
collectively comprise the State of Hawaibasic financial statemenfhe combining and individual fund
statements and schedu{pagesl06i 109 and117i 123) are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not eequiredpartof the basic financial statements.

The combiningand individual fund statements and schedateshe responsibility of the State of

Hawaii®s managemerand were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial stateme®ugh information halseen subjected to the auditing

procedures applied the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,

including compiling and reconciling such information dikgtb the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America by us and other auditors. dur opinionpased on our audit, the procedures performed as

described above, and the reports of the other auditorspthieining and individual fund statements and
schedulesirefairly statedin all material respectén relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witsovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated January 27,

2014, on our consideration of the StateoHawai i 6 s i nternal contr ol over
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our teistiagnaf control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance witkovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering the State

internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duitte) ¥ <uchy LLF

Honolulu, HI
January 272014



STATE OF HAWAII

A

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

As management of the State of Hawaii (fiS¢at®), we offer readers of the Stéebasic financiestatements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the State for the fiscal year end#al June
2013.

Financial Highlights
Government-Wide Highlights

The assets of the State exceeded its liabilities atIYn20B by $4.8billion (netpositior). Unrestricted net
positionwhich may be used to meet the Sfatengoing obligations to citizens and creditors wasgative
$1.8 billion, an increase of $24.4 million from the previous year pisitionof governmental activitiesnal
businesgype activities decreased by $84nlion and increased by $391million, respectively. The
combined increase to the State was $3@1ltlon from the prior fiscal year.

Fund Highlights

At June3 0 , 2013, t he St at e 6 dcoBonedeendmgiand batamcesBfubh dbdlion; amp o r
increase of $485.&illion from the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, $bidlion, or 73.7%, of total fund

balances was in the General Fund, and the remaining $08d represent amounts in othemfds

designated for specific purposes. The Proprietary Funds reportiohdgtositionat June30, 2013, of

$3.6billion, an increase of $391rhillion during the fiscal year.

Liabilities

The Statebs | iabilities i nil30bikion aninckase of $8G7riliime c ur r
During fiscal 2013, the State issued General Obligation bonds in the amount of $397.0 million to advance
refund $435.1 million of previously issued outstanding General Obligation bonds. In addition, thesB&ate

$444.0 million in General Obligation bonds and $26.0 million in taxable General Obligation bonds for the
purpose of financing or reimbursing the State of Hawaii for the Hawaiian Home Lands Settlement and for
financing capital projects. The State diok issue Revenue Bonds during fiscal 2013.

In accordance with GASB Nd5, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other than Pensioribe State increased the liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensionto $3.1billion, an increase of $5561illion for the fiscalyear ended Juriz0, 2013

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to tiee [&tsite financial statements.

The Statés basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) GoveWideriinancial

statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to basic financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to Hasic financial statements themselves.



STATE OF HAWAII

A

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The GovernmenWide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Statés finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The staément of net positiopresents information on all of the S&atassets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported aspuatition Over time, increases or decreases irposttionmay
serve as a useful indicator of whether the findrmuoaition of the State is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how th&xStegipositionchanged during the

most recent fiscal year. All changes in pesitionare reported as soon as the underlying egistng rise to

the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and unusedacation leave).

Both of the GovernmesiVide financial statements distinguish functions of the State that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental reveriigesr/érnmental activitieg from other functions that are
intended to recover all @ significant portion of their costs through user fees and chdigesiriessype
activitie®). The governmental activities of the State include general government, public safety, conservation
of natural resources, highways, health, welfare, educatittaye@and recreation, urban redevelopment and
housing, economic development and assistance, and interest eerfeondebt. The businesgpe activities of

the State include thDepartment of Transportatidn Airports Division @Airportsd), Department of
Transportatior® Harbors Division fHarbor®), and the Unemployment Compensation Fund, which are
considered to be major funds, while the remaining busityggsactivities are combined into a single

aggregate presentation.

The Governmentide financial staments include not only the State itself (known agirenary

Government), but also the activities of seven legally separate Component Units: the Hawaii Community
Development Authority, the Hawaii Health Systems Corporation, the Hawaii Housing Fimahce a
Development Corporation, the Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund, the Hawaii Public Housing Authority, the
Hawaii Tourism Authority, and the University of Hawaii, comprised of the &ateblic institutions of

higher education, for which the State is finatigiaccountable. Financial information for these Component
Units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the Primary Government itself. The
Component Units issue separate financial statements containing mandgefisentssionrad analysis.

The GovernmenWide financial statements can be foundpaige22i 24 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific adgties or objectives. The State, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finatated legal requirements. All of the funds of
the State can be divided into three categories: (1) Governnfemtds, (2) Proprietary Funds, and (3)
Fiduciary Funds.



STATE OF HAWAII

A

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the GovernmeiWide financial statements. However, unlike the GowggntWide

financial statements, Governmental Funds financial statements focus éemearflows and

outflows of spendable resources, as well as on the balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be wisefevaluating the Stade neasterm financing
requirements.

Because the focus of Governmental Funds is narrower than that of the GoveWithefinancial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for Governmental Funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the Governiaé financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the-temy impact of the Stade neasterm financing
decisions. Both the Governmental Funds balance sheet andvken@ental Funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between Governmental Funds and governmental activities in the Govaffideent
financial statements.

Information is pesented separately in the Governmental Funds balance sheet and in the
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the
General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Npeabst Special Revenue Fund, each of which is
corsidered to be a major fund. Data from the other Governmental Funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor Governmental Funds is
provided in the form of combining financial statements in the Isapgntary information section of

this report.

The State adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. A
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund and each Special Revenue
Fund to demonstratmmpliance with this budget. The budgetary comparison schedule for the

General Fund is located in the required supplementary information and the budgetary comparison
statements for each of the Special Revenue Funds are located in the supplementartyonforma

section of this report.

The basic Governmental Funds financial statements can be found or2pia2fesf this report.
Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds are used to show activities that operate more like those of commercial enterprises.
They are knan as Enterprise Funds because they charge fees for services provided to outsiders.
They are used to report the same functions presented as bigp®astivities in the Government

Wide financial statements. The State uses Enterprise Funds to accdbatdperations of Airports,
Harbors, the Unemployment Compensation Fund, and its other bulipesactivities.
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Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information as the Goverlividatinancial

statements, only in more detail. The Proprietary Fdindscial statements provide separate
information for Airports, Harbors, and the Unemployment Compensation Fund, each of which are
considered to be major funds of the State. Conversely, the other bugpesstivities are combined
into a single, aggrede presentation in the Proprietary Funds financial statements.

The basic Proprietary Funds financial statements can be found or28agasf this report.
Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of paitide the State.
Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the GovernAwlitte financial statements because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the &atwn programs. The accounting used for
Fiduciary Funds is much like that used Ryoprietary Funds.

The basic Fiduciary Funds financial statements can be found or3fafjénis report.
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes to basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understandingf the data provided in the Governmé&fitde and fund financial statements. The notes
to basic financial statements can be found on pége33 of this report.

Other Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanyiag, rihis report presents the combining
financial statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor Governmental and Fiduciary Funds.
These statements are presented immediately following the notes to basic financial statements. The total
columns @ these combining financial statements carry to the applicable fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following financial analysis focuses on the Primary Government (governmental and biygiaess
activities of the State). Sepéedinancial statements for each of the SE@omponent Units, including their
respective manageméntdiscussion and analysis, can be obtained from the Department of Accounting and
General Services.

Netpositionis a useful indicator of a governménfinancial position. For the State, total assets exceed
liabilities by $4.8billion as of June&0, 2013, and ngtositionincreased $307 hillion, or 6.8%, over the

course of this f i s cpositionpfahe gobesnmenialeactiaties deasesiby The net

$84.4million, or 6.3%, and businestype activities had an increase of $39%hiflion, or 12.3%. The
following table was derived from the Governm&iide Statement of NdRosition

A



STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Summary Schedule of NePosition

June30, 2013 and 2012
(Amountsin thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 3,664,426 $ 3,001,480 $ 2,664,900 $ 2,369,460 $ 6,329,326 $ 5,370,940

Capital assets, net 8,929,329 8,833,349 2,533,079 2,473,197 11,462,408 11,306,546
Total assets 12,593,755 11,834,829 5,197,979 4,842,657 17,791,734 16,677,486
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 9,508,549 8,952,869 1,486,514 1,518,782 10,995,063 10,471,651
Other liabilities 1,839,670 1,552,059 144,096 147,983 1,983,766 1,700,042
Total liabilities 11,348,219 10,504,928 1,630,610 1,666,765 12,978,829 12,171,693
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,863,379 2,794,481 1,599,483 1,560,267 4,462,862 4,354,748
Restricted 1,051,548 930,294 1,068,146 966,042 2,119,694 1,896,336
Unrestricted (2,669,391) (2,394,874) 899,740 649,583 (1,769,651) (1,745,291)

Total net position _$ 1,245,536 $ 1,329,901 $ 3,567,369 $ 3,175,892 $ 4,812,905 $ 4,505,793

Analysis of NetPosition

By far, the largest portion of the Stédaetposition($4.5 billion or 92.7%jJeflects its investment in

capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment); lessaaeg delbt used to

acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The State uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although dhe State
investment in its capital assessreported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Stadenetposition($2.1billion or 44.0%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions or enabling legislation on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of negative $1i8llion or negative 36.8% represents unrestrictecoosttion

At Jure 30, 2013 the State is able to report positive balances in two of the categorieofiten
for governmental activities and all three categories for busitypssactivities. The negative balance
of unrestricted ngpositionfor governmental activigs is primarily attributed to the Stéeother
postemployment benefit liability of3$1 billion.

Changes in NePosition
The Statés netpositionincreasedy $307.1million, or 6.8%, duringhe fiscal year endetline30,

2013. Approximately 56% oftre St at eds t ot al r eile@68hesultedfome f r C
grants and contributions (including federal aid). Charges for various goodsmes provided
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16.1% of the tot al revenues. The Stategpsnsesxpense:
were for higher and lower educatiamelfare, healthgeneral governmenandhighways

The following financial information was deed from the Governme+Wide Statement of étivities
and reflects how the Std@tenetpositionchanged during thedcal year

Summary Schedule of Changes in NdRosition
For the Fiscal Years Ended Jun&0,2013 and2012
(Amounts in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 494,647 $ 421,145 $1,154,047 $ 1,149,559 $1,648,694 $ 1,570,704
Operating grants and
contributions 2,589,537 2,370,437 - - 2,589,537 2,370,437
Capital grants and
contributions 96,184 97,322 64,313 85,899 160,497 183,221
General revenues:
Taxes 5,796,549 5,358,622 - - 5,796,549 5,358,622
Investment income and other 25,502 5,347 33,633 4,164 59,135 9,511
Total revenues 9,002,419 8,252,873 1,251,993 1,239,622 10,254,412 9,492,495
Expenses:
General government 531,839 552,788 - - 531,839 552,788
Public safety 451,946 502,002 - - 451,946 502,002
Highways 490,091 516,924 - - 490,091 516,924
Conservation of natural
resources 52,208 96,349 - - 52,208 96,349
Health 813,190 773,288 - - 813,190 773,288
Welfare 2,798,053 2,464,582 - - 2,798,053 2,464,582
Lower education 2,592,125 2,598,444 - - 2,592,125 2,598,444
Higher education 654,611 672,716 - - 654,611 672,716
Other education 20,086 16,753 - - 20,086 16,753
Culture and recreation 94,679 111,628 - - 94,679 111,628
Urban redevelopment and
housing 173,677 23,888 - - 173,677 23,888
Economic development and
assistance 172,602 209,460 - - 172,602 209,460
Interest expense 241,677 243,938 - - 241,677 243,938
Airports - - 366,918 353,541 366,918 353,541
Harbors - - 90,548 84,826 90,548 84,826
Unemployment compensation - - 336,931 468,610 336,931 468,610
Nonmajor proprietary fund - - 66,119 169,166 66,119 169,166
Total expenses 9,086,784 8,782,760 860,516 1,076,143 9,947,300 9,858,903
Change in net position (84,365) (529,887) 391,477 163,479 307,112 (366,408)
Net position T begi 182090 of 1859488 3,175,892 3,012,413 4,505,793 4,872,201
Net position 7 end$ 4245536ar $ 1,329,901 $3,567,369 $ 3,175,892 $4,812,905 $ 4,505,793
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The following charts depict revenues of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:
Program Revenues by Sourc® Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June30, 2013

Capital grants and
contributions

3%

Operating grants
and contributions
81%

Tax Revenues by Sourcé Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June30, 2013

Others
17%
General
Net Income Excise
31% 52%
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Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Analysis of Changes in Nd®osition

The Sates netpositionincreased b$307.1million during the current fiscal year. This is explained
in the governmental and businggpe activities discussion, and is primarily due to decrease in net
positionof governmental activities of $84nillion offset by increases in npbsitionof
Unemployment Compensation Fund of $173illion, Airports of $122.1 million, Harbors of $27.6
million, and Nonmajor Proprietary Funds of $6&iflion.

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities decreased the Statetpositionby $84.4million. The elements of this
decrease are reflected below:

Governmental Activities
(Amounts in thousands)

2013 2012
General revenues:

Taxes $ 5,796,549 $ 5,358,622
Interest and investment income and other 25,502 5,347

Total general revenues 5,822,051 5,363,969

Expenses, net of program revenues:

General government 18,757 38,688
Public safety 407,183 463,945
Highways 313,526 351,757
Conservation of natural resources (16,969) 36,699
Health 582,276 573,125
Welfare 1,097,537 1,003,240
Lower education 2,203,050 2,216,887
Higher education 654,611 672,716
Other education 20,086 16,753
Culture and recreation 91,430 108,859
Urban redevelopment and housing 141,583 (9,402)
Economic development and assistance 151,669 176,651
Interest expense 241,677 243,938

Total governmental activities

expenses, net of program revenues 5,906,416 5,893,856
Decrease in governmental
activities net position $ (84,365) $ (529,887)

Tax revenues treasedy $437.9million, or 8.2%, from the previous fiscal year. The increase was
primarily due to increases in general exceseet of $217.2nillion, in individual and corporate
income taxes of $162.6 million, and in transient accommodations taxes of$itliogs.

-11-
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Interest and investment income increased by $2llbn from the previous year. The increase is
primarily due to lhe increase in the fair market value of the student loan auction rate securities, which

increased $12.Gillion in fiscal year 2013, compared to decreasing $4llfon in fiscal year 2012.

Urban redevelopment and housing net expenses increased $15ib0 onill606% from the previous
year. The increase is primarily attributed to $93iamlof General Obligation bond procedtiat
were released to the Hawaii Public Housing Authority in fiscal year 2013.

Welfare net expenses increased $94.3 million 4¥0.This change is primarily due to increased
general fund expenses for the Stateds share of

-12-



STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

A comparison of the cost of services by function of the 8fajevernmental activities is shown

below, along withthe revenues used to cover the net expenses of the governmental activities. This
format identifies the extent to which each governmental function idigalficing through fees and
intergovernmental aid or draws from the general revenues of the State:

Expenses and Program Revenuds Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June30, 2013

$3,000

$2,500

$2,000

$1,500

$1,000

(in thousands)

$500

$0
General Highways Health Welfare Lower Higher Others
Government Education Education

OExpenses BProgram Revenues
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STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

BusinessType Activities

The following charts depict revenues and expenses of the busypesactivities for the fiscal year:

Program Revenues by Sourceéd BusinessType Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June30, 208

Capital grants
and
contributions
5%

Charges for
services
95%

Expenses and Program Revenud&s BusinessType Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June30, 2013

$600

$500

$400

$300

(In Millions)

$200

$100

$0
Airports Harbors Unemployment Nonmajor Proprietary
Compensation Fund

OExpense BProgram revenues
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STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussi

June 30, 2013

on and Anal ysi s

(AUnauditedo]

Businesgype activities igreased th Statés netpositionby $391.5million in fiscal 2013, compared
to an increase of $163.5 million in fiscal 2012. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

1 Ai r p o rposiieninaneased $122.million compared to an increase of $4mélion in
theprior fiscal year. Charges for current services increased &y 8llion primarily due to
the reinstatement of the rental car customer facility charges which amounted to an increase of
$55.5 million. Also contributing to the increase was a $19.0 milliasiness interruption
insurance settlement relating to events of the SeptemBerQgerating and capital grants
and contributions decreased $18.8 million mainly due to a decrease in federal capital and

federal stimulus grants.

1 Har b o rpasiionincesaised $7.6million in fiscal 2018 compared to an increase of
$38.8million in fiscal 2QL2. Charges for current servicesreased b8.2million offset by
a decrease in capital contributions of $15.2 million and an increase in expenses of $5.7

million.

T The

Unempl oyment

C o mogpit®minsreased $78.1miliomcdndpared oe t

anincrease of 86.0million in the prior fiscal year. The change was primarily due to a
decrease in unemployment benefits paidi81%7million offset by a decrease
unemployment tax revenues of $26.9 million.

T Nonmajor

Pr o p rpositionancreasedbad.mndllds in fisa@lt2013compared to

an increase of & .0million in fiscal 2012 The change was primarily duettee operations of

the EmployeiUnion Hea | t h

Benefits Trust

Fund -funded T F) .

plans decreased $103.8 million while charges for current services decreased by $64.7 million.
Also contributing to the increase was an increase in capital contribution of $13.3 million in
the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.

1T Key el ement s
and2012 are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

o f -type laativitiSstfoa thedfiécal yebrs ended 862013

Program Revenues

(Amounts in thousands)

Operating/Capital Program Revenues
Charges for Services Grants and Contributions Total Expenses Net of Expenses
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Airports $ 431,708 $ 343279 $ 30,619 $ 49,375 $ 462,327 $ 392,654 $ 366,918 $ 353541 $ 95409 $ 39113
Harbors 112,060 103,876 4,115 19,357 116,175 123,233 90,548 84,826 25,627 38,407
Unemployment
Compensation 507,096 533,963 507,096 533,963 336,931 468,610 170,165 65,353
Nonmajor Proprietary
Funds 103,183 168,441 29,579 17,167 132,762 185,608 66,119 169,166 66,643 16,442
Total $1,154,047 $1,149,559 $ 64,313 $ 85,899 $1,218,360 $1,235,458 $ 860,516 $1,076,143 $ 357,844 $ 159,315
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STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

Financial Analysis of the Stateds Individual Fund:

As noted earlierthe State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance withrétetade
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Stateds Gover nmeEmtniows, Funds i s
outflows, and balances of spendable s our ces. Such information is |
financing requirements. In fiscal 2011, the State implemented GASB Statemést, Rond

Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitidhs statement which applies to
governmentafunds, provides new fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based

primarily on the extetthe State is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which

amounts can be spent. The previous reserved and unreserved classifieat®obedn replaced with

restricted, committed, and unassigned. Additional information on fund balance classifications is

found in Note 1.

At the end of the fiscal year, the Statebs Gov
balances of $.9billion. Of this amount$21.9 millionis restricted for specific programs by external
constraints, constitutional provisions or contractual obligations. An additid8al &million has

been committed to specific purposes. An additio@835million has been aggined to specific

purposes by management. The unassigned fund balanc&#a&a&illion at fiscal year end. This

amount includes a deficit of a negative unrestricted fund baland8fSnilli on in the Capital

Projects Fund, which indicates that the fispént or committed more than what was expendable.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the fiscal year, the total fund
balance of the General Fund wds4hillion compared to 807.4 million in fiscal 2012This increas

is mainly attributed to the increase in tax re
Funddecreased $76.5mi | | i on during the fiscal year. This
recording expenditures upon the allotmengeheral obligation bond appropriations expended by
component units and incurring general obligation bond expenditures in excess of cash available. The
deficit caused by the recording of expenditures when funds are allottetiZs/sillion and is

reflectl on the bal ance sheet as fiDue to-Qesmponent
Special Fund and other Nonmajor Governmental Fded®ased 3.6 million andincreased

$46.5million, respectively.

Proprietary Funds

The Statebs Pr apthesame dypeyf informatirs foupd irthe iGovernHidiate

financial statements, but in more detail. At the end of the current fiscal year, Airports had an increase

in netpositionof $122.1million, Harbors had an increase in pesitionof $27.6milli on, the

Unemployment Compensation Fund had an increase jposétonof $173.1million, and the

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds had an increase impasitionof $68.7million. Other factors

concerning the finances of Airports, Harbors, the Unemployment €osagion Fund, and the

Nonmaj or Proprietary Funds have already -been a
type activities.
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STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund revenues were $26iiilion, or 4.86, more than the final budgethd increase

was attributedo higher tax revenues of $161rbllion, which was comprised of increases in
corporateand indvidual net income tax of $167.8 million, tax on premium of insurance companies of
$9.9 million, and public service companies taxe$&P million, offset by lower general excise taxes

of $18.0 million and tobacco taxes of $8.9 million. Other revenues increased $110.9 million, mainly
attributed to drug rebate collections by the Medquest program of S6lHdh.

The difference betweehe final budget and actual expendituoesa budgetary basis was $224.3

million. The large positive variance iregeral governmerdf $124.9 million was mostly due to $81.8
million savings in health premium and retirement payments. Retirement savintieewasult of

reduced employer contributions paid in fiscal 2013 because of overpayments made in prior years.
Savings in health premiums were due to lower premium rates and lower than projected enroliments.
Also contributing to the positive varianaegeneral government was $14.8 milliohappropriations

made to the State Legislature that was carried over to the next fiscal year. Positive variances in health
and welfare resulted from spending restrictions. As in previous fiscal years, the posianeeani

lower education resulted when the Departméiiducation carried over $28.4 milliaf

unencumbered appropriations into the next fiscal year. The Department of Education is allowed by
statute to carry up to 5% of its unencumbered appropriatiéis®. contributing to the positive

variance in lower education was $12.2 million appropriated to the Department of Education that
lapsed because of imposed spending restrictions. The positive variance of $15.5 million in other is
attributed to the approg@tion made for the payment of legislative claims that was carried over to the
next fiscal year.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The Statebs capital ass e-ypeadtdtiesas df g 20¢3er nment a
amounted to $1.5billion (net of accumulated depreciation 8t&billion), an increase of

$155.9million from fiscal 2012 The increase is due to an increase in governmental activities assets

of $477.3million and in businessype assets &170.9million offset by increases iprimary

governmental activities and busindgpe activities accumulated depreciation 88%.3million and
$111.1million, respectively. Major capital improvement projects, which received funding in the

fiscal year ended Jurg®), 2013 included the follaing:

1 $236.0million for various capital improvement projects and repairs and maintenance of
public school facilities throughout the State.

$40.0 million for the design and construction of the new Kapolei Il Elementary School.
$40.7million for airfield improvements at airfields, statewide.

$48.4 million for various capital improvement projects at the Honolulu International Airport.

=A = =2 =

$96.6million for construction of a new access road, land acquisition, and various
construction projects at Kahului Airport.
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STATE OF HAWAII

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

1 $50.2million for improvements to rental car facilitiestatewide.
1 $25.2million for improvements to Kalaeloa Barbers Point Harbor
1 $42.5 million for Kapalama Military Reservation improvements at Honolulu Harbor.
1 $51.0 million for the expansion of the intdand cargo terminal at Hilo Harbor.
1 $141.9 million for various construction, maintenance, and renovation projects at various
University of Hawaii campuses.
1 $32.2 million for various health and safety renovation projects at state community hospitals.
1 $913 million for renovations and improvements to federal and state low income housing
projects.
Addi tional i nf o rcapitatassetsicancba foundhieth 33d thee thaesio financial
statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscgear, the State had total bonded debt outstanding.8tdllion. Of

this amount, $.6 billion comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the State and

$1.8billion (i.e., revenue bonds), is revenue bonded debt that is payable from and seteiseby

the specified revenue sources. A breakdown of

Long-Term Debt
June30,2013 and2012
(Amounts in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligation
bonds $ 5,534,921 $5,475,348 $ 32,934 $ 34,611 $ 5,567,855 $ 5,509,959
Revenue bonds 441,150 468,180 1,326,112 1,370,314 1,767,262 1,838,494
Total $ 5,976,071 $5,943,528 $1,359,046 $1,404,925 $ 7,335,117 $ 7,348,453
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Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (AUnauditedo

June 30, 2013

The St at e-tersn debdetreased by BrBmillion, or 0.2%, during the current fiscal year

The decrease resulted from declining pr-iypeci pal
activities and partially offset by issuances of general obligation bonds (ses Kl and 5 to the basic
financial statements).

As of June 30, 28, t h
Service (Aaz2
the State.

e Statebs underlying gener al oblig
), Standard and Poords Corporation

The State Constitution limithe amount of general obligation bonds that may be issued. As required
by law, the Director of Finance has confirmed that the State was within its legal debt limit. The legal
debt margin at Jung0, 208 was $853.4million.

Additional information on the &tt éolggerm debt can be found indies 4, 5 and 6 to the basic
financial statements.

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB)
The State implemented provisions of GANB. 45 for fiscal year ended Jur®, 2008.

The latest actuarial valuation studies &veompleted as of Jully, 2011 for the Employddnion Health
Benefits Trust Fund (EUTF) and the University of |
unfunded actuarial accruedbidity to be approximately $13Gi | | i on. The afhualkOPEBO S c o m
cost for fiscal 202 was 4..0 hllion and its OPEB contributions were $2.9million, resulting in an increase

in the net OPEB obligation of 2.3 million. The total net OPEB obligation balance at fiscal year end

increased to $9.billion.

In July 2013, Act 268 was signed into law which established the Hawaii EUTF Trust Fund Task Force to
examine further steps to address the unfunded liabilihe law also requirethe State beginning in fiscal
2015 to pay additional amounts towards redg¢ire unfunded liabilityntil fiscal 2019 when 100% of the
annual required contribution must be paid. Commencing fiscal year 2019, geuisaiax revenues will be
used to fundhny difference between the annual required contribution argbimaent mde by the State.

Economic Factors and Next Yeards Budget
The statewide seasonally adjusted unemployment ratédfeember2013 was4.4% while the seasonally
adjusted national unemployment rates w@86,. One year ago, t he Splgmeatbs se

rate stood ab.3% while the seasonally adjusted national unemployment rat&.@%s

InJanuary 2014, the Council of Revenoedsedt he St at ebds Gener al Fund t ax
year 2014 from.1% to 3.3% and kept the revenue grth rate for fiscal year 2015 unchanged at 7.4%

Cumulative general fund tax revenues for the filsmonths of fiscal 204 were $2.Gillion, adecrease of

$18.6million from the same period last fiscal year. General excise and use tax collectiotmsarehiice
largest source of revenue and a good measure of economic giewtdgse®.6%.
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The State is optimistic about the recovery of Haws;:
in the face of numerous uncertainties. Thereftire Governor has imposed a 5% spending restriction on
discretionary operating expenses of Generaldis for all departments and agencies of the Executive Branch

for fiscal year 2014

Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the information provithetthis report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Comptroller, Department of Accounting and General Services, P.O.
Box 119, Honolulu, Hawaii 96810 1 1 9 . Gener al information alout the
website, http://www.hawaii.gov.
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STATE OF HAWAII

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RECEIVABLES:
Taxes
Accounts and
Notes, |l oans,
Federal government
Premium
Ot her &

accrued i

net
Total receivables
INTERNAL BALANCES

DUE FROM COMPONENT UNITS
DUE FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENTS

INVENTORIES:
Developments in progress and dwelling units
Materials and supplies

Total inventories

RESTRICTED ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS:
Prepaid expenses
Bond i ssue
Note receivable
Investments
Other

costs d net

Total other assets

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and land improvements
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Buildings, improvements, and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total capital

TOTAL ASSETS

mortgages,

nterest
and

assets

c

4

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ 194,578 $ 1,124,534 1,319,112 $ 391,280
461,846 117,185 579,031 -
net - 26,620 26,620 198,063
ntributi7p™M38 d net30568 106,311 89,095
119,794 10,294 130,088 2,507
- 67,896 67,896 -
36,363 5,604 41,967 39,024
693,746 258,167 951,913 328,689
1,597 (1,597) - B
305,442 - 305,442 -
- - - 524,420
2,324,388 - 2,324,388 332,021
- - - 24,174
- 228 228 31,938
- 228 228 56,112
- 912,333 912,333 194,456
5,523 6,198 11,721 26,652
138,220 7,329 145,549 1,396
- 336,269 336,269 485,131
- - - 506,263
932 21,439 22,371 25,456
144,675 371,235 515,910 1,044,898
2,232,588 1,794,368 4,026,956 478,971
9,046,606 - 9,046,606 193,414
864,716 415,562 1,280,278 487,429
4,469,612 2,445,452 6,915,064 4,056,199
(7,684,193) (2,122,303) (9,806,496) (2,077,391)
net 8,929,329 2,533,079 11,462,408 3,138,622
$ 12,593,755 $ 5,197,979 17,791,734 $ 6,010,498
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STATE OF HAWAII

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES:

Vouchers and contracts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Due to Component Units

Due to Primary Government

Due to federal government

Unearned revenue

Estimated future costs of land sold

Unamortized bond premium

Premiums payable

Other

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year:
Payable from restricted

Prepaid airport use charge fund
General obligation (GO) bonds payable
Notes, mortgages, and installment contracts payable
Accrued vacation and retirement benefits payable

Revenue bonds payable 0o

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs
Capital lease obligations

Due in more than one year:
Prepaid airport use charge fund
GO bonds payable
Notes, mortgages, and installment contracts payable
Accrued vacation and retirement benefits payable

Revenue bonds payable 0

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs
Capital lease obligations

Premium on bonds payable

Other postemployment benefit liability

Other
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

RESTRICTED FOR:
Capital maintenance projects
Health and welfare
Natural resources
Hawaiian programs
Other purposes
Bond requirements and other

UNRESTRICTED

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 312,579 $ 33,633 $ 346,212 $ 205,405

398,236 68,021 466,257 104,878
524,420 - 524,420 -

- - - 305,442
37,145 - 37,145 -

- 6,671 6,671 61,901

- - - 35,347
496,302 - 496,302 -
- 35,771 35,771 -

70,988 - 70,988 17,233
assets & revenueb3y88hds paysBFIB8e 8 net
- 2,865 2,865 -
430,556 1,758 432,314 -

- - - 1,652

63,290 3,753 67,043 43,573

net 28,425 - 28,425 83,281

39,493 1,003 40,496 8,736

6,092 - 6,092 8,512
- 37,932 37,932 -
5,104,365 31,176 5,135,541 -

- - - 55,365

157,483 8,726 166,209 68,494

net 412,725 1,272,314 1,685,039 916,037

115,645 3,812 119,457 19,701

83,787 - 83,787 18,013

- - - 4,703

3,066,452 68,424 3,134,876 800,342

236 953 1,189 67,767

11,348,219 1,630,610 12,978,829 2,826,382

2,863,379 1,599,483 4,462,862 2,250,671
133,835 - 133,835 -
124,621 - 124,621 -
114,675 - 114,675 -
277,015 - 277,015 -
401,339 - 401,339 -

63 1,068,146 1,068,209 916,129

(2,669,391) 899,740 (1,769,651) 17,316

$ 1,245,536 $ 3,567,369 $ 4,812,905 $ 3,184,116
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STATE OF HAWAII

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component
Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 531,839 $ 267,081 $ 246,001 $ - $  (18,757) $ - $  (18,757)
Public safety 451,946 40,090 4,673 - (407,183) - (407,183)
Highways 490,091 7,856 72,525 96,184 (313,526) - (313,526)
Conservation of natural resources 52,208 29,411 39,766 - 16,969 - 16,969
Health 813,190 56,963 173,951 - (582,276) - (582,276)
Welfare 2,798,053 40,670 1,659,846 - (1,097,537) - (1,097,537)
Lower education 2,592,125 42,606 346,469 - (2,203,050) - (2,203,050)
Higher education 654,611 - - - (654,611) - (654,611)
Other education 20,086 - - - (20,086) - (20,086)
Culture and recreation 94,679 - 3,249 - (91,430) - (91,430)
Urban redevelopment and housing 173,677 4,559 27,535 - (141,583) - (141,583)
Economic development and assistance 172,602 5,411 15,522 - (151,669) - (151,669)
Interest expense 241,677 - - - (241,677) - (241,677)
Total governmental activities 9,086,784 494,647 2,589,537 96,184 (5,906,416) - (5,906,416)
Business-type activities:
Airports 366,918 431,708 - 30,619 - 95,409 95,409
Harbors 90,548 112,060 N 4,115 - 25,627 25,627
Unemployment compensation 336,931 507,096 - - - 170,165 170,165
Nonmajor proprietary funds 66,119 103,183 - 29,579 - 66,643 66,643
Total business-type activities 860,516 1,154,047 - 64,313 - 357,844 357,844
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 9,947,300 $ 1,648,694 $ 2,589,537 $ 160,497 (5,906,416) 357,844 (5,548,572)
COMPONENT UNITS:
University of Hawaii $ 1,648,158 $ 384,387 $ 482,619 $ - $ (781,152)
Hawaii Housing Finance and
Development Corporation 52,770 49,985 12,570 9,785
Hawaii Public Housing Authority 125,850 18,014 72,422 12,466 (22,948)
Hawaii Health Systems Corporation 713,924 550,004 3,055 31,498 (129,367)
Hawaii Tourism Authority 105,672 9,462 - - (96,210)
Hawaii Community Development
Authority 32,272 3,369 - - (28,903)
Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund 5 - - - 5
Total component units $ 2,678,651 $1,015,221 $ 570,666 $ 43,964 1,048,800)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes:
General excise tax 2,991,792 - 2,991,792 -
Net income tax &8 corporations
and individuals 1,795,683 - 1,795,683 -
Public service companies tax 163,930 - 163,930 -
Transient accommodations tax 186,377 - 186,377 104,000
Tobacco and liquor taxes 161,066 - 161,066 -
Liquid fuel tax 87,645 - 87,645 -
Tax on premiums of insurance
companies 133,585 - 133,585 -
Vehicle weight and registration tax 121,605 - 121,605 -
Rental motor/tour vehicle surcharge tax 52,112 - 52,112 -
Franchise tax 22,673 - 22,673 -
Other tax 80,081 - 80,081 -
Interest and investment income 25,502 14,633 40,135 34,154
Payments from the State & net - - - 874,541
Other - 19,000 19,000 39,421
Total general revenues 5,822,051 33,633 5,855,684 1,052,116
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (84,365) 391,477 307,112 3,316
NET POSITION 8 Beginning of year 1,329,901 3,175,892 4,505,793 3,180,800
NET POSITION &8 End of year $ 1,245,536 $ 3,567,369 $ 4,812,905 $ 3,184,116

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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STATE OF HAWAII

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RECEIVABLES:

Taxes

Notes and |l oans

Federal government

Other
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DUE FROM COMPONENT UNITS

INVESTMENTS
OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Vouchers and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Due to federal government
Due to other funds
Due to Component Units
Unearned revenue

Payable from restricted

interest payable

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
76,050 109,506 $ 194,578
461,846 - 461,846
1,440 74,303 75,743
- 16,700 119,794
8,763 - 8,763
120,748 63 120,811
- - 1,597
23,800 - 23,800
1,102,679 1,059,699 2,324,388
932 - 932
1,796,258 1,260,271 $ 3,332,252
105,252 93,659 $ 312,579
250,459 36,489 398,572
- 37,145 37,145
63 20,348 120,811
1,601 - 514,268
13,610 - 13,610

d matured

- 235 235
370,985 187,876 1,397,220
- 21,854 21,854
- 486,240 486,240
271,020 611,882 883,782
1,154,253 (47,581) 543,156
1,425,273 1,072,395 1,935,032
1,796,258 1,260,271 $ 3,332,252
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STATE OF HAWAII

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

TOTAL FUND BALANCE o Government al F un dbs

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:
Land and land improvements
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Buildings, improvements, and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Accrued interest and other payables are not recognized in Governmental Funds

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
are not recognized in governmental funds, such as unearned
revenue and settlement receivables

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation bonds payable
Accrued vacation payable
Revenue bonds payable
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs
Other postemployment benefit liability
Long-term transactions with Component Units
Capital lease obligations

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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1,935,032

2,232,588
9,046,606
864,716
4,469,612
(7,684,193)

8,929,329

(564,033)

463,673

(5,534,921)
(220,773)
(441,150)
(155,138)

(3,066,452)

(10,152)
(89,879)

(9,518,465)

1,245,536




STATE OF HAWAII

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes:
General excise tax
Net income tax & corporations

Public service companies tax

Transient accommodations tax

Tobacco and liquor taxes

Liquid fuel tax

Tax on premiums of insurance companies
Vehicle weight and registration tax

Rental motor/tour vehicle surcharge tax
Franchise tax

Other

Total taxes

Interest and investment income
Charges for current services
Intergovernmental

Rentals

Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Licenses and fees

Revenues from private sources
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways
Conservation of natural resources
Health
Welfare
Lower education
Higher education
Other education
Culture and recreation
Urban redevelopment and housing
Economic development and assistance
Housing
Other

Debt service

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of GO and refunding GO bonds - par
Issuance of of GO and refunding GO bonds - premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing (uses) sources
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES 0 Beginning of year
FUND BALANCES o8 End of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Med-Quest

Capital Special Other Total
General Projects Revenue Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 2,991,792 $ - $ - - $ 2,991,792
i ndlijga4jdadu al s - - - 1,804,409
163,930 - - - 163,930
185,377 - - 1,000 186,377
143,141 - - 17,925 161,066
- - - 87,645 87,645
131,906 - - 1,679 133,585
- - - 121,605 121,605
4,519 - - 47,593 52,112
20,673 - - 2,000 22,673
51,571 - - 28,508 80,079
5,497,318 - - 307,955 5,805,273
12,424 - - 13,078 25,502
122,252 - - 247,017 369,269
13,708 - 914,647 1,444,125 2,372,480
276 - - 28,357 28,633
22,343 - - 14,459 36,802
6,465 - - 40,374 46,839
2,423 - 40,501 61,746 104,670
106,795 - 69,320 59,401 235,516
5,784,004 - 1,024,468 2,216,512 9,024,984
322,464 29,260 - 56,814 408,538
291,855 10,774 - 129,395 432,024
- 170,196 - 248,795 418,991
28,260 4,522 - 59,819 92,601
521,592 50,907 - 207,256 779,755
1,102,912 1,415 1,003,616 665,298 2,773,241
1,741,202 181,007 - 436,554 2,358,763
518,486 136,125 - - 654,611
5,737 - - 14,349 20,086
38,979 24,491 - 44,470 107,940
294 3,038 - 62,911 66,243
25,876 39,459 - 92,133 157,468
19,378 93,236 - - 112,614
23,243 - - 9,473 32,716
- - - 687,649 687,649
4,640,278 744,430 1,003,616 2,714,916 9,103,240
1,143,726 (744,430) 20,852 (498,404) (78,256)
- 470,000 - 396,990 866,990
93,476 - - 106,382 199,858
- - - (503,372) (503,372)
77,451 129,953 8,356 818,157 1,033,917
(696,818) (32,049) (31,761) (273,289) (1,033,917)
(525,891) 567,904 (23,405) 544,868 563,476
617,835 (176,526) (2,553) 46,464 485,220
807,438 (386,990) 3,433 1,025,931 1,449,812
$ 1,425,273 $ (563,516) 880 1,072,395 $ 1,935,032
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STATE OF HAWAII

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

TOTAL NET CHANGE I N FUND BALANCES 0 Go%er 820t

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ARE DIFFERENT BECAUSE:
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds; however,
in the statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period,
these amounts are:
Capital outlay &6 net of disposal s
Depreciation expense

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds; however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the
current period, this is the amount of proceeds received from general obligation
bonds issued.

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in Governmental Funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the
current year, these amounts consist of:

Bond principal retirement
Capital lease payments

Total long-term debt repayment

Revenue timing differences result in greater revenue in the Government-Wide
financial statements.

Bond issue costs in Governmental Funds - reported in the statement
of net position - net of amortization.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
Governmental Funds:

Change in postemployment liability

Change in accrued vacation payable

Change in HHFDC long-term liability

Change in reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs

Total

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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477,260

(388,707)
88,553

(1,066,848)

834,447
5,461

839,908
(18,111)

110,525

(535,482)
(7,990)
5,098

14,762
(523,612)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ (84,365)



STATE OF HAWAII

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted
Receivables:
Taxes

assets

3

Accounts and accrued interest (net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $4,914)

Promissory note receivable (net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $4,287)
Federal government
Premiums
Other
Materials and supplies inventory

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Capital assets:
Land and land improvements
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

Bond issue costs

Promissory note receivable

Restricted assets
Restricted assets
Restricted assets

Other

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

4
4
4

net

Nonmajor Total
Unemployment Proprietary Proprietary
Airports Harbors Compensation Funds Funds

$ 571,172 $ 133,218 $ 193,707 $ 226,437 1,124,534
cash an@B7%hort-t2mB% i nvestments - 102,416
356 - 116,829 - 117,185

16,571 9,302 - 747 26,620

5 - - 30,563 30,568

8,764 936 - 594 10,294

- - - 67,896 67,896

1,416 429 - 3,759 5,604

166 62 - - 228

- 843 - 5,355 6,198

667,207 178,449 310,536 335,351 1,491,543

1,263,925 530,443 - - 1,794,368

377,086 38,476 - - 415,562

1,697,221 435,311 - - 2,132,532

279,874 21,775 - 11,271 312,920

3,618,106 1,026,005 - 11,271 4,655,382
(1,829,500) (286,551) - (6,252) (2,122,303)

1,788,606 739,454 - 5,019 2,533,079

3,926 3,403 - - 7,329

- - - 336,269 336,269

net dir38a2 financing | eases - 30,302
cash amd#f5@ash e ®Bji2iPal ent s - - 682,722
i nvest m¥mBa3s - - - 96,893
8,965 276 - 12,198 21,439

2,383,195 971,352 - 353,486 3,708,033

$ 3,050,402 $ 1,149,801 $ 310,536 $ 688,837 5,199,576

(Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Nonmajor Total
Unemployment Proprietary Proprietary
Airports Harbors Compensation Funds Funds
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Vouchers and contracts payable $ 23,546 $ 9,197 $ 272 $ 618 $ 33,633
Payable from restricted assets 0 contracts payable,
accrued interest, and other 39,910 17,252 - - 57,162
Other accrued liabilities 6,383 - - 1,811 8,194
Due to Primary Government - 1,597 - - 1,597
Benefit claims payable - - - 2,665 2,665
Prepaid airport use charge fund 2,865 - - - 2,865
Unearned revenue 6,671 - - - 6,671
General obligation bonds payable, current portion - 1,758 - - 1,758
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 869 134 - - 1,003
Accrued vacation, current portion 2,986 617 - 150 3,753
Payable from restricted assets 48276 evenu252bonds payabl e - 53,798
Premiums payable - - - 35,771 35,771
Total current liabilities 124,505 43,078 272 41,015 208,870
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
General obligation bonds payable - 31,176 - - 31,176
Accrued vacation 6,604 1,571 - 551 8,726
Revenue bonds payable (net of unamortized bond premium,
bond discount, and loss on refunding) 924,320 347,994 - - 1,272,314
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 3,131 681 - - 3,812
Other postemployment benefit liability 54,344 10,990 - 3,090 68,424
Prepaid airport use charge fund 37,932 - - - 37,932
Other 953 - - - 953
Total long-term liabilities 1,027,284 392,412 - 3,641 1,423,337
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,151,789 435,490 272 44,656 1,632,207
NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 1,077,045 517,419 - 5,019 1,599,483
RESTRICTED FOR BOND REQUIREMENTS AND OTHER 381,987 93,625 - 592,534 1,068,146
UNRESTRICTED 439,581 103,267 310,264 46,628 899,740
NET POSITION $ 1,898,613 $ 714311 $ 310,264 $ 644,181 $ 3,567,369
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Concession fees
Unemployment compensation
Aviation fuel tax
Airport use charges
Rentals
Services and others
Administrative fees

Premium revenue & self insurance
Increase in premium reserves
Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Depreciation and amortization
Repairs and maintenance
Airports operations
Harbors operations
Fireboat operations
General administration
Unemployment compensation
Claims
Other

Total operating expenses
Business interruption insurance recovery
Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest and investment income
Interest expense
Federal grants
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Passenger facility charges
Other

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - Beginning of year

NET POSITION 6 End of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Nonmajor Total
Unemployment Proprietary Proprietary
Airports Harbors Compensation Funds Funds

$ 151,391  $ - - - $ 151,391
- - 507,096 - 507,096
4,674 - - - 4,674
59,874 - - - 59,874
117,600 27,922 - - 145,522
1 82,622 - - 82,623

- . - 9,887 9,887

- . - 50,843 50,843

- - - 39,540 39,540
5,047 2,127 - 2,913 10,087
338,587 112,671 507,096 103,183 1,061,537
136,591 16,158 - 5,537 158,286
92,231 22,751 - 1,469 116,451
32,288 2,462 - 79 34,829
57,217 - - - 57,217

- 18,192 - - 18,192

- 1,492 - - 1,492
17,919 8,896 - 3,948 30,763

- - 336,931 - 336,931

- - - 46,819 46,819

290 - - 53 343
336,536 69,951 336,931 57,905 801,323
19,000 - - - 19,000
21,051 42,720 170,165 45,278 279,214
7,661 1,969 2,949 2,054 14,633
(30,382) (20,592) - - (50,974)
5,039 - - - 5,039

- ®) - - ©®)
35,333 - - - 35,333
57,788 (611) - (8,214) 48,963
75,439 (19,239) 2,949 (6,160) 52,989
96,490 23,481 173,114 39,118 332,203
25,580 4,115 - 29,579 59,274
122,070 27,596 173,114 68,697 391,477
1,776,543 686,715 137,150 575,484 3,175,892
$ 1,898,613 $ 714,311 $ 310,264 $ 644,181 $ 3,567,369
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STATE OF HAWAII

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Nonmajor Total
Unemployment Proprietary Proprietary
Airports Harbors Compensation Funds Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $ 354,191 $ 112,321 - $ - $ 466,512
Cash received from taxes - - 366,943 - 366,943
Cash received from employer and employees for premiums and benefits - - - 487,681 487,681
Cash paid to suppliers (160,057) (27,386) - (4,258) (191,701)
Cash paid to employees (70,486) (13,725) - (4,611) (88,822)
Cash paid for unemployment compensation - - (337,164) - (337,164)
Cash paid for premiums and benefits payable - - - (486,285) (486,285)
Reserves returned by insurance carriers - - - 15,914 15,914
Interest income from notes receivable - - - 2,892 2,892
Administrative loan fees - - - 4,245 4,245
Principal repayments on notes receivable - - - 61,655 61,655
Disbursement of note receivable proceeds - - - (31,852) (31,852)
Other cash receipts - - 113,493 - 113,493
Net cash provided by operating activities 123,648 71,210 143,272 45,381 383,511
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State capital contributions - - - 5,872 5,872
Proceeds from federal operating grants 4,639 - - 23,353 27,992
Disbursements of federal operating grants - - - (2,949) (2,949)
Other - (610) - - (610)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 4,639 (610) - 26,276 30,305
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (72,175) (50,952) - (123,127)
Repayment of general obligation and revenue bonds principal (27,545) (13,718) - - (41,263)
Interest paid on bonds (45,072) (21,171) - - (66,243)
Proceeds from passenger facility charges program 35,579 - - - 35,579
Proceeds from rental car customer facility charges program 50,495 - - - 50,495
Payments from rental car customer facility charges program (17,718) - - - (17,718)
Payments from passenger facility charges program (16,702) - - - (16,702)
Proceeds from federal, state, and capital grants 22,618 9,548 - - 32,166
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (70,520) (76,293) - - (146,813)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (193,786) - - - (193,786)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 193,786 - - - 193,786
Interest from and change in fair value of investments 6,695 1,972 2,949 1,988 13,604
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,695 1,972 2,949 1,988 13,604
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 64,462 (3,721) 146,221 73,645 280,607
CASH AND SHORT-TERM I NVESTMENTS &8 Including
restricted amounts & beginning of thel0pEREC 398,817 47,486 152,792 1,629,065
CASH AND SHORT-TERM I NVESTMENTS &8 Including
restricted amounts 8 end of year $ 1,094,432 $ 395,096 $ 193,707 $ 226,437 $ 1,909,672

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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STATE OF HAWAII

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Depreciation
Other amortization
Bad debt expense
Overpayment of airport use charge to be transferred
to the prepaid airport use charge fund
Premium reserves held by insurance companies
Principal forgiveness of loans
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Receivables
Inventory of materials and supplies
Deposits
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Vouchers and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Prepaid airport use charge fund
Unearned revenue
Benefit Claims Payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental Information

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Amortization of bond discount, bond issue costs, bond
premium, and loss on refunding
Interest payments relating to special facility revenue bonds
Payments to refund airport system revenue bonds

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Nonmajor Total
Unemployment Proprietary Proprietary

Airports Harbors Compensation Funds Funds
$ 21,051 $ 42,720 $170,165 $ 45,278 $ 279,214
- 104 - - 104
92,231 22,614 - 1,469 116,314

- 138 - - 138
580 - - - 580

126 - - - 126
- - - (36,405) (36,405)
- - - (2,000) (1,000)
1,178 (530) (26,660) 31,720 5,708

47 183 - - 230
— — — 11,456 11,456
- - - (101) (101)
543 3,281 (233) (73) 3,518
14,178 2,700 - (2,142) 14,736
(7,445) - - - (7,445)
1,159 - - - 1,159
- - - (4,821) (4,821)
$ 123,648 $ 71,210 $ 143,272 $ 45,381 $ 383,511
$ (3,354) $ (342) $ - $ - $ (3,696)
1,872 - - - 1,872
905 - - - 905
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STATE OF HAWAII

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Agency OPEB
Funds Trust Fund
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 216,683 $ 314,778
RECEI VABLES 0 taxes 39,078 -
INVESTMENTS 395,971 -

OTHER ASSETS 8 primarily due from indivi duaess,

businesses,

TOTAL $ 683,385

$ 314,778

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
VOUCHERS PAYABLE $ 9,714
DUE TO INDIVIDUALS, BUSINESSES, AND COUNTIES 673,671

OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES -

14

TOTAL LIABILITIES 683,385

14

NET POSITION $ -

$ 314,764

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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STATE OF HAWAII

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - OPEB TRUST FUND
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

OPEB
TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS
Employer pre-funding contributions and related net investment earnings $ 314,764
Net increase in net assets 314,764
Beginning fiduciary net position -
Ending fiduciary net position $ 314,764

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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STATE OF HAWAII

COMPONENT UNITS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RECEIVABLES:
Accounts and accrued interest (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $39,798)
Notes, loans, mortgages, and contributions
allowance for doubtful accounts)
Federal government
Other (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2)

DUE FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENTS

INVENTORIES:
Developments in progress and dwelling units
Materials and supplies

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deposits, funded reserves, and other

Total restricted assets

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and land improvements
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Buildings, improvements, and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital
OTHER ASSETS:
Notes, loans, mortgages, and contributions (net of
allowance for doubtful accounts $7,786)
Due from Primary Government

Investments
Other assets

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Hawaii Housing Hawaii Hawaii
Finance and Public Health
University Development Housing Systems
of Hawaii Corporation Authority Corporation
$ 78,704 $ 179,849 $ 65,342 $ 34,308
96,789 16,194 471 84,029
15,266 73,829 - -

- - 2,507 -

- 2,568 953 31,744

329 7,000 97,990 63,397
298,841 1,024 - 7,071

- 24,174 - -

12,288 - 973 18,677
24,013 417 2,108 -
526,230 305,055 170,344 239,226

- 68,492 - 3,191

- 111,431 - -

- 533 - -

- 180,456 - 3,191
137,052 43,290 25,340 6,535
149,100 - - -
397,825 - 27,423 56,418

2,489,985 158,524 578,847 593,273

(1,146,842) (110,073) (332,999) (315,935)

assets & n@g027,120 91,741 298,611 340,291
24,637 435,363 8,131 -
337,674 10,152 - -
468,120 6,709 - -

23,591 1,396 - 1,483

854,022 453,620 8,131 1,483

$ 3,407,372 $ 1,030,872 $ 477,086 $ 584,191
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Hawaii

Hawaii Community Hawaii Total
Tourism Development Hurricane Component
Authority Authority Relief Fund Units

$ 12,610 $ 20,023 $ 444 $ 391,280
- 497 83 198,063

- - - 89,095

- - - 2,507
1,110 2,649 - 39,024

- 7,878 - 176,594
4,499 - 20,586 332,021

- - - 24,174

- - - 31,938
107 7 - 26,652
18,326 31,054 21,113 1,311,348
10,809 - - 82,492

- - - 111,431

- - - 533
10,809 - - 194,456
131,497 135,257 - 478,971
- 44,314 - 193,414
2,114 3,649 - 487,429
215,813 19,757 - 4,056,199
(118,924) (52,618) - (2,077,391)
230,500 150,359 - 3,138,622
- 17,000 - 485,131

- - - 347,826
31,434 - - 506,263

- 382 - 26,852
31,434 17,382 - 1,366,072
$ 291,069 $ 198,795 $ 21,113 $ 6,010,498

(Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

COMPONENT UNITS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Vouchers and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Due to Primary Government
Unearned revenue
Estimated future costs of land sold
Notes, mortgages, and installment contracts payable
Accrued vacation and retirement benefits payable
Revenue bonds payable &8 net
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs
Capital lease obligations
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes, mortgages, and installment contracts payable
Accrued vacation and retirement benefits payable
Revenue bonds payable 6 net
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs
Premium on bonds payable
Capital lease obligations
Due to Primary Government
Other postemployment benefit liability
Other liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL

NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
RESTRICTED

UNRESTRICTED (DEFICIT)

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Hawaii Housing Hawaii Hawaii
Finance and Public Health
University Development Housing Systems
of Hawaii Corporation Authority Corporation
$ 76,431 $ 901 $ 5,809 $ 115,723
90,037 10,817 3,775 -
6,000 - - 2,000
38,497 22,871 480 -

- 35,347 - -

- 63 - 1,589
27,208 - - 16,143
14,740 68,541 - -

5,421 - - 3,315

- - - 8,512

11,420 1,909 880 1,750
269,754 140,449 10,944 149,032
16,500 5,517 - 33,348
43,550 - - 24,199
593,930 322,107 - -
9,277 — - 10,424
4,703 - - -
- - - 18,013
555 - - 15,800
514,364 3,231 12,415 267,115
17,014 291 1,509 23,229
1,199,893 331,146 13,924 392,128
1,469,647 471,595 24,868 541,160
1,492,599 25,035 298,610 287,829
733,922 163,714 3,851 349
(288,796) 370,528 149,757 (245,147)
$ 1,937,725 $ 559,277 $ 452,218 $ 43,031




Hawaii Hawaii
Hawaii Community Hurricane Total
Tourism Development Relief Component

Authority Authority Fund Units
$ 4,662 $ 1,560 $ 319 $ 205,405
105 144 - 104,878
19,782 - - 27,782
- 53 - 61,901
- - - 35,347
- - - 1,652
124 98 - 43,573
- - - 83,281
- - - 8,736
- - - 8,512
- 1,274 - 17,233
24,673 3,129 319 598,300
- - - 55,365
352 393 - 68,494
- - - 916,037
- - - 19,701
- - - 4,703
- - - 18,013
261,301 4 - 277,660
1,824 1,393 - 800,342
- 25,724 - 67,767
263,477 27,514 - 2,228,082
288,150 30,643 319 2,826,382
(3,760) 150,358 - 2,250,671
6,679 7,614 - 916,129
- 10,180 20,794 17,316
$ 2,919 $ 168,152 $ 20,794 $ 3,184,116

(Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

COMPONENT UNITS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Hawaii
Housing Hawaii Hawaii
Finance and Public Health
University Development Housing Systems
of Hawaii Corporation Authority Corporation
EXPENSES $ 1,648,158 $ 52,770 $ 125,850 $ 713,924
PROGRAM REVENUES:
Charges for services 384,387 49,985 18,014 550,004
Operating grants and contributions 482,619 12,570 72,422 3,055
Capital grants and contributions - - 12,466 31,498
Total program revenues 867,006 62,555 102,902 584,557
Net program revenues (expenses) (781,152) 9,785 (22,948) (129,367)
GENERAL REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest and investment income (loss) 32,206 1,200 - 309
Transient accommodations tax - - - -
Payments from (to) the State 675,155 5,000 100,824 86,027
Other 39,393 - 2,311 (2,283)
Net general revenues (expenses) 746,754 6,200 103,135 84,053
Change in net assets (34,398) 15,985 80,187 (45,314)
NET POSI TI ON 0 Beginning 109¥2,193e ar 543,292 372,031 88,345
NET POSITION 6 End of $y e alf937,725 $ 559,277 $ 452,218 $ 43,031

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Hawaii Community Hawaii Total
Tourism Development Hurricane Component
Authority Authority Relief Fund Units
$ 105,672 $ 32,272 $ 5 $ 2,678,651
9,462 3,369 - 1,015,221
- - - 570,666
- - - 43,964
9,462 3,369 - 1,629,851
(96,210) (28,903) (5) (1,048,800)
(276) 676 39 34,154
104,000 - - 104,000
(1,000) 8,854 (319) 874,541
R - - 39,421
102,724 9,530 (280) 1,052,116
6,514 (19,373) (285) 3,316
(3,595) 187,525 21,079 3,180,800
$ 2,919 $ 168,152 $ 20,794 $ 3,184,116
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STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICA NT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

The basic financial statements of the State of Hawaiiffitate) have been @pared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted starsedtidg body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reparg principles. The Stafe significant accounting policies are described
below.

Reporting Entity 8 The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial activity of the State
(APrimary Governmed} and its Component Units, entities for whitle Primary Government is considered

to be financially accountable. Discretely presented Component Units are legally separate organizations for
which the Primary Government is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their
relationship to the Primary Government are such that exclusion would cause tiie 18faieting entity to be
misleading or incomplete.

Primary Governmend The following branches and departments are included in theésStaporting entity
because of the sigmitince of their operational or financial relationships with the State.

Executive:
Accounting and General Services
Agriculture
Attorney General
Budget and Finance
Business, Economic Development and Tourism
Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Defense
Education
Hawaiian Home Lands
Health
Human Resources Development
Human Services
Labor and Industrial Relations
Land and Natural Resources
Public Safety
Taxation
Transportation

Judicial

Legislative
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Discretely Presented Component UrdtsThe Component Units column in the basic financial statements
includes the financial data of the Statdiscretely preanted Component Units. They are reported in a

separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the State. The governing bodies of these
discretely presented Component Units are appointed by the Governor of théGtateriion). The

discrdely presented Component Units are as follows:

University of Hawaii 8 The University of HawaiifUHO o r t h e )% Hawaifé sole public y 0

higher education system and is governed by a Board of Regents consisting of fifteen members appointed by
the Governor. The University system is comprised of ten campuses with approximately 60,000 students and
10,000 faculty and staff. The University providdsraad range of 388egree programs from baccalaureate

to postdoctoral level, through a framework of @enh colleges and nine professional schools. Through its
seven community colleges on Oahu, Hawaii, Maui, and Kélkioffers more than 27€ertificate and

associate degree programs and in certain areas, baccalaureate degrees. In addition to orgastzed resea
institutes and administrative service and distance learning centetd thyestem houses more than a

hundred centers with research and service activities at hundreds of Hawaii schools, hospitals and community
sites, and carries out these activitiemas the Pacific Islands and in foreign countries. Hawaii Revised
Statutes (HRS) Chapt804 governs the activities of UH.

Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporatiord Hawaii Housing Finance and Development
Corporation (HHFDC) is a corporate bodpged within the Department of Business, Economic

Development and Tourism (DBEDT) for administrative purpo8ets196, Session Laws of Hawaii (SLH)

of 2005, as amended by Act 180, SLH of 2006, created the HHFRECHHFDC is tasked with developing

and firancing low and moderate income housing projects and administeringdvameeship programs.

HRS 201H states that the HHFDC shall be a public body and a body corporate and politic and be headed by
a board of directors comprised of nine voting members. Thiemiembers consist of the following:

9 Six shall be public members appointed by the Governor:

- Atleast four of the public members shall have knowledge and expertise in public or private
financing and development of affordable housing.

- Public members shall lappointed from each of the counties of Honolulu, Hawaii, Maui, and Kauai.

- At least one public member shall represent community advocates findome housing, affiliated
with private nonprofit organizations that serve the residents afrloeme housing

- The public members of the board of directors shall serveyfear staggered terms; provided that
the initial appointments shall be as follows:

o0 Two members to be appointed for foars;
o Two members to be appointed for three years; and
o0 Two members to bappointed for two years.

1 The Director of DBEDT or a designated representative,

1 The Director of Finance or a designated representative, and

1 A representative of the Goveri@soffice.
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Hawaii Public Housing Authority & Act 196, SLHof 2005, as amended by At80, SLHof 2006,
created the Hawaii Public Housing Authorify HP HA 6  éuthorityb).e i

The Authorityis administratively attached to the Department of Human Servicesisiéson is to provide
safe, decent and sanitary dwelling for low and modénateme residents of Hawaii and to operate its
housing program in accordance with federal Statelaws and regulations.

HRS ChapteB56D states that the HPHA shall be a public body and a body corporate and politic and be
headed by a bod of directors coprised of 1Imembers. The 11 members consist of the following:

1 Nine public members appointed by the Governor (four appointed from each of the counties of Honolulu,
Hawaii, Maui, and Kauai, and five appointed at large);

1 The Director ofHumanServices, asraEx Officio voting member; and

1 TheRepresentativef the Governdis Office, as an Ex Officio voting member.

Hawaii Health Systems Corporationd The Hawaii Health Systems Corporation (HHSC) is a public body
corporate and politic and an instrumentally agdrecy of the State. HHSC is managed by a chief executive

officer under the control of a If®ember board of directors.

Act 262, SLH of 1996which became effective in fiscal year 1997, transferred all facilities under the
administration of the Deparnt d Health%2 Division of Community Hospitals to HHSC. HHSC operates
the following facilities:

East Hawaii Region: Maui Region:
Hilo Medical Center Maui Memorial Medical Center
Hal e Ho6ol a Hamakua Kula Hospital
Kaéu Hospital Lanai Community Hospital

Yukio Okutsu Veterans Care Home

West Hawaii Region: Oahu Region:
Kona Community Hospital Leahi Hospital
Kohala Hospital Maluhia
Kauai Region: Kahuku Medical Center

Kauai Veterans Memorial Hospital
Samuel Mahelona Memorial Hospital

Act 262 also amended a previous act to exempt all facilities from the obligation to pay previously allocated
central service and deparmtal administration expenses by the State.

HHSC is considered to be administratively attached to the Department of Health of the State and is a
component unit of the State. Hawaii Health Systems Foundation (HHSF) and Alii Communitin€are,

(Alii) are nonprofit organizations of which HHSC is the sole member. The purpose of HHSF is to raise
funds and obtain gifts and grants on behalf of HHSC. The purpose of Alii is to own, manage, and operate
assisted living and other healthcare facilities in the State.
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Act 290, SLH of 2007 which became effective July 2007, required the establishment of a seven to 15
member regional system board of directors for each of the five regions of the HHSC system. Each regional
board was given custodial control and respotigildfor management of the facilities and other assets in their
respective regions. This Act also restructured thengtber HHSC board of directors to 15 members,
comprised of 10 members appointed by the governor from nominees submitted by legisk¢irghlpatwo
atlarge members at the goverfodiscretion, two physician members selected by the HHSC board, and the
State Director of Health.

Act 290 also exempted the regions from the requirements of the State procurement code and other
exemptions fronState agency laws, such as tax clearance certificate requirements, the concession law, and
the sunshine law.

Act 182,SLH of 2009, effective July 1, 2008llowed the individual facilities or regions of HHSC to

transition into a new legal entity in anyrfio recognized under the laws of the State of Hawaii, including but
not limited to a nonprofit corporation, a fprofit corporation, a municipal facility, a public benefit

corporation, or a combination of the above. The act also amended the requiremenihfenance of

services to outline a process that must be followed in order for a facility to substantially reduce or eliminate
a direct patient care service. Further, the Act reconstituted the HHSC board of directoraneralieg

board of directors wish includes the five regional chief executive officers, one representative each
appointed by the East Hawaii, West Hawaii, Kauai, and Oahu regional boards, two members appointed by
the Maui regional board, and the Director of the Department of Healtheasddficio nortvoting member.

Act 126,SLH of 2011 effective Julyl, 2011 reconstituted the HHSC board of directors to ari&dnber
board of directors by adding anlatge voting member appointed by the governor of the State of Hawaii and
changing thevoting status of the Director of the Department of Health fromvaiimg to voting member.

In June 2013, the Legislature passed Act 278, H.B. 1130, effective July 2013, which reconstituted the HHSC
board of directors by adding five regional members appdiby the governor and making the five regional
chief executive officers egfficio, nonvoting members.

Hawaii Tourism Authority 8 The Hawaii Tourism Authority (HTA) was established on Janta}999,
by Act 156, SLH of 1998 and was placed within DBEIF administrative purposes. The HTA is
responsible for developing a strategic tourism marketing plan and developing measures of effectiveness to
assess the overall benefits and effectiveness of the marketing plan as it relates todhw&tata indusy,
employment, taxes, and lesser known and underutilized destinations. In addition, effectiye2008,
control and management of the Hawaii Convention CentefiGbated) was transferred to the HTA from
the Convention Center Authority (CCA) by Exgive Order No3817. Effective Julyl, 2002, the Center,
by statute, became the responsibility of the HTA. The Center, which opened to the general public in
Junel998, is used for a variety of events including conventions and trade shows, public stadows, a
spectator events. The Center offers approximately 350,000 square feet of rentable space including
51 meeting rooms.

The HTA is governed by a board of directors comprised of 12 voting meniergiovernor appoints the
12 voting members.

Hawaii Community Development Authority 8 The Hawaii Community Development Authority (HCDA)

was established as a body corporate and a public instrumentality of the State of Hawaii which is attached to
DBEDT for administrative purposes. The HCDA was established to suppié¢raditional community
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renewal methods by promoting and coordinating public and private sector community development. The
HCDA has redevelopejmnt r e s p o n s i bakd, Kalagloa, fara Heiat Conemurity keeebpment
Districts.
TheHCDA was established by HRS Chapter 206E, to join the strengths of private enterprise, public
development and regulation into a form capable of4@mm planniy and implementation of improved
community development in urban areas in the State.
The HCDA is comprised of 16 (five regular members, one member who votes only on Kalaeloa matters, one
member who votes only on Kaka'ako and He eia matters, three memlevst@lonly on Kaka ako
matters, three membendo vote only on Kalaeloa matters, and three members who vote only on He eia
matters) votingnembers who, as a body, overtiee HCDA OGS oper at i policestand est abl
implement it legislative objectives The board is required to report annually to the State Legislature and the
Governor. The 16 member board is comprised of the following:
1 Five members that vote on issued related to Kaka ako, Kalaeloa and He eia:
- The Director of Budget and Finance, asanOfficio voting member,
- The Director of DBEDT, as an Ex Officio voting member,

- The Comptroller of the Department of Accounting and General Sergisas,Ex Officio voting
member,

- The Director of Transportation, as an Ex Officio voting member, and

- One member who is a cultural expert.
1 The Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission who votes only on issues related Kalaeloa.
1 One member appointed by the Governor that votes only on issues related to Kaka ako and He eia.
1 Three members appointed byetBovernor that vote only on issues related to Kaka ako:

- All three members are selected by the Governor from a list of names submitted by the Honolulu City
Council.

1 Three members appointed by the Governor that vote only on issues related to Kalaeloa:

- All three members are selected by the Governor from a listroés submitted by the HonolulityC
Council.

1 Three members appointed by the Governor that vote only on issued related to He eia:

- All three members shall be residents of the He eia communisia@awent district or the
Koolaupoko district.
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Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund 8 The Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund (HHRF) was organized pursuant to,
and operates in accordance with, HRS Chag3éP. The HHRF, which began its operations on July

1993, was dablished as a public body and a body corporate and politic to be placed within the Department
of Commerce and Consumer Affairs for administrative purposes. The HHRF was primarily organized to
provide hurricane property insurance policies in Hawaii inetrent the private insurance market does not
make such policies readily available to consumers in Hawaii.

Due to the increase in the availability of hurricane property insurance coverage from the private sector, the
HHRF ceased writing hurricane propertgumance policies effective Decemidgr2000.

Although the HHRF no longer functions in its capacity to provide hurricane property insurance coverage
subsequent to Novemb2001, it has been determined at this time that the HHRF should not be dissolved in
the event it may need to reenter the insurance market.

The HHRF is administered and operated by a board of directors. The board of directors consists of the
following seven members:

1 The Insurance Commissioner, as an Ex Officio voting member, appointed ®pvkenor; and
1 Six members appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate:
- Two members appointed by the Governor;

- Two members appointed by the Governor from a list of nominations submitted by the President of
the Senate; and

- Two membes appointed by the Governor from a list of nominations submitted by the Speaker of the
House of Representatives.

Information for obtaining financial statements for the discretely presented Component Units may be
obtained from the Department of AccountimglaGeneral Services (DAGS), 11Blinchbowl Street,
Room400, Honolulu, Hawai®6813.

The EmployeedRetirement System of the State of Hawaii (ERS), which is administered on behalf of public
employees for both the State and county governments, and the &fffitawaiian Affairs (OHA), which

exists for the betterment of the conditions of native Hawaiians, are excluded from tie réfaaeting entity
because those agencies, based on the fiscal independence and/or separate legal entity status, are not
accoundble to the State.

GovernmentWide and Fund Financial Statement®d The GovernmenrWide financial statements (the
Statement of Net Position and the Statementativies) report information of all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the Primary Governmentdits Component Units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these GovernAiate financial statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reportéel\séosmna
businesgype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
Primary Government is reported separately from the legally separate Component Units for which the
Primary Government is financially accdable.
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function,
segment, or component unit are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function, segntenr component unit. Program revenues include charges to
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function,
segment, or component unit. Program revenues also include grants and contributions thatsre rest

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function, segment, or component unit. Taxes
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Resources that are dedicated indédlgnare reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
The State does not allocate general government (indirect) expenses to other functions.

Net positionis restricted when legally enforceable enabling legislation places restrictiongnr wh

restrictions are externally imposed by citizens and/or public interest groups. Additionally, restricted net
positionis reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not
specified by the enabling legislati or if the government has other cause for reconsideration. Internally
imposed designations of resources are not presented as restrigieditiet \WWhen both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is thésStatiey to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds,
and major Component Units. However, the Fiduciary Funds are notéttin the Governmeiwide

financial statements. Major individual Governmental Funds and major individual Proprietary Funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial StatemeRtesentation

GovernmenWide Financial Statemen&s The GovernmenrWide financial statements are reported using

the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded whiability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been
met.

Governmental Funds Financial StatemedtsThe Governmental Funds financiahments are reported

using the current financial resources measurement focus and the maddied! basis of accounting.

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are dettible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of

the current period. For this purpose, the State considers revenues other than federal grants and assistance
awards to be available if they are collected withird&9s of tle end of the current fiscal year. Revenues
susceptible to accrual include taxpagssessed tax revenues. Taxpagsessed tax revenues primarily

consist of income and general excise taxes. Other revenues which are not considered susceptible to accrual,
and therefore, are not accrued include fines, forfeitures and penalties, licenses, permits, and franchises.

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as revenue whe
available and entitlement occurs whictgenerally within 12 months of the end of the current fiscal year.

All other federal reimbursemetype grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues

when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred as of fiseahglesrd fundare available.
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Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, al
recorded only when paymeis due.

Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Component Units Financial State@eiitse financial

statements of the Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Component Units are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrea bhaccounting, similar to the Governm#tiide financial
statements described above. Agency Funds do not have a measurement focus and report only assets and
liabilities.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperatin@jterating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a Proprietary Furfid principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonopéng revenues and expenses.

Fund Accountingd The financial activities of the State are recorded in individual funds, each of which is
deemed to be a separate accounting entity. The State uses fund accounting to report on its financial position
and result®f operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a de#flancing setf accounts.

The financial activities of the State that are reported in the accompanying fund financial statements have
been classified into the following major and nonmajor Governmental and Proprietary Funds. In addition, a
description of the Fiduciary Fds and Component Units are as follows:

Governmental Fund Typés The State reports the following major Governmental Funds:

1 GeneralFund This fund is the Stateds primary operat.i
of the general governmeniaept those required to be accounted for in another fund.

1 Capital Projects Fund This fund accounts for substantially all of the financial resources obtained and
used for the acquisition or constr uedoureeareof t he
derived principally from proceeds of general obligation and revenue bond issues, federal grants, and
transfers from the Special Revenue Funds.

1 Med-Quest Special Revenue FuldT hi s fund accounts for the State
which healthcarés provided to the lowincome population. The Medicaid program is jointly financed by
the State and the federal government.

The nonmajor Governmental Funds are comprised of the following:

1 Special Revenue Funds These funds account for the fingaaesources obtained from specific
revenue sources and used for restricted purposes.

91 Debt Service Funé This fund accounts for the financial resources obtained and used for the payment

of principal and interest on general and revenue-teng bond oblyations.This fund also accounts for
financial resources obtained and usetefand existing debt
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Proprietary Fund Typ® Enterprise Fund$ The major Enterprise Funds are comprised of the following:

91 Department of Transportatidgh Ai r por t s [piowidsshdogmp  rfitAs roper ates th
and air navigation facilities and is responsible for general supervision of aeronautics within the State.

1 Department of Transportatigh Har bor s Di v i $iHarbors(mlihtans &énd operates the
Stae 6 s ¢ o manleorssystem |

1 Unemployment Compensation FuédThis fund accounts for the unemployment compensation benefits
to qualified recipients.

The nonmajor Eterprise Funds are comprisedtbé Hawaii EmployetJnion Health Benefits Trust Fund
(EUTF), the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (WPCF), and the Drinking Water Treatment
Revolving Loan Fund (DWTLF). The EUTF accounts for the benefits relating to active employees and
beneficiaries, which includes medical, dental, and life insurance gm:eFae WPCF accounts for loans to
county agencies for the construction of wastewater treatment facilities. The DWTLF accounts for loans to
county agencies faheconstruction of drinking water treatment facilities.

Fiduciary Fund Types

1 Agency Fund$ Agency Funds account for retirbealthcardoenefits, which includes medical, dental,
and life insurance coverage as well as, various taxes, deposits, and property helstaie jending
distribution to other governments and individuals.

I OtherPosEmploy ment Benef it (-AddiEdad plandssaisand reRtededpenses
from the prefunding contributions made by the State and couniié&e OPEB Trust Fund meets the
criteria for plans that are administered as trusts, or equivalent arrangeme

Component Unit§ Component Units are comprised of {ie UH, which is comprised of the Stéte

public institutions of higher education; @e HHFDC, which finances housing programs for residents of
the State(3) the HPHA, which manages state hiogsprograms; (4)he HHSC, which was established to
provide quality health care for all of the people of &#ttate; (5Xhe HTA, which manages the Stae
convention center as well as markets the Stgte v i s i t o the HODA, which cogrdinatésoate

and public community development for residents of the State; atide(HRF, which funds, assesses, and
provides, when necessary, hurricane property insurance to residents of the State.

Cash and Cash Equivalent® Cash and cash equivalents incladlecash, repurchase agreements, and

U.S. government securities with original maturities of three months or less, and time certificates of deposit.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the State has defined cash equivalents to be all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Receivables and Payabled Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal yeaefareed to as interfund receivables/interfund
payables. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and thetppsiness
activities are reported in the Governm#¥iide financial statements as internal balances.
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All tax and othereceivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and estimated refunds
due.

Investmentsd Investments in U.S. government securities and time certificates of deposit are carried at fair
value based on quoted market prices. Investmemepinmrchase agreements are carried at cost

Inventories 8 Inventories of developments in progress and units available for sale are stated at the lower of
cost or estimated net realizable value, with cost being determined by the sdedifiication metod. All
estimated carrying costs to the anticipated date of disposition are considered in the determination of
estimated net realizable value. Units available for sale include constructed units, developed lots, and
repurchased units available for sale. Blepments in progress include construction in progress and land

held for future development.

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined
principally using the firstn, first-out method.

Restricted Asset® Revenue bond indentures authorize the &tdtastees to invest monies in time

certificates of deposit, money market funds, and investment securities, including U.S. government or agency
obligations, certain municipal bonds, and repurchaseeagents. Uninsured time certificates of deposit are
required to be collateralized by investment securities of an equal or greater market value. The underlying
securities for repurchase agreements are required to be U.S. government or agency obligetiegaaifor

greater market value held by the Sfategent in the Stal®name.

Capital Assetsd Capital assets, which include land and land improvements, infrastructure assets
(e.g.,roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), buildings and improvenagt equipment, are reported

in the applicable governmental and busiryge activities columns, as well as the Component Units

column, in the GovernmeiWide financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historicalast if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated
fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed to the extent
the Statés capitlization thresholds are met. Interest incurred during the construction phase of the capital
assets of busineggpe activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest
earned, on the invested proceeds over the senedp

The Statés capitalization thresholds are $5,000 for equipment, and $100,000 for land and land
improvements, infrastructure, and buildings and improvements. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations when incurred. Betterments and major imgments which significantly increase values, change
capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost and the
related accumulated depreciation, as applicable, are removed from the respective actbanisresulting

gain or loss is recognized in the statement of activities.

Capital assets of the Primary Government, as well as the Component Units, are depreciated or amortized
using the straighline method over the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
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Works of art and historical treasures held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, rather than financial gain, are capitalized. These items are protected, kept encumbered,
conserved, and prased by the State. It is the Stégolicy to utilize proceeds from the sale of these items
for the acquisition of other items for collection and display.

Compensated Absenced It is the Statés policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick leave benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since sick leave is
not convertible to pay upon termination of employment. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the
GovernmemnWide, Proprietary Funds, and @ponent Units financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the Governmental Funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations 8 In the GovernmertVide financial satements, Proprietary Fund financial
statements, and Component Unit financial statements;tengdebt and other lorigrm obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, busiyessctivities, Proprietary Fund, or
Component Units statement of metsition Initial-issue bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effetetiest method. The

difference between the reacquisition price dfimeling bonds and the net carrying amount of refunded debt
(deferred amount on refunding) is amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunding debt or the
remaining life of the refunded debt. Bond issuance costs, including underddisssunt, argeported as
deferred bond issuance costs. Amortization of bond premiums or discounts, issuance costs, and deferred
amounts on refunding is included in interest expense.

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Funds recognize bond premiums, djsaodirgsuance

costs during the period issued. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received are reported as other financing sources, while discounts are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whetbenot withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Net Positionand Fund Balanced In the Governmen®ide financial statements and Proprietary Funds

and Component Units financial statements,pusttion isreported in three categories: pefsitioninvested

in capital assets, net of related debt; restricteghosition and unrestricted n@bsition Restricted net
positionrepresergnetpositionrestricted by parties outside of the State (such as citipabl¢ interest

groups, or the judiciary), or imposed by law through enabling legislation, and include unspent proceeds of
bonds issued to acquire or construct capital assets.

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Funds report reservationsl édalance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

The State classifiesihd balancéased primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to follow
constraints on how resources can be speatcordance witl6ASB Statement Né&d 4 (i &18),Fhd
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type DefinitiGtassificatiors include:

1 Restrictedd Balances that are restricted for specific purposes by external parties such as creditors,
grantors or other governments.
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1 Committedd Balances that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formalacton of t he Stateds Legi s tmakingauthgrity.tCohnemittad g h e st
amounts cannot be used for other than the specified purposes unless the Legislature changes the
specified purpose.

1 Assigned Balances that are constrained by mamagnt to be used for specific purposes, but are
neither restricted nor committedih contrast to the restricted and committed balances, the authority for
making an assignment is not required to be made

1 Unassignedd Residual balnces that are not contained in the other classifications.

Nonexchange Transaction® The Enterprise Funds and Component Units recognize contributed capital as
nonoperating revenues.

Medicare and Medicaid Reimbursement®y Revenues from services reimbursedier Medicare and

Medicaid programs are recorded at the estimated reimbursable amounts. Final determination of the amounts
earned is subject to review by the fiscal intermediary or a peer review organization. The State has the
opinion that adequate proies has been made for any adjustments that may result from such reviews.

Risk Managementd The State is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; and wdvkerspensation. The &e generally retains the first
$1,000,000per occurrence of property losses, the first $4,000,000 with respect to general liability claims,
and the first $500,000 of losses due to crime. Losses in excess of those retention amounts are insured with
commerdal insurance carriers. The limit per occurrence for property losses is $225,000,000, except for flood
and earthquake, which individually is a $225,000,000 aggregate loss, and terrorism, which is $50,000,000
per occurrencelhe annual aggregate limit foegeral liability losses is $15,000,000 per occurrence and for
crime losses, the limit per occurrence is $10,000,000 with no aggregatd himiGtate also has an

insurance policy to cover medical malpractice risk in the amour8®080,000 per occurrea@nd

$39,000,000 in the aggregate. The State is generallyrselfed for worke& ¢ o mp e n sawomobilen a n d
claims.

The estimated reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs includes the accumulation of estimates for losses
and claims reported pri¢o fiscal yeatend, nonincremental estimates (based on projections of historical
developments) of claims incurred but not reported, and nonincremental estimates of costs for investigating
and adjusting all incurred and unadjusted claims. Amounts repogedibject to the impact of future

changes in economic and social conditions. The State believes that, given the inherent variability in any such
estimates, the reserves are within a reasonable and acceptable range of adequacy. Reserves are continually
monitored and reviewed, and as settlements are made and reserves adjusted, the differences are reported in
current operations. A liability for a claim is established if information indicates that it is probable that a

liability has been incurred at the dafelwe basic financial statements and the amount of the loss is

reasonably estimable.

Deferred Compensation Pland The State offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Seat®n The plan, available all State employees, permits
employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All plan assets are held in a trughfl to protect them from claims of general creditors. The State has no
responsibility for loss due to the investment or failure of investment of funds and assets in the plan, but does
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have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary piingestor. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of the Statés deferred compensation plan are not reported in the accompanying basic financial
statements.

Use of Estimatesd The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Newly IssuedAccounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement Nd60d The GASB ssued Statement N60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Service Concession Arrangementdhichbecameeffective forfiscal years beginning after December 15,
2011. This Statement improves financial reporting by addressing issues related to sacassion
arrangementsChis Statemendid not have a materiaffect ont h e Sihaadalstatements.

GASB Statement Nd61d The GASB issued Statement N1, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus

an amendment of GASB StatementsIMand No34, which becameeffective forfiscal years beginning

after Junel5, 2012. This Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of Component Units in the
financial reporting entityThis Statemendid not have a materiaffectont h e Sihaadalkstateaments.

GASB Statement Nd628 The GASB issued Statement Ng2, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Povember 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncesnehich

became effectivéor reporting periods beginning aftbecember 15, 2011. The objective of this Statement

is to enhance the usefulness of the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards by incorporating guidance that previously could only be found in ¢énantial Accounting
Standar dEFASBB @radAthe ( ican I nstitute of ACPAOt)I fied Publ
pronouncementd his Statemendid not have a materiaffect ont h e  Sihaadialst@tements.

GASB Statement Nd&633d The GASB issued Statement NgR, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows

of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Positivch becameeffective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. GASB Statemé8tovides financial
statement presentationigance for these elements; however, it does not identify any additional items that
should be recognized within these element classifications. GASB Statemdig didy will apply to items
that have been specifically identified by the GASB as deferretbaustiof resources or deferred inflows of
resourcesThis Statemendid not have a materieffect ont h e  Sihaadalstatements.

GASB Statement No. 65 The GASB issued Statement No. @ms Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, which will become effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15,
2012. This Statement specifies the items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities that should
now be reported as deferred outflows of resources, deferted&df resourceutflows of resources or

inflows of resourcesThe State is currently evaluating the impact the statemenill have on its financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 6 The GASB issued Statement No. @@chnical Correction® 20128 an

Amendment of GASB Statensdywiv. 10 and No. §2avhich will become effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The objective of this Statement is to resolve conflicting
accounting and financial reporting guidartetween previously issued statements. The State does not expect
that this Statement will have a material effect on its financial statements.
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GASB Statement No. 65 The GASB issued Statement No.-67inancial Reporting for Pension plans; an
Amendment dBASB Statement No. 2bhich will become effective for financial periods beginning after

June 15, 2013This statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50 related to pension
plans that are administered through trusts or equivaleariggmentsThe requirements of Statements No.

25 and No. 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trust or equivalent
arrangementsThe ERS which is administered on behalf of public employees for both the State and county
governments, is excluded from the Stateds report.i
Statement will have a material effect on its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 68 GASB issued Statement No. 68;counting and Financial &orting for
Pensiond an amendment of GASB Statement Nowdich will become effective for financial statements
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 20IHis Statement establishes standards of accounting and
financial reporting for defined benefiensions and defined contributigrensionsprovided to the
employeesof state and local governmentalemployersthrough pensionplans that are administered
through trusts or equivalent arrangements in which:

1 Contributionsfrom employersand nonemployercontributing entitiesto the pensionplan and
earningson those contributions are irrevocable.

1 Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordance with the
benefit terms.

1 Pension plan assets are lkgarotected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing
entities, andthe pension plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit pension plan, plan assets
also are legally protecteffom creditors of the plan members.

This Statementeplaces the requirements@ASB No. 27,Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employeras well as the requirements®ASB No.50, Pension Disclosuress they relate
to pensions that are provided through pension plans administetede or equivalent arrangements that
meet certain criteria. The requirement$G#SB No. 27 andsASB No. 50 remain applicable for pensions
that are not covered by the scope of this Statement.

The State is currently evaluating the impact that GASB Bavié have on its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 60 The GASB issued Statement No. @hvernment Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operationghich will become effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 152013. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to
government combinations and disposals of government operafitiesState does not expect that this
Statement will have a material effect on its financial statesnent

GASB Statement No. 70The GASB issued Statement No. Ag¢counting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guaranteeghich will become effective for reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2013 This Statement establishes accounting faimancial reporting standards for financial guarantees
that are nonexchange transactions (nonexchange financial guaraimtee$§tate does not expect that this
Statement will have a material effect on its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 7L The GASB issued Statement No. PEnsion Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date, an Amendment of GASB StatemenihNichéhould be applied
simultaneously with the provisions GASB No. 68.GASB No. 71 amends the requinent related to
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certain pension contributions made to defined benefit pension plans prior to implementation oNG./A8B
by employers and nonemployer contributing entiti€se State is currently evaluating the impact that
statemenwill have on it financial statements.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Director of Finance is responsible for the safekeeping of all monies paid into the State Treasury. The
Director of Finance pools and invests any monies of the State, which in the Director of &ifjiatgeent,

are in excess of the amounts necessary for meeting the specific requirements of the State. Investment
earnings are allocated to the Primary Government based on its equity interest in the pooled monies. Legally
authorized investments include obligatsoof or guaranteed by the U.S. government, obligations of the

State, federallynsured savings and checking accounts, time certificates of deposit, auction rate securities,
and repurchase agreements with fedesiakdyired financial institutions.

Cashd The State maintains approximately 20 bank accounts for various purposes at locations throughout
the State and the nation. Bank deposits are under the custody of the Director of Finance. For financial
statement reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalesistaaf cash, time certificates of deposit, and

money market accounts. Cash and cash equivalents also include repurchase agreements and U.S.
government securities with original maturities of three months or less.

The carrying amount of the Stéteunresticted and restricted deposits (cash, time certificates of deposit, and
money market accounts) as of Je2013, was $1,319,112,000 and $912,333,000, respectivelhe
Primary Government and unrestricted cash for the Fiduciary FamosJun&0, 2.3, was$531,461000.

Information relating to the bank balance, insurance, and collateral of cash despdsiesmined on a

statewide basis and not for individual departments or divisions. Total bank balances of deposits for the
Primary Government and driciary Fundamounted to approximately $2,233,878,000 at An013. Of

that amount, approximately $2,223,778,08presentbank balances covered by federal deposit insurance

or by collateral held either by the State Treasury or by the@Staealagents in the name of the State. Bank
balances 0$193,257,000epresent deposits with the U.S. Department of the Treasury for thésState
Unemployment Trust Fund, which were uncollateralized and the Special RevenuédruhBsoprietary
Fund$cash in bak, which was uninsured and uncollateralized. The Special Revenuebindds

Proprietary Fundscash balances were held by fiscal agents in thetStaéene for the purpose of satisfying
outstanding bond obligations. Accordingly, these deposits were ekpmsastodial credit risk. Custodial

credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the @tdegposits may not be returned to it. For
demand or checking accounts and time certificates of deposit, the State requires that the depostory bank
pledge collateral based on the daily available bank balances to limit its exposure to custodial credit risk. The
use of daily available bank balances to determine collateral requirements results in the available balances
being undercollateralized at vamus times during the fiscal year. All securities pledged as collateral are held
either by the State Treasury or by the Siafiscal agents in the name of the State. The State also requires
that no more than 60% of the Statéotal funds available foreghosit and on deposit in the State Treasury

may be deposited in any one financial institution.

Investmentsd The State holds investments both for its own benefit and as an agent for other parties.
Further, the State pools all excess funds into an investpa®l that is administered by the State Department

of Budget and Finance. The p&lnvestment options are limited to investments listed in the Hawaii
Revised Statutes. As of JuBe, 20B, the State had material investments in repurchase agreements.
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According to the Department of Budget and Finance, the repurchase agreement investment contracts are
valued on the cost basis.

At the end of each year the Department of Budget and FinBuddet and Financ allocates the

investment pool amount to eachtbé participants including thoserfiaipants who are part of the

Proprietary Fund and FiduciaryiRd. The allocation is based on the average monthly investment balance of
each participant in the investment pool.

The following tables present the St@tévestments and maturities at Jife 20 (amounts expressed in

thousands).
Maturity (in Years)
Fair Value Less than 1 115 >5
I nvest ments & Primary Government:
Certificates of deposit $ 976,243 $ 878,619 $ 97,624 $ -
U.S. government securities 1,092,462 567,854 320,667 203,941
Repurchase agreements 255,683 219,887 35,796 -

$2,324,388 $ 1,666,360 $ 454,087 $ 203,941

I nvest ments & Fiduciary Funds:

Certificates of deposit $ 166,308 $ 149,677 $ 16,631 $ -
U.S. government securities 186,106 99,614 50,716 35,776
Repurchase agreements 43,557 37,459 6,098 -

$ 395,971 $ 286,750 $ 73,445 $ 35,776

Interest Rate Riséi As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest
rates, the Stafe investment policy genergllimits maturities on investments to not more than five years
from the date of investment.

Credit Riskd The Statés investment policy limits investments in state and U.S. Treasury securities, time
certificates of deposit, U.S. government or agency otidigs, repurchase agreements, commercial paper,
banker$acceptances, and money market funds maintaining a Kipding.

Custodial Risld For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the State willot be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are

in the possession of an outside party. The &tdteestments are held at broker/dealer firms, which are
protected by the Securities Investor Protection Corporatid®QBlip to a maximum amount. In addition,
excessSIPC coverage is provided by the fidirssurance policies. In addition, the State requires the

institutions to set aside in safekeeping, certain types of securities to collateralize repurchase agreements. Th
State monitors the market value of these securities and obtains additional collateral when appropriate.

Concentration of Credit Risk The Statés policy provides guidelines for portfolio diversification by

placing limits on the amount the State may Biia any one issuer, types of investment instruments, and
position limits per issue of an investment instrument.

-57-



STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

For the fiscal year ended JuB@, 203, capital assets activity for the Primary Government (governmental

activities and busirsstype activities) was as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Governmental Activities

Bal ance 0 Bal ance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
$ 2,207,145 $ 25,443 $ - $ 2,232,588
707,883 386,038 (229,205) 864,716
2,915,028 411,481 (229,205) 3,097,304
8,915,933 130,673 - 9,046,606
3,919,334 145,886 (274) 4,064,946
385,967 29,019 (10,320) 404,666
13,221,234 305,578 (10,594) 13,516,218
(4,918,285) (225,882) - (5,144,167)
(2,071,343) (140,626) - (2,211,969)
(313,285) (22,199) 7,427 (328,057)
(7,302,913) (388,707) 7,427 (7,684,193)
$ 8,833,349 $ 328,352 $ (232,372) $ 8,929,329

Business-Type Activities

Bal ance 0 Bal ance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
$ 585,215 $ 20,700 $ - $ 605,915
394,123 150,106 (128,667) 415,562
979,338 170,806 (128,667) 1,021,477
1,175,429 13,024 - 1,188,453
2,074,723 57,819 (20) 2,132,532
254,958 59,358 (1,396) 312,920
3,505,110 130,201 (1,406) 3,633,905
(749,174) (33,982) - (783,156)
(1,082,382) (56,905) - (1,139,287)
(179,695) (25,427) 5,262 (199,860)
(2,011,251) (116,314) 5,262 (2,122,303)
$ 2,473,197 $ 184,693 $(124,811) $ 2,533,079
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Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended 30n201, was charged to functions/programs of the
Primary Government as followfamounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activities:

Highways $209,650
Lower education 69,893
General government 33,223
Urban redevelopment and housing 22,620
Public safety 19,503
Conservation of natural resources 10,170
Health 7,907
Economic development and assistance 4,446
Welfare 2,369
Culture and recreation 8,926

Total depreciation expense & gover nn$dds70a |

Business-type activities:

Airports $ 92,231
Harbors 22,614
EUTF 1,375
DWTLF 10
WPCF 84

Total depreciation expense &8 busines$1681l4p

4. GENERAL OBLIGATION B ONDS PAYABLE

The State issues general obligation bonds primarily to provide for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. Although certain general obligatidebt are being retired from thegesces of the

Proprietary Fund®z Airports and Harbors and are recorded in those funds, all general obligation bonds are
backed solely by the full faith and credit of the State.

All issues, except Series CH, issued Biaer 1, 1993; Series CM, issued December 1, 1996; Series CY,
issued February 15, 2002; Series DL and DM, issued May 20, 2008; Series DO and DP, issued December
16, 2008; Series DR, issued June 23, 2009; SeriesndDW, issued November 24, 2008eries LY,

issued February 18, 201énd Series EC and ED, issued December 7, 2@itain call provisions. Stated
interest rates range fro@2% to 6.96.

On December 4, 2012, the State issued $444,000,000 of general obligation bonds, $396,990,000 of general
obligation refunding bonds, and $26,000,000 of taxable general obligation bonds of 2012, Series EE, EF,
and EG, respectively. The bonds were issued at a premium, which will be amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest rate method.hWithe newly issued Series EE, EF, and EG, the bonds

that mature on or after November 1, 2023 are subject to optional redemption.

Refunding Series EF has an interest rate of 5.0% and was used to advance refund $435,065,000 of certain
general obligation buds previously issued. The net proceeds of $502,244,000 (including a premium of
$106,382,000 and after payment of $1,128,000 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) related to the
issuance of Series EF were used to purchase U.S. governmentegcfitbse securities were deposited in

an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the previously
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issued outstanding general obligation bonds series DD, DE, DF, DI, DJ, DK, and DQ. As a result, these
bondsare considered to be defeased, and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the
GovernmemnWide financial statements. Due to the advanced refunding, the State decreased its total debt
service payments over the next 12 years by $54,861,0000aaicied an economic gain (difference between
the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $58,967,000.

The State defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust, to
provide forall future debt service payments on the refunding bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts and the
refunded bonds are not included in the Statebds ba
bonds outstanding is considered defeasédune30, 20B, the general obligation bonds consisted of the

following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Callable $ 4,566,320

Noncallable 1,001,535
Total general obligation bonds outstanding 5,567,855

Less amount recorded as a liability 0(B2934) |

Amount recorded in the governmental activities of the Primary Government  $ 5,534,921
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A summary of general obligation bonds outstanding by series as 080uB@3, is as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Original Amount

Series Date of Issue Interest Rates Maturity Dates Amount QOutstanding
CH November 1, 1993 4.750% November 1, 2013 $ 250,000 $ 13,885
CM December 1, 1996 6.500% December 1, 20 159,000 16 33,320
Cw August 1, 2001 4.500% August 1, 2013 156,750 1,220
CY February 15, 2002 5.750% February 1, 20318392015 84,685
CZ November 26, 2002 3.750% July 1, 2013 300,000 1,945
DA  September 16,2003 4. 00 0 %i 5S e2p5t0e%nber 1, 2 @258002 0 2 389,580
DB  September 16,2003 4. 0 0 0 %71 5S e2p5t0e¥%nb er 1, 20838502 0 1 685,765
DD May 13, 2004 4. 000%7 5. 2MaDywb 1, 2014171 28225600 30,635
DE November 10,2004 3. 375%71 50000%er 1, 201250® 15 36,350
DF June 15, 2005 3.500%1 5.00I09w 1, 20137 226,06 71,115
DG June 15, 2005 5.000% July 1, 20137 20878 441,085
DI March 23,2006 3. 900%i 5. M&OG % h 1, 2014i320D0@6 90,340
DJ April 12, 2007 3. 700%7 5. 0A0POronp | 1, 201485007 236,370
DK May 20, 2008 3.750%1 5. OMaObyws 1, 201471 2873800 337,570
DL May 20, 2008 3.250%7 5. OMaDyYs 1, 20147 2 29@&L0 21,405
DM May 20, 2008 4.670% May 1, 2014 25,000 4,590
DN December 16,2008 3. 50 0 %i 5. H0g0std, 2013-2028 100,000 96,115
DO December 16,2008 3. 250 %i 5. (AGg0std, 2013-2018 101,825 79,420
DP December 16,2008 4 . 6 50 %i 5. &&y0std, 2013-2016 26,000 18,155
DQ June 23,2009 3. 600 %i 5. 0Jurfe% 2014-2029 500,000 445,785
DR June 23,2009 3. 000 %i 5. 0Jurfe% 2014-2019 225,410 203,910
DS November 5,2009 0. 2 0 0 %i 1 .SdpEe@br 15, 2014-2024 32,000 32,000
DT November 24,2009 2. 25 0 %i 5 . Nbp@&Misér 1, 2014-2019 204,140 204,140
DW November 24,2009 2. 250 %i 5. 0NoOGe#ber 1, 2013 36,425 36,425
DX February 18,2010 3. 00 0 %1 5 . BeBroafg 1, 2015-2030 500,000 500,000
DY February 18,2010 3. 00 0 %1 5 . BebrOafp 1, 2015-2020 221,625 221,625
Dz December 7,2011 3. 50 0 %i 5 .Dedce@dEr 1, 2016- 2031 800,000 800,000
EA December 7, 2011 2.000%- 5.000% December 1, 2016- 2023 403,455 403,455
EC December 7, 2011 2.000%- 5.000% December 1, 2013 56,225 56,225
ED December 7, 2011 2.000%- 5.000% December 1, 2015 23,750 23,750
EE December 4, 2012 1.000%- 5.000% November 1, 2017-2032 444,000 444,000
EF December 4, 2012 5.000% November 1, 2017- 2024 396,990 396,990
EG December 4, 2012 1.000%- 3.625% November 1, 2017-2032 26,000 26,000
$ 5,567,855

The general obligation bonds outstanding financed the Hawaiian Homes Lands Trust settlement and the
acquisition, construction, extension, or improvement of various public improvement projects, including
public buildings and fatities, public schools, community college and university facilities, public libraries
and parks, and for other public purposes.
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A summary of the bond premium activities for fiscal year28las follows (amounts expressed in

thousands):

Bal ance 6 July 1, 2012 $344,857
GO Bond Series EE, EF, and EG 199,858
Defeased Bond Series DD, DE, DF, DI, DJ, DK, and DQ (17,196)
Current-year amortization (49,234)

Bal ance 8 June 30, 2013 $478,285

A summary of debt service requirements to maturity on the governmental ad@iyéiesal obligation
bonds is as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 430,556 $ 259,654 $ 690,210
2015 412,116 241,282 653,398
2016 406,473 220,708 627,181
2017 426,177 200,983 627,160
2018 407,573 179,757 587,330
2019b2023 1,592,401 652,856 2,245,257
2024b2028 1,274,654 303,166 1,577,820
2029b2032 584,971 54,441 639,412

$5,534,921 $ 2,112,847 $7,647,768

A summary of debt service requirements to maturity on the asstiyyge activitie®general obligation
bonds are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 1,758 $ 1,623 $ 3,381
2015 1,844 1,537 3,381
2016 1,932 1,449 3,381
2017 2,023 1,358 3,381
2018 2,122 1,258 3,380
2019b2023 12,289 4,615 16,904
2024b2028 10,966 1,350 12,316

$32,934 $ 13,190 $46,124

The State Constitution limits the amount of general obligation bonds, which may be issued. As required by
law, theDirector of Financdnas confirmed that the State was within its legal debt limit on the
aforementioned issues. The legal debt margin at 3002013, wa$353,351,000.

At June30, 2013, general obligation bonds authorized but unissued were approxi#iz@él$,968,000.
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5. REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Governmental Activitiesd Revenue Bonds apmyable from and collateralized by the Departridgent

revenues generated from certain capital improvement prof@ctBecember 15, 2011, Highways issued
$112,270,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Reue Bonds of 2011, Series A, with interest rates ranging

from 1.0% to 5.0% to finance certain highway capital improvement projects and related projects. The bonds
are payable annually January 1 through 2032.

On December 15, 201Hjghwaysissued $5,095,@in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 2011,
Series B, with an interest rate of 4.0% to advance refund $5,400,000 of certain outstanding highway revenue
bonds previously issued. The bond is payable on January 1, 2023.

On April 2, 2009, the State ¢fawaii Department of Hawaiian Homelands (DHHL) issued $42,500,000 in
Revenue Bonds, Series 2009fwinterest rates ranging frondto 6% to finance the construction of
certain DHHL capital improvemenmrojects. The bonds are payable annually on Alptilrough 2039.

On Decembet 7, 2008 Highways issued $125,175,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series
2008, with interest rates ranging fron7#%o to 600% to finance certain highway capital improvement
projects and related pests. The bonds@ payableannually on January through 2029.

On March15, 2005Highways issued $60,000,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 2005,
SeriesA, with interest rates ranging fromS86 to 50% to finance certain highway capital improvement
projectsand related preicts. The bonds are payahblenually on Julyl through 2025.

On Marchl5, 2005, Highways issued $123,915,000 of State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 2005,
SeriesB, with interest rates ranging fromb8% to 5.25% to advance refund $1285,000 of certain
outstanding highway revenue bonds previously issued. The bonds are payable annually ¢nrdugh

2021.

On April 15, 2003, Highways issued $44,940,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of
2003, withinterest rates ramgg from 4.00%6 to 5.25% to advance refund $45,350,000 of outstanding State
of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of 1993, with an average interest rate of thé2S8tate made

its last bond payment for this series on July 1, 2013

On Julyl, 1998, Highways issued State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of 1998, in the principal
amount of $94,920,000. Bond proceeds related to this issue amounted to $97,542,000, of which $71,921,000
was used to finance certain highway improvements and other retajedtg for the state highways system,

and $25,621,000 was usedadvanceefund certain outstanding highway revenue bonds. The difference in

the principal amount and proceeds relates to bond premium and accrued interest. The bonds bear interest at
ratesof 5.5% and maturen July 1, 2017 anduly 1,2018.

The bonds are payable solely from and collateralized by the revenues, consisting primarily of highway fuel
taxes, vehicle registration fees, vehicle weight taxes, and rental motor vehicle and toersteblthrge
taxes.

In addition to the proceeds from the State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 2005BStr&es

proceeds of th&tate of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bond of 2011, SerieSt&e of Hawaii Highway
Revenue Bonds, Series of 2003; and a pomibthe proceeds of the State of Hawaii Highway Revenue
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Bonds, Series of 1998 (see above); were placed in irrevocable trusts and used to purchase securities of the
U.S. government to meet the debt service requirements of the refunded bonds.

The liabilities for the refunded bond issues and the related securities and trust accounts are not included in
the accompanying basic financial statements, as DHHL and Highways defeased their obligations for
payment of those bonds upon completion of those refundingactions.

The following is a summary of Highways and DHHL revenue bonds issued and outstanding3, Ag{&

(amounts expressed in thousands):

Interest Maturity Original Amount  Outstanding
Series Date of Issue Rates Dates of Issue Amount
Highways:
1998 July 1, 1998 5.500% July 1, 20177 904920 1, $2204938
2003 April 15, 2003 4. 00%1 5. 25 %uly1, 2013 44,940 5,360
2005 A March 15, 2005 3.50%1 5. 00606l y 1, 201 3i6P,002 5 44,200
2005 B March 15, 2005 3.50%1 5. 25@ly 1, 20131230151 101,430
2008 December 17,2008 4. 75 %i 6. Q@%uary 1, 2 01128172 0 2 9 109,090
2011 A December 15, 2011 1.00%-5.00% January 1, 20ma2a7@ 0 3 2 108,580
2011 B December 15, 2011 4.00% January 1, 2023 5,095 5,095
DHHL.:
2009 April 2, 2009 4. 00%1 6. OMpPAa i | 1, 201442503 9 39,815

$441,150

A summary of the revenue bond premium activities for fiscal yead B0ds follows (amounts expressed in

thousands):
Balance o6 July 1,
Current-year additions
Current-year amortization
Bal ance 8 June 30,

Revenue Bonds

2012 $ 20,770
(2,753)
2013 $ 18,017
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Debt service requirements to maturity on revenue bonds are aggregated below (amounts expressed in

thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 28,425 $ 21,928 $ 50,353
2015 29,945 20,609 50,554
2016 31,390 19,148 50,538
2017 32,925 17,593 50,518
2018 34,530 15,922 50,452
2019712023 123,095 58,114 181,209
202472028 94,440 32,770 127,210
2029712033 51,590 10,831 62,421
203471 2038 11,970 3,087 15,057
2039 2,840 170 3,010

$441,150 $ 200,172 $641,322

BusinessType Activities 8 Revenue bonds are backed yyledge of resources derived from users of the
related facilities and are not supported by the full faith and credit of the State.

Airports System Revenue Bom@dsThe Airports system revenue bonds are payable solely from and
collateralized by airport revees, which include all aviation fuel taxes levied. The Airports system revenue
bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Department of Transportation (DOT) and the State
during specific years at prices ranging from 102% to 100% of principal.

Thefollowing is a summary of the Airports system revenue bonds issued and outstanding3&, Axig
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Final Original
Interest Maturity Amount of Outstanding
Series Rates Date (July 1) Issue Amount
2010A, refunding 2. 00%7 5. 252439 $ 478,980 $478,395
2010B, refunding 3. 00%7 5. 00270 166,000 150,750
2011, refunding 2.00%-5.00% 2024 300,885 288,885
$ 945865 918,030
Add unamortized premium 23,672
Less:
Deferred loss on refunding (6,207)
Current portion (40,305)
Noncurrent portion $895,190
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Airports Special Facility Revenue BoridsAirports entered intéhree special facility leasgeeementsvith
Continental Airlines|nc. (fiContinentab) in Novemberl997 and Jul000, and Caterair International
Corporation in Decembdr990, which was subsequently assigned to Sky Chrefs(fiSky Chefg) effective
January2002. The construction difie related facilities was financed by special facility revenue bonds issued
by Airports in the amounts of $25,255,000, $16,600,000, and $6,600,000, respectively. Those bonds are
payable solely from and collateralized solely by certain rentals and otimezsyerived from the special
facilities. These bonds are payable solely from and collateralized solely by certain rentals and other monies
derived from the special facilities and aggregated to $30,100 at June 30, 2013.

The following is a summary of pergnt information on the Airports special facility revenue bonds at
June30, 20B.

$25,255,000 Issue

The bonds bear interest at 5.625% and are subject to redemption at the option of Airports, upon the request
of Continental, at prices ranging from 101% t®%) depending on the dates of redemption, or at 100%,
plus interest if the facilities are destroyed or damaged extensively.

Interestonly payments are due semiannually on M&yand Novembet5 of each year until the bonds
mature on Novembels, 2027, at Wwich time the entire principal amount is due.

$16,600,000 Issue

On July15, 2000, Airports issued $16,600,000 of term special facility bonds (Continental), Refunding Series
of 2000, with an interest rate of 7.00%, due Jun2020, to, in part; refund $225,000 of its outstanding

Series of 1990 bonds (Continental). The bonds are subject to redemption on or afterDlifik at the

option of Airports, upon the request of Continental or, if the facilities are destroyed or damaged extensively,
at 100% of pincipal, plus interest.

Special facility revenue bonds payable at JBde203, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in

thousands):
Continental Total
Current portion $ 970 $ - $ 970
Noncurrent portion 7,405 21,725 29,130

$ 8375 $21,725 $30,100

The special facility leases are accounted for and recorded as direct financinglleasesiaining lease

payments to be paid by the lessees (including debt service requirements on the special facility revenue
bonds) are recorded as a restricted asset, and the special facility revenue bonds outstanding are recorded as
liability in the acompanying basic financial statements.
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Harbors Revenue Bondé The Harbors revenue bonds are collateralized by a charge and lien on the gross
revenues of the commercial harbors system and upon all improvements and betterments thereto, and all
funds and sarities created in whole or in pdrom revenues or from the proceeds of any bonds issued. The
Harbors revenue bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the DOT and the State during specific
years at priceat 100% of face value

The following is asummary of the Harbors revenue bonds as of 30n20B (amounts expressed in

thousands):
Current
Principal
Year Final Original Due Due
of Redemption Interest Amount of July 1, January 1,
Issue Date Rates Issue 2013 2014 Total Noncurrent
2000 July 1, 2029 5.75% $ 79,405 $ - $ - $ - $ 14,670
2002 July 1, 2019 3.00%7 5. 50 2,420 610 - 610 8,795
2004 January 1,2024 2. 50 %7 6. 0 0 %,030 - 1,430 1,430 19,280
2006 January1,2031 4. 00 %1 5. 25 9,570 - 2,780 2,780 77,640
2007 July 1, 2027 4. 25 %7 5. 50 94,645 4,475 - 4,475 37,920
2010 July 1, 2040 3. 00 %1 5. 7 52064,390 3,360 - 3,360 192,935
$ 505,460 8,445 4,210 12,655 351,240
Add: unamortized premium - - - 1,022
Less:
Unamortized discount - - - (14)
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding - - - (4,254)

$ 8,445 $ 4,210 $ 12,655 $ 347,994

On August 2, 2013, the Harbors Division issued 23,614,000 Series A of 2013 revenue refunding bonds
through a private placement transactigith Capital One Public Funding LLC. These bonds refunded the

Series A of 2000 and Series B of 2002 revenue bonds. This bond refunding provided net present value saving:
of approximately $3,940,000 million as measured from the closing date at a fixgmzhaate of 3.25%.

Debt service requirements to maturity on the busthgss activitie®revenue bonds for fiscal years ending
June30 are aggregated below (amounts expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 47,835 $ 63,716 $ 111,551
2015 50,045 61,494 111,539
2016 52,360 59,200 111,560
2017 54,780 56,765 111,545
2018 57,450 54,125 111,575
2019712023 327,665 225,486 553,151
2024712028 231,595 149,957 381,552
202971 2033 179,255 96,329 275,584
203471 2038 202,150 49,189 251,339
2039712041 68,585 4,591 73,176

$ 1,271,720 $820,852 $ 2,092,572
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The above debt service requirements set forth based upon funding requirements. Principal and interest
payments are required to be funded in theal®l 6month periods, respectively, preceding the date on which
the payments are due. Accordingly, the above debt service requirementgdeseat principal payments

due on July 1, 2013 and January 1, 2014 of $52,960,000 and interest payments due on July 1, 2013 of
$31,843,000.

Revenue Bonds Authorized, but Unissued At June30, 20B, revenue bonds authorized, but unissued
were approximatyg $4,933,099,000

Special Purpose Revenue Bonds HRS ChapteB9A authorizes the State (with legislative approval) to

issue special purpose revenue bonds. Proceeds from those bonds are loaned to certain enterprises for project
deemed to be in the pubiitterest. The bonds are not general obligations of the State and are payable solely
from monies received by the State under project agreements with the recipients of the bond proceeds.
Accordingly, the State has not included those bonds in its basicifihatatements. Bonds outstanding at

June30, 20B, amounted t@pproximately$1,328,058,000At June30, 20B, special purpose revenue

bonds 0f$1,236,750,000vere authorized, but unissued.

Improvement District Bonds 8 The HCDA is authorized to issue ingqmement district bonds under HRS
Chapter206E. Proceeds from the bond issues are utilized to finance the redevelopment of districts

designated by the State Legislature. The bonds are not general obligations of the State and are payable solely
by assessmetiens on the real property of the designated district. Accordingly, the State has not included
those bonds in its basic financial statements. There were no bonds outstanding a8©f 20Me

6. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in the lonterm liabilities for the Primary Government (governmental activities and busiyyess
activities) were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Bal ance 0 Bal ance ®ueWithin

July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013 One Year
General obligation b®MHb348p a $ adh8,990 6 $n 607,417) $ 5,534,921 $ 430,556
Accrued vacation payable 212,783 91,495 (83,505) 220,773 63,290
Revenue bonds payable 468,180 - (27,030) 441,150 28,425
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 169,900 25,111 (39,873) 155,138 39,493
Other postemployment benefits liability 2,530,970 736,968 (201,486) 3,066,452 -
Capital lease obligations 95,340 - (5,461) 89,879 6,092
Total $8,952,521 $1,720,564 $(1,164,772) $ 9,508,313 $ 567,856

Business-Type Activities
Bal ance 0 Bal ance DBueWithin
July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013 One Year

Gener al obligation b®n8sllpayablt e 0 $n e(L,677) $ 32,934 $ 1,758
Accrued vacation and retirement benefits

payable 12,316 5,588 (5,425) 12,479 3,753
Revenue bonds payable 1,370,314 1,350 (45,552) 1,326,112 53,798
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 4,903 1,114 (1,202) 4,815 1,003
Other postemployment benefits liability 47,568 23,709 (2,853) 68,424 -
Prepaid airport use charge fund 48,117 126 (7,446) 40,797 2,865

$ 1,517,829 $ 31,887 $ (64,155) $1,485,561 $ 63,177
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The accrued vacation liability attributable to the goverriman
Governmental Funds. Approximately 79%, 20%, and 1% of the accrued vacation liability has been paid by
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Fund, respectively, during the fiscal year

ended Jun&0, 2013.

Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following aBD®B (amounts expressed in

thousands):

Governmental Funds:
General Fund:
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Fund

Med-Quest Special Revenue Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Proprietary Fund

Med- Quest
General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

General Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Proprietary

Harbors

The due from Capital Projects Fund in the General Fundstermiimarily of funds transferred prior to the
issuance of bonds. Remaining interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recordedeand pay
between funds are made.

Speci al

INTERFUND RECEIVABLE S AND PAYABLES

acti

viti

Due From Due To
$ 20,348 -
89,900 -
10,500 -

- 63

120,748 63

- 89,900
1,597 -

1,597 89,900

Revenue Fund o

- 10,500

63 20,348

63 20,348

- 1,597

$122,408 $122,408

-69-



STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

8. TRANSFERS
Transfers between funds occur when a fund receiving revenamesfers resources to a fund where the
resources are to be expended, or when nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers between funds occur. For the
fiscal yearended Jun80, 203, transfers by fund were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Transfers In Transfers Out

Governmental Funds:
General Fund 0 Nonmajor G8vEeéniblment & | 696,318 d

Capital Projects Fund d Nonlf®Op3or Gov &20Ine

Med-Quest Special Revenue Fund

General Fund 3,556 28,396
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,800 3,365
8,356 31,761

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
General Fund 694,056 49,849
Capital Projects Fund 32,049 129,953
Medquest Fund 3,365 4,800
Other Nonmajor Governmental Funds 88,687 88,687
818,157 273,289
$1,033,917 $ 1,033,917

The General Fund transferred approximag$1,224,00@0 the Nonmajor Governmental Funds for debt
service payments and approximat®82,832,000to subsidize various Special Revenue Funds programs.
Approximately$129,953,00®f Highways receipts were transferred from the Nonmajor Governmental
Funds to the Capital Projects Fund to finance capital projects.
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9.

LEASES
Lease Commitments
Governmental Activities 8 The State leases office facilities and equipment under various operatieg le

expiring through fiscal year 203Buture minimum lease commitments for noncancelable operating leases as
of June30, 208, were as follows (amounts expresgethousands):

Fiscal Year

2014 $15,692
2015 12,808
2016 10,003
2017 6,873
2018 3,918
2019712023 7,849
2024-2028 1,889
2029-2033 1,810
2034-2038 1,757
Total future minimum lease payments $62,599

Rent expenditures for operating leases for the fiscal year ende8Qu2@&13, amounted to approximately
$36,302,000.

On April 14, 2011, an equipment lease purchase agreement between the Department of PybtittBafet
State of Hawaii and Capital One Public Funding, LLC was entered into, to fund the acquisition and
installation of energy conservation equipment at the Halawa Correctional Facility and Oahu Community
Correctional CenteAn escrow agent to provider future vendor payments as requested by the State
deposited the proceeds of $25,512,000 in an escrow Rayinents commend®n May 1, 2012 and

continue through November 1, 2030 at an interest rate of 5.021%.

An equipment lease purchase agreementdmivthe Department of Accounting and General Services of the
State of Hawaii and Capital One Public Funding, LLC was entered into on September 3, 2009, to fund the
acquisition and installation of energy conservation equipment at various State buildmgsawntown
Honolulu district.The proceeds of $12,377,000 were deposited in an escrow fund by an escrow agent to
provide for future vendor payments as requested by the Batments commenced on June 1, 2010 and
continue through June 1, 2026 at anriese rate of 5.389%.

The State issued $41,120,000 in Certificates of Participai@®P® or A C @ 2009 SkriexAadne s 0
November 5, 2009, to fully refund $47,185,000 of the 1998 Series A Certificates and the 2000 Series A
Certificates which procels were used to purchase the Kapolei State Office Building and thelQ@apitict
Building. The net proceeds of $43,490,000 (including a premium of $2,876,000 and after payment of
$503,000 in underwriting fees) were deposited to the Depository Trustabgmpan irrevocable trust with

an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the previously issued outStarding

As a result, these bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability for these bonds has been removed
from theGovernmerWide financial statements. Due to the advance refunding, the State reduced its total
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debt service payments over the next 10 years by $7,487,000 and obtained an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the debt service paymettits otd and new debt) of $7,061,000. Payments
commence on May 1, 2010, and continue through May 1, 2020 with interest rates rangin@o5®%6.

The 2009 Series A Certificates are subject to prepayment prior to their maturity dates in the event of a
casialty loss or governmental taking of all or a portion of the premises subject to the Leases, but are not
otherwise subject to prepayment prior to maturity.

In November2006, the State issued $24,500,000 in COPS to finance the construction of the Kjpealei O

and Conference Facility. The proceeds of the COPS were remitted to a trustee, who will then remit the
amounts to the developer as construction progresses. The holders of the COPS are the current owners of the
Kapolei Office and Conference Facilitycéordingly, the Stafis rental payments for the use of the Kapolei

Office and Conference Facility are paid to a trustee, who then remits those amounts to the holders of the
COPS. Payments commenced on Mag007, and continue through NovemihieR031, wih interest rates

ranging from 3.63% to 5.00%. Title to the Kapolei Office and Conference Facility will transfer to the State
upon the payment of all required rents.

Future minimum lease payments for these capital leases are as follows (amounts expilesssarids):

Fiscal Year
2014 $10,271
2015 10,563
2016 10,901
2017 11,032
2018 11,434
2019712023 32,083
202412028 26,668
2029712032 14,770
Total future minimum lease payments 127,722
Less amount representing interest (37,843)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 89,879
Less current portion (6,092)
Noncurrent portion $83,787

Capital assets acquired under these capital lease are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Asset type:
Buildings and improvements $ 64,385
Equipment 37,889
Total assets $ 102,274
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Lease Rentals
Airports & Airport-Airline Lease Agreement

Airports and the airline compas serving the Airports systeifisignatory airlined) operated pursuant to an
airportairline lease agreement that was originally set to expire or81ul§992. Under the lease agreement,
the signatory airlines each have the nonexclusive right to usediiges, equipment, improvements, and
services of the Airports system and to occupy certain premises and facilities thereon. The lease agreement
was extended under a series of five subsequent agreements, the last of which was execut&894, Jamck
extended the expiration date to J&@e 1997 (hereafter the lease agreement and the five subsequent
agreements are collectively referred to asitbase extension agreem@nfThe lease extension agreement
contains a provision under which the expiratitate is automatically extended on a quarterly basis after
June30, 1997, unless terminated by either party upon at leagy@prior written notice. In October 2007,
the DOT and a majority of the signatory airlines executed the first amended leasmexgreement
effective Januaryt, 2008.

Under the first amended lease extension agreement, the Airports system rates and charges are calculated
using a ratanaking methodology that recovers costs of specific airport system facilities from the signatory
airlines that directly use them. The Airports system rates and charges consist of the follovargtudiye

use terminal charges based on a cost center residuakttitey methodology and recovered on agiprare

foot basis, (2)oint-use premises chges (for nonexclusive use of terminal space, except for commuter
terminal space) based on a cost center residuasestieg methodology and recovered on a per enplaning or
deplaning passenger basis, €8nmuter terminal charges based on appraisal axdeesd on a per

enplaning passenger basis, i@grnational arrivals building charges based on a cost center residual rate
setting methodology and recovered on a per deplaning international passenger Basiingjees based

on a cost center residuate-setting methodology and recovered on a revenue landing landed weight basis
(per 1,006pound units), and (&ystem support charges based on an Airports system residuseitatg
methodology and recovered on a revenue landing landed weightersisG06pound units).

Airportsd Prepaid Airport Use Charge Fund

The DOT and the signatory airlines entered into an agreement in AL8fisto extend the prepaid airport

use charge fund (PAUCF). Net excess payséor fiscal years 1996 through 20i&2e been transferred to

the PAUCF.

Airports & Aviation Fuel Tax

In May 1996, the Department of Taxation issued a tax information release, which stated that effective July
1996, the Hawaii fuel tax will not apply to the sale of bonded aviation/jet fae tarriers departing for

foreign ports or arriving from foreign ports on stopovers before continuing on to their final destination. The
aviation fuel tax amounted &pproximately $4,674,000r fiscalyear2013.

Airportsd System Rates and Charges

Sigratory and nonsignatory airlines were assessed the following rates and charges:

1 Landing fees amounted &pproximately$63,800,00For fiscalyear2013. Airport landing fees are
shown net of aviation fuel tax credits of $3,926,000 for fiscal year,20lBe statement of revenues,
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expenses, and changes in net position, which resulted in net airport landingffe@ 8a#,00Gor

fiscal year 2013. Airport landing fees drased on a computed rate per 1;900nd units of approved
maximum landing weight fogach aircraft used in revenue landings. The Airports interisland landing
fees for signatory airlines are setddt(% of the Airports landing fexefor overseas flights for 2013 and
are scheduled to increase 1.0% annually until it reaches 100%.

1 Nonexclusivgoint-use premise charges for terminal rentat®unted t@approximately $54,838,000r
fiscalyear2013. Overseas and interisland jeinse premise charges were established to recover Airports
system costs allocable to the overseas and interislandhtdsnointuse space based on terminal rental
rates, and are recovered based on a computed rate per revenue passenger landing.

1 Exclusiveuse premise charges amounteapproximately $48,521,000r fiscalyear2013, and were
computed using a fixed ratermmjuare footage. Exclusive use premise charges for terminal rentals
amounted t@pproximately$29,323,00For fiscalyear2013.

1 Airports system support charges amourttegpproximately $1,006or fiscalyear2013. The charges
were established to recouasidual costs of the Airports system and are based on a computed rate per
1,006pound units of approved maximum landingight for each aircraft used in revenue landings. The
Airports system interisland support charges for nonsignatory airlines are32ét aif the Airports
system support charges for overseas flights.

Airports & Other Operating Leases

Airports leases building spaces and improvements to concessionaires, airline carriers, and other airport users.
The terms of those leases range from 4 tyeldss for concessionaires and up to/éars for other airport

users. Concessionaire lease rentals are generally based on the greater of a percentage of sales or a basic
minimum rent. Percentage rent included in concession fees revenues for the fiseabgelalun80, 208,

was approximatel§47,312,000

In fiscal yeas 2006and 2013 Airports converted certain padtie amounts from two lessessd a lessee,
respectivelyjnto promissory notes. The notes bear interest at rates ranging .b&md50%, and are due
over periods ranging from zero to nine years. The balan$20#,000at June30, 203, is due as follows:
$128,000n 2014,$37,000 in 2015, $32,000 in 2016, and $9,0@0eafter.

Concession fees revenues from the DFS Group L.P. (DFS), epérates the #bond (duty free)
concession, the Honolulu International Airport retail concession, ariattelui retail concessign
accounted for approximately 2vof total concession fees revenues for the fiscal year ende@0u2e@B.

DFS was awardka 10year lease agreement for thebiand concessions with the term commencing on June

1, 2007, and terminating on May 31, 2017. On August 31, 2010, the lease was amended under provisions of
Act 33, 2009, Hawaii Session Laws 883. The amended leaseaqnaides for a minimum annual

guarantee rent, as well as percentage rent on annual gross receipts exceeding certain levels. For the period
from June 1, 2007 to May 31, 2011, the minimum annual guarantee rent is $38 million and the percentage
rent is adollows: (1) for total concssion receipts greater than $188lion, but less than $195 million,

22.5% for orairport sales, and 18.5% for edfrport sales; (2) for total concession receipts greater than $195
million, but less than $235 million, 30.0%rforrairport sales and 22.5% edirport sales; (3) for total

concession receipts greater than $235 million, but less than $275 million, 30.0%afopan sales, and

26.5% for offairport sales; and (4) for total concession receipts greater than $#Hiés 80.0% for on
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airport sales and cflirport sales. For the period from June 1, 2011 to May 31, 2017, the minimum annual
guarantee rent is equal to 85% of the total rent paid fdiotivéh year of the lease term. Percentage rent
during this period igalculated the same as during the first four years of the lease term.

In March 2009, DFS was awarded a fiuear lease agreement for the retail concession at the Honolulu
International Airport, with the term commencing on April 1, 2009, and terminatimdgaooh 14, 2014.

Rents were computed as the higher of (1) percentage rent of 20% of gross receipts and (2) minimum annual
guarantee rer(85% of the actual annual fee paid for the preceding) year

Harborsd Aloha Tower Complex Development

The Aloha ToweDevelopment Corporation (ATDC) is a state agency established under HRS Q@&dter
primarily to redevelop the Aloha Tower complex. The complex encompasses Piers 5 to 23 of Honolulu
Harbor. In September993, Harbors entered into a lease with the ATD@sfierring portions of the Aloha
Tower complexo the ATDC. The ATDC is required annually to reimburse Harbors for any losses in
revenues during the term of the lease caused by any action of the ATDC or the developer, and to provide
replacement facilitiesof maritime activities at no cost to Harbors.

In Septembel 993, the ATDC subleased lands surrounded by Piers 8 and 9 and a portion of land surrounded
by Pier 10 to a developer, and the developer and Harbors entered into a capital improvements, maintenance
operations, and securities agreemé@tperations Agreemegjt The Operations Agreement allows Harbors

to operate the harbor facilities at Piers 8, 9, and 10. The lease between the ATDC and the developer requires
the developer to construct, at the depelés cost, various facilities, including a marketplace.

The developer later went into bankruptcy. The subsequent operator of the marketplace assumed the
obligations of the sublease and thge@ations Agreement in Mard®98. This replacement operator has

also gone through a bankruptcy proceeding and there is a new operator who has assumed the same
obligations. Although the marketplace construction was substantially completed, several items odHarbors
construction punch list have yet to be completed aadeing pursued with the new operator. A settlement
has been reached with the new operator to satisfy the punchlist obligations which have a total value of
$3.5million, depending upon when actual payments are made by the operator withiyearsisxmefrane.

An amendment of the lease executed in figealr2006 altered the obligations of the ATDC to reimburse
Harbors on an annual basis. For the fiscal year commencing, 2004, the amendment provides that the
ATDC shall pay $225,000 as a minimum anriede payment. The amendment further provides that for the
fiscal year commencing Jull, 2005, onward, for any year in which the ATDC shall pay for all or any
portion of the cost of personnel and other expenses relating to the Hawaii Harbors Prgpectighagree

that the minimum annual base payment shall be commensurately reduced by such payments.

In addition to the minimum annual base payment, the ATDC shall also pay an amount equal to 50% of the
difference between the total revenues received bATHRC for such fiscal year and the operating expenses

of the ATDC for such fiscal year (equity participation payment) to reduce the amount owed to Harbors for
losses in revenues by the ATDC prior to JU\2004. The amendment provides for an increadecirquity
participation payment as the AT@Crevenues increase. The balance owed to the Harbors Division by
ATDC as of June 30, 2@was approximatel{4,148,000

At its meeting on Jul\t3, 2011, the ATDC Board approved the transfer of the leaseholdshter the
Aloha Tower Marketplace ta private operator
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Harborsd Leasing Operations

Harbors leases land, wharf, and building spaces under simntbnth revocable permits and lebtgrm
leases. The lonterm leases expire during various years througie®aber 2058. Those leases generally
call for rental increases every 5 toyi€ars based on a step or independent appraisals of the fair rental
value of the leased property.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended J80e20B, amounted t&27,922,00and fave been included in rental
revenues.

The following schedule presents the approximate future minimum lease rentals under noncancelable
operating leases of the Proprietary Funds as of 30n20B (amounts expressed in thousands):

Proprietary Funds

Fiscal Year Airports Harbors Total
2014 $116,025 $ 9,425 $125,450
2015 65,622 8,068 73,690
2016 53,048 7,829 60,877
2017 47,149 6,407 53,556
2018 14,519 6,119 20,638
2019712023 38,514 27,906 66,420
2024712028 12,282 25,886 38,168
2029712033 3,414 22,159 25,573
2034712038 1,661 15,129 16,790
203912043 697 11,061 11,758
2044712048 - 6,050 6,050
204971 2053 - 2,617 2,617
2054712058 - 2,388 2,388
2059 - 87 87
$352,931 $151,131 $504,062

Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases

Certain leases of statavned special facilities to parties engaged in airline operations are accounted for as
direct financing leases. At Jud®, 2013 net direct financing leases of Airports consisted ofaHewing
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Total minimum lease payments receivable $ 46,898
Less amount representing interest (20,001)
26,897

Cash with trustee and other 3,405
$ 30,302
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Minimum future rentals to be received under direct financing leases of Airports as @0J208B,
consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2014 $ 2,778
2015 2,770
2016 2,778
2017 2,776
2018 2,788
20197 2023 9,207
2024-2028 27,224

10. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACT IONS WITH COMPONENT UNITS
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation

Amounts payable from the State to the HHFDC include approximately $505,000 of miscellaneous advances
previously made to otheegartments and approximate#11,991,000 of amounts due from DHIrtlated to

a previous agreement to transfer certain land and development rights to the State. Pursuant to this agreement,
the State was required to commence 15 anpayhents 0%$2.2 million to the HHFDC in Decemb2004.

Effective at that time, the HHFDC recorded the sale of the land and development rights and the net present
value of the estimated future cash flows from the State using an imputed interest rate.

Hawaii Health Systems Corporation

In fiscal year 2003HHSC received a $14,000,000 advance from the State to relieve its cash flow shortfall.
At June 30, 203, the full amount was not yet repaid to the SteitdSC also received $498,000 in

advances from the State. $2,000,000 of the $4,500,000 in advaedester repaid to the State in fiscal year
2014.

Hawaii Tourism Authority

During the period from October 1992 through April 1998, the State issued a series of general obligation

bonds whose proceeds were used to fund the construction of the Center.oftussarb obligations of the
State and are secured by the Statebs full faith a
to be primarily funded by an allocated portion of
revenue gemated from the operation of the Center. Through June 30, 2000 and from July 1, 2000 to

June30, 2002, these funds were collected and accounted for by the CCA and Budget and Finance,
respectively.

Effective July 1, 2002, the Convention Center Fund wablkestted by Act253, SLH of 2002. In
accordance with A253, the Convention Center Fund was placed within HTA and was created to receive all

revenues generated from the Centerds operations a
St a Tranéient Accommodations Taxes (TAT). &&3 further states that all funds collected by the
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Convention Center Fund are to be used to pay all expenses arising from the use and operation of the Center
and to pay any and all debt service relating to thegteHbwever, responsibility for debt service payments

to the bondholders on the general obligation bonds referred to above remains with the State through Budget
and Finance.

The creation of the Convention Center Fund provided HTA the ability to reimbudgeBand Finance for

debt service payments in accordance with a predetermined payment plan, which had been assigned to HTA
by the CCA. The terms of the payment plan require HTA to reimburse Budget and Finance for principal and
interest payments at an inted interest rate of 6.0% through January 2 02 7 . HTAOGs abilit
obligations in accordance with the payment plan is dependent upon the funds received by the Convention
Center Fund. At June 30, 2013, the outstanding principal and aggregastiataounts required to be

reimbursed by HTA were $234,260,000 &1@®5,746,000, respectively. The scheduled payments to

maturity for each of the next five years and thereafter inyfaer increments are as follows (amounts

expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 13,135 $ 13,294 $ 26,429
2015 13,920 12,506 26,426
2016 14,755 11,671 26,426
2017 15,645 10,786 26,431
2018 16,580 9,847 26,427
2019712023 99,080 33,063 132,143
2024712028 61,145 44,579 105,724

$234,260 $135,746 $370,006

Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund

On June2b, 2002, Act 179, SLH of 2002, was signed into law by the Governor. The law provides that all
interest earned from the principal in the Hurricane Relief Fund be transferred and depositedStatethe
General Fund each year that the Hurricane Relief Fund remains in existence, beginning with fiscal year
2003. For the year ended JWB®& 2013, interest earned and transferred into the State General Fund
amounted to $319,000.

On May 26, 2011, Act 65LH of 2011 was signed into law by the Governor. This law appropriaded $
million from the HHRF into the General Fund to help balance thedtideal year 201 budget. The law
authorizes the Governor to appropriate additional monies from the Fumeessary, to balance the fiscal
year 201 State Budget. In that regard, the Fund pledged to transfer an addi6@mallfon to the General
Fund as of Jung0, 2011 and made the transfer July 2011.

The transfers to the General Fund had reduced thadgof the Fund to levels below what would be

adequate to buy reinsurance in the event of a hurricane. However, Act 62 established a mechanism to
replenish the Fund from fiscal years 2014 and 2015 general excise tax revenues and authorizes the Fund to
issue $75 million in revenue bonds through June 30, 2015. The Fund has not issued any revenue bonds as of
June 30, 204
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11.

On July 3, 2013, Act 266LH of 2013was signed into law by the Governor. This law appropriatedb$55
million from general excise taxvenues for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 to be deposited into the Fund. The
fiscal year 2014 transfer was made in September 2013. Act 266 proposed to further accelerate
recapitalization of fiscal reserves, by transferring an additionaiion to the furd in fiscal year 2014.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Employees Retirement System
Plan Description

All eligible employees of the State and counties are required by HRS CB8ptebecome members of the

ERS, a cossharing multipleemployer defined benefit publemployee retirement plan. The ERS provides
retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. The ERS is governed by a Board of Trustees. All
contributions, benefits, and eligibility requirements are established by HRS C8@ated can be amded

by legislative action. The ERS issues a comprehensive annual financial report that is available to the public.
That report may be obtained by writing to the ERS at 201 Merchant Straget] 820, Honolulu,

Hawaii 96813.

Prior to June30, 1984, the jain consisted of only a contributory plan. In 1984, legislation was enacted to add
a new noncontributory plan for members of the ERS who are also covered under Social Security. Police
officers, firefighters, judges, elected officials, and persons employgdsitions not covered by Social

Security are precluded from the noncontributory plan. The noncontributory plan provides for reduced
benefits and covers most eligible employees hired afterIunEd84. Employees hired before that date

were allowed to aatinue under the contributory plan or to elect the new noncontributory plan and receive a
refund of employee contributions. All benefits vest after five and ten years of credited service under the
contributory and noncontributory plans, respectively.

Both plans provide a monthly retirement allowance based on the emf@ge years of credited service,

and average final compensation (AFC). The AFC is the average salary earned during the five highest paid
years of service, including the vacation paymdrihe employee became a member prior to Janbary

1971. The AFC for members hired on or after that date is based on the three highest paid years of service,
excluding the vacation payment.

On Julyl, 2006, a new hybrid contributory plan became effectivsyant to Act 179, SLH of 2004.

Members in the hybrid plan are eligible for retirement at age 62 with 5 years of credited service or age 55
and 30 years of credited service. Members receive a benefit multipli€®6ff@ each year of credited

service inthe hybrid plan. The benefit payment options are similar to the current contributory plan. Almost
58,000 current members, all members of the noncontributory plan and certain members of the contributory
plan were eligible to join the new hybrid plan. Mosthe new employees hired from Jdly2006, were

required to join the hybrid plan.

-79-



STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Funding Policy

Most covered employees of the contributory plan are required to contribute 7.8% of their salary. Police
officers, firefighters, investigators of the depagtrts of the County Prosecuting Attorney and the Attorney
General, narcotics enforcement investigators, and public safety investigators are required to contribute
12.2% of their salaryMost covered employees of the hybrid plan are required to contril$ted.their
salary.The funding method used to calculate the total employer contribution requirement is the Entry Age
Normal Actuarial Cost Method. Effective July 2005, employer contribution rates are a fixed percentage of
compensation, including the moal cost plus amounts required to pay for the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability.

The Statés contribution requirements as of Julte 203, 2012, and 2Q.1, were approximately

$418,415,000, $396,380,000, abdiB8,242,000, respectively. The State conteld84.7%, 108.6%, and
105.3%0f its required contribution for those years, respectively. Covered payroll for the fiscal year ended
June30, 208, was approximatel$2,694,852,000

PostRetirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits
Plan Descriptions

The State provides certain health care and life insurance benefits to all qualified employees. Pursuant to
Act 88, SLH of 2001, the State contributes to the EUTF, an agent miétigidoyer defined benefit plan

that replaced the Hawaii Public Employees leBund effective July 1, 2003. The EUTF was established
to provide a single delivery system of health benefits for state and county workers, retirees, and their
dependents. The EUTF issues an annual financial report that is available to the pubftepdihatay be
obtained by writing to the EUTF at 201 Merchant Street, Suite 1520, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813.

For employees hired before July1996, the State pays the entire base monthly contribution for employees
retiring with 10 years or more of creditedrvice, and 50% of the base monthly contribution for employees
retiring with fewer than 10 years of credited service. A retiree canadautily plan to cover dependents.

For employees hired after Jud@, 1996 but before Jully, 2001, and who retireith less than 1§ears of

service, the State makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least 10 years but fewer than 15 years of
service, the State pays 50% of the base monthly contribution. For those retiring with at least 15 years but
fewer tham25 years of service, the State pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. For those employees
retiring with at least 25 years of service, the State pays 100% of the base monthly contribution. Retirees in
this category can elect a family plan to cover deleats.

For employees hired on or after Jdly2@1, and who retire witkess than 10 years of service, the State

makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least 10 years but fewer than 15 years of service, the State
pays 50% of the base monthdgntribution. For those retiring with at least 15 years but fewer than 25 years

of service, the State pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. For those employees retiring with at least
25years of service, the State pays 100% of the base monthly coiomibOnly single plan coverage is

provided for retirees in this category. Retirees can elect family coverage but must pay the difference.
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Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

Effective Julyl, 2006, the State implemented GASB StatemendN®. ( A & A &iBancial Reporting

for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than PensiBASB 43 establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for plans that provide other postemployment benefits (OPEB) other than pensions.
GASB 43 requires defined benefit @B plans that are administered as trust or equivalent arrangements to
prepare a statement of plan assets and a statement of changes in plan assets.

The reporting of active and retiree (including their respective beneficiaries) healthcare benefits provided
through the same plan should separate those benefits for accounting purposes between active and retire
healthcare benefits. Accordingly, the State reports the retiree healthcare benefits as OPEB in conformity
with GASB 43 and the active employee healtlechenefits as risk financing in conformity with GASB
Statement Nol0, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance,lssues
amended.

Effective Julyl, 2007, the State implemented GASB StatemendN®. ( i G A S&ouAtitg@nd,

Financial Reporting by Employgfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensiwhsgch requires

reporting the OPEB liability on an accrual basis. Because the Statement was implemented on a prospective
basis, the OPEB liability at transition wasaer

The State is required by GASB 45 to obtain an actuarial valuation every othekyeamtuaial valuation
was performed as duly 1, 2011.

The Stateb6s base contribution |levels to EUTF are
the difference if the base contribution is less than the cost of the monthly premium.
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The Statebs base contr i but-asgowgolamourt hesessaryte pravide r e nt |
current benefits to r eobstforeaehsplaniddaleulat8dbasedeod the aanuat u a |
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters in GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is

projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not
to exceed 30 years. The following table presents the annual OPEB cost, contributions made, the net OPEB
liability, and the funding status for the EUBRd UH for each of the plans for the fiscal year ended 30ne

2013 (amountgxpresseth thousands):

EUTFE UH
Annual required contribution $ 853,794 $ 141,099
Interest on net OPEB obligation 111,586 16,538
Adjustment to annual required contribution (97,813) (15,035)
Annual OPEB cost 867,567 142,602
Contributions made (236,200) (41,700)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 631,367 100,902

Net OPEB obligation o beginning780487 year 413462
Net OPEB obligation &6 end of $y 8,420,854 $ 514,364

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) July 1, 2011 $ 11,706,157 $ 1,965,769
Funded OPEB plan assets - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) July 1, 2011 $ 11,706,157 $ 1,965,769

Funded ratio - % -
Covered payroll $ 2,176,996 $ 517,856
UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 537.7% 379.6%

%

The Statés annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEBobligation for fizal year 201&ndthe twopreceding years were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual Annual OPEB Cost NET OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
EUTF June 30, 2013 $ 867,567 27.2% $ 3,420,854
June 30, 2012 856,589 27.0% 2,789,487
June 30, 2011 906,117 25.3% 2,155,055
UH June 30, 2013 $ 142,602 29.2% $ 514,364
June 30, 2012 136,078 30.0% 413,462
June 30, 2011 150,637 25.7% 318,143
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into therdutixamples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
thefuture. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, is designed to present multiyear trend information that shows whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is incregr decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities

for benefits.

On July 3, 2013, the Governor signed into law Act 288 of 2013. Act 268 requires tHeUTFto establish

and administer separate trust accounts for each public eengtoythe purpose of receiving irrevocable
employer contributions to prefund paemnployment health and other benefit costs for retirees and their
beneficiaries. It establishes the Hawaii EUTF Trust Fund Task Force to examine further steps to address the
unfunded liability and requires all public employers to make annual required public employer contributions
effective fiscal year 2014. Commencing fiscal year 2019, the annual public employer contribution shall be
equal to the annual required contributias,determined by an actuary retained by the EUTF board. In any
fiscal year should an employer's contribution be less than the annual required public employer contribution,
the difference shall be transferredthe appropriate trust accodrdm a porton of all general excise tax
revenues, for the State, or transient accommodatizongvenues, for the countidhe State hadetermined

that this law did not affect the OPHBbility as of June 30, 2013.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections obenefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The aatuaethods and assumptions used include

technigues that are designed to reduce the effects oftehoriolatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and

the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the-terg perspective of the calculations. Sigrafic

methods and assumptions were as follows:

EUTF and UH
Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll
Remaining amortization period 30 years (Open)
Asset valuation method Fair value of assets, plus accrued contributic
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 4.0%
Projected salary increases 3.5%
Healthcare inflation rates:
Medical & Rx Pre-65 (HMSA) 7.5% initial, 5.0% ultimate reached in 2020
Medical & Rx Pre-65 (HMSA & Kaiser-HSTA)  8.0% initial, 5.0% ultimate reached in 2020
Medical & Rx Post-65 (HMSA) 8.0% initial, 5.0% ultimate reached in 2020
Medical & Rx Post-65 (Kaiser) 12.0% initial, 5.0% ultimate reached in 202(
Dental 4.0% initial and ultimate
Vision 3.0% initial and ultimate
Medicare Part B 5.0% initial and ultimate
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Effective July 1, 2013, the active contracts for medical, prescription drug, dental, vision, supplemental medical
drug and life insurance were extended through June 30, 2014.

The 2013egislature passed Act 226, SLH of 2013 that among other things, prohibited mandatory mail order.
The EUTF voluntarily implemented Act 226 on October 1, 2013 for active employees and will implement Act
226 on January 1, 2014 for retirees.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

General Obligation Bondsd The State has issued general obligation bonds in which repayments,
including interest, are reimbursed from specific revenue sources of the Special Revenue Funds with terms
corresponding to that of thelated general obligation bonds (see NéteAt June30, 20B, outstanding
commitments to repay general obligation bonds consisted of the following (amounts expressed in
thousands):

Special Revenue Funds:

Highways $12,511
Agriculture 6,632
Natural Resources 2,687
All Other 196

$22,026

Accumulated Sick Leave Sick leave accumulated the rate of one and thrgearters working days for

each month of service without limit, but may be taken only in the event of illness and is not convertible to
pay upon termirtion of employment. However, a&e employee who retires or leaves governtiservice

in good standing with 68ays or more of unused sick leave is entitled to additional service credit in the
ERS. At June0, 20B, accumulated sick leave was approximagdy052,971,000.

Intergovernmental Expenditurés In accordance with Act30, SLH of 2002, 45% of revenues generated
by the transient accommodations tax are to be distributed to the counties.

Guarantees of Indebtedne®sThe State is authorized to guarantee indebtedness of others at a maximum
amount ofapproximately $233,500,006r aquaculture/agriculture loans, Hawaiian Home Lands loans,
various projects involving mortgage loans for rental homes made by private nonprofit corporations or
governmental corporations, mortgage loans for housing projects, and rental assistandenshiifja
Component Unit® HHFDC and HPHA. The State haet paid, nor does it expect to pay, any amounts as
a result of such guarantees as of BMe20B.

Proprietary Fund Type & Enterprise Funds
Construction and Service Contracts

At June30, 208, theEnterprise Funds had commitments of approximaah2,847,000or construction
and service contracts.

-84-



STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Contingencies

The State has been named as defendant in numerous lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of
operations. To the extent that theaame of such litigation has been determined to result in probable
financial loss to the State, such loss has been accrued in the basic financial statements. Of the remaining
claims, a number of claims may possibly result in adverse judgments againstiehéiBwever, such claim
amounts cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. The litigation payments relating to the fiscal years
ended Jun80, 203, 2012, and 241, approximate&17,790,000, $3,668,000, afid, 130,000 respectively.

Tobacco Settlement

In Novemberl998, the Stateettled its tobacco lawsuit aampof a nationwide settlement involving 46 other
states and various tobacco industry defendants. Under the settlement, those tobacco companies that have
joined in the Master Settlement Agreemeiit pay the State approximately $1.3 billion over ay@&ar

period. The State is to receive proceeds from this settlement in JamabApril of the subsequent year

through 2004 and thereafter on Apk8 of each subsequent year. The State has recgipedxamately
$48,579,00@uring the fiscal year ended Jud@, 201B. As of June30, 203, the State expects to receive
$27,600,00Gor the first six months of fiscal 2@1

Office of Hawaiian Affairs and Ceded Lands

In 1898, the former Republic of Hawaiatrsferred certain lands to the Unied at e s . Upon Haw
admission to the Union in 1959, the United at es reconveyed title to thos
Landsod) to the State to be hpubldedacabn;d2)bettednéent ofthet r u s t
conditions of native Hawaiians; (8gvelopment of farm and home ownership;ri@king public

improvements; and (5rovision of land for public use. On Novemiygrl978, the State Constitution was

amended expressly to provideat t he Ceded Lands, excluding any .
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended, were to be held as a public trust for native
Hawaiians and the general public, and to estal®idiA to administer and manage the prede and income

derived from a pro rata portion of the Ceded Lands as provided by law, to better the conditions of native
Hawaiians. In 1979, the Legislature adopted HRS Chdpter ( fi ClhOadp)t,e rwhi ¢ h, as amen
specified, among other thingsattOHA expend 20% of the funds derived by the State from the Ceded
Lands for the betterment of native Hawaiians. Si
its disposition of the proceeds and income from the Ceded Lands have been chaje@éiy and

individual native Hawaiians, Hawaiians and fAgawaiians. Claims have been made under Article XII,

Sections 4 and 6 of the Hawaii Constitution to the effect that the State has breached the public trust, and

OHA has not received from the Cedeahds all of the income and proceeds that it should be receiving.

Except for the claims pending in t@HA v. HHAcase discussed below, the Legistat the $ate and

federal courts, and thgovernorhave acted to address the concerns raised. Howbeeg,dan be no

assurance that in the future there will nonkegv claimsasserted against the State made under Aifiidle

Sections4 and 6 of the Hawaii Constitution that the State has breached the public trust, or that OHA is not
receiving from the CedkLands all of the income and proceeds that it should be receiving.

In OHA v. HHA OHA filed suit on July27, 1995 OHA v. HHA, etl., Civil No. 95-268207 (' Cir.))
against the Hawai.i Housing Authority ¢usilge AHHA, 0
Authority, as described below), the executive director of the HHA, the board members of the HHA and the
Director of Finance to secure additional compensation and an itemized accounting of the sums previously
paid to OHA for five specifically ideni#d parcels of Ceded Lands which were transferred to the HHA for
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its use to develop, construct and manage additional affordable public rental housing units under HRS
Chapter201G. On Januaryl, 2000, all proceedings in this suit were stayed pendingahaiHSupreme
Court 0s QHAceta. v. State of iHawaii, et aCjvil No. 94-020501 (I Cir.). The Septembet2,

2001 decision of the Hawaii Supreme Co@HA v. State of Hawaif6 Haw. 399 (2001)) includes

elements, with which OHA disagrees t hat woul d requir e OHAwHiHAansdal of
the case remains pending.

The HousingFinance andevelgmentCorporationand the HHA were merged into the Housing and
Community Development Corporation of Hawaii, after the akasscribedsuits against them were filed.
This corporation subsequently was bifurcated intoHiF-DC and theHPHA.

The State intends to defenGHAvHHWpor ously against OH

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

In 1991, the Legislature enacted HRS Ckapt7 4, ent i tl ed Al ndi vidual Cl ai
Hawaiian Home Lands Trust, o which established a p
Homes Commi ssion Act of 1920 (the AHHCAO) to file
believed they suffered from a breach of trust caused by an act or omission of an official of the State between
August21, 1959, when Hawaii became a state, and 3an&988. Claims were required to be filed no later

than AugusB1, 1995. There were 4,32laims filed by 2,753 individuals.

The process was a three step process whiclve@an with informal proceedings presided over by the

Hawaiian Home Lands Trust I ndividual Cl ai ms Revie
nonbinding findngs and advisory opinions for each claim;2) ovi ded f or t he Legi sl i
consideration of the Panel s findings and advisor
economic damages the Legislature deemed appropriate; aaltb(@d claimants to bring de novo civil

actions by Decemb& 1 , 1999 if they were not satisfied with
the Legislatureds response to the Panel 6s recomme

In 1997, the Legislature declared itsintenpto st pone acting upon the Panel ¢
claims had been reviewed and forwarded to it. Legislation to allow the Panel and the Legislature until
SeptembeB0, 2000 to act on all claims, and postpone the deadline for unsatisfied clainf@atsuit until
DecembeBl, 2000, was adopted by the Legislature, but vetoed by the Governor in the 1999 regular session,
and the Panel sunsetted on Decen®igr1999.

On DecembeR9, 1999, three claimants filed a class action lawsuit in the statgt @ourt for declaratory

and injunctive relief and for general, special and punitive damages for breach of trustianfiduty under
HRS Chapter§73 and 674violation of the due process, equal protection and native rights clauses of the
State Congtution, and breach of contract under HRS Chapédr.

Kalima etal. v. State of Hawaii &l., Civil No. 99-4771 12VSM (#Ci r KaJima(ofy) Five other

claimants filed similar individual claims actions for themselves on or before Dec8mkE®99. The

plaintiffs in these other actions stipulated to stay all proceedings in their actions pending the resolution of all
guestions of law ifKalimal that are common to the questions of law presented in their suits. Following the
dismissal without prejude of the actions of four of the five claimants, only one lawAgjuiar v. State of

Hawaii, etal., Civil No. 99-612 (3% Cir.) (i A g w), iapending and stayed.
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On March30, 2000, the three named plaintiffsSialimal filed a second class action lamit in the state
circuit court for declaratory and injunctive relief, and for damages under HRS Céaptdr, f or

the P
and Legislaturebés alleged failure to 64 medy their
Kalima etal. v. State of Hawaijietal., Civil No. 00-1-1041-03 ('C i r KaJima(ldi ) All proceedings in
this action were stayed by stipulation, pending the resolution of those questions oKkinial that are
common to botlKalimal andKalimall. Kalima I, Kalima llandAguar are collectively referred to under

this caption as the Alndividual Claims Cases. 0

The plaintiffs inKalima I filed a motion for partial summary judgment and asked the circuit court to declare

that they were entitled to sue for breach of trust and sxadamages under HRS Chapter 674. The State

moved to dismiss the complaint and all claim&alima | for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. The circuit
court granted the plaintiffsd motion atakandeni ed t
interlocutory appealn an opinion issued Jurd®, 2006, the Hawaii Supreme Court affirmed the circuit
courtodos determination that the plainti f6V4sbuvdiedr e en
not have a right to sue under HRS Qtes661, and remanded the case back to the trial court for further
proceedings.

The plaintiffs inKalima | have since filed first and second amended complaints to agidibiiffs, and to
divide the class into nine subclasses to include those with dairdamages for injuries allegedly suffered
by (1) allegedly waiting too long to receive a homesteadbég barred from or delayed in receiving a
homestead by allegedly ultra vires rules,réeiving allegedly uninhabitable homesteadsal¢yedlylost
applications, (5pllegedly defectively constructed homes or infrastructuregl{@yedly being prevented

from or delayed in succeedi ngthetmannerinwhich thenldalssvere r s p
administered, (8lhe manner in whicthe leases were administered andot®er allegedly wrongful
conduct . The court granted the plaintiffs6 motio

and after a six week bifurcated trial to determine liability only, the cijedge forKalimall ruled on
November3, 2009 that the State committed three breaches of trust between 1959 and 1988, and further
proceedings were necessary to determine the amount-of-potket damages the waiting list subclass
members sustained, if ynas a result of those breaches.

By orders entered on Novemlizt, 2009 and Jurg 2011, respectively, the Waiting List Liability Subclass
certified for purposes of determining liability was recertified for the purpose of establishing causation and

thef act of damages (over the Stateds objection), al
the purpose of devising a model for use on a alade basis to determine the amount of damages subclass
members may be awarded. Notice to the putatiembers of the Waiting List Damages Model Subclass of

the right to oput of the Waiting List Damages Model Subclass was mailed to all members of the Waiting

List Liability Subclass on Mag2, 212, and published on the DHHLeWsite, and in the DHHL ar@dHA

newsletters.

Multiple motions to establish a damages model were filed and heard between2@atcind Augusdl,

2012. Orders were entered on Janzay2012, and Februadyand 14, 2013. A three day trialestablish

fair market landentstos e i n | i eu of testimony or documents t
loss, if any, for each year the claimant waited to be awarded or offered a residential homestead on Oahu was
completed on Octob&, 2013. However, to date, no proceedingrocpdures have been scheduled or

devised to apply the damages model to determine whether and how much each claimant would be awarded

in damagesOn January 13 and 14, 2014, the parties were scheduled to participate in a private mediation on
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the mattersic ont r over sy in the case, pursuant to the ci
in Participate in Private Mediation, etc., filed on September 13, 2013.

Nelson- In the First Amended Complaint filed on Octoli€; 2007 inNelson etl., v.Hawaiian Homes
Commission, el., Civil No. 07-1-166308BIA (1*Ci r Nelsor( )i, t he plaintiffs all
breached their duties under Artictdl, Sectionsl and 2 of the Hawaii Constitution by not providing

sufficient funds to DHHL to plkee as many beneficiaries on residential, agricultural and pastoral homesteads
within a reasonable period of time, and provide a fully functioning farm, ranch and aquaculture support
program to maximize utilization of the homestead lands. They also #ilgigine Hawaiian Homes

Commission and its members are in breach of the Hawaiian Home Lands trust for failing to obtain sufficient
funds from the Legislature, and otherwise enforcing the provisions of AXikI&ectionsl and 2 of the

Hawaii Constitutim, including filing suit against the State. Further, they allege that DHHL and the

Hawaiian Homes Commission and its members have violated the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act (the
AHHC Acto) by | easing Hawai i an h comemertiad dedelopmentsl e | y
that are unrelated to actual homesteading programs, and without adhering to the requirements of
Section207(a) of the HHC Act.

As beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Home Lands trust and the HHC Adydls®nplaintiffs asked the court

to issue a mandatory injunction requiring DHHL and the Hawaiian Homes Commission and its members to
seek, and the State to provide, sufficient funds for DHHL to place as many beneficiaries on the land within a
reasonable period of time. On Janu2ty20® , t he court granted the defen
summary judgment rejecting all claims that are based on the theory that the Hawaii State Legislature, the
State of Hawaii, or any State agency or employee, is required to appropriate, requestwisefirovide or

secure particular amounts of money for DHHL and its programs now and in the future. The court concluded
that the political question doctrine barred it from deciding those claims because initial policy determinations
thatthe courtlacked ut hori ty to make were needed to resolve
determination of Asuf fi ci e XN Sestionh sfdhe Hasvaii tChnatitution. e r m i

A final judgment in favor of the State was filed on Septer28, 2009, and the plaintiffs appealed. On
Januaryl?, 2011, the Intermediate Court of Appeals concluded that the political question doctrine did not
preclude the courts from deciding the plaieatvi ffs
the circuit court for further proceedings. The State and Director of Finance filed an application for writ of
certiorari in the Hawaii Supreme Court to reverse
and affirm t hdjudgmentcon May, 201d.uln thebHawaii Supreme Court, the DHHL, and

the Hawaiian Homes Commission and its members changed their position, and no longer supported the
political question doctrine defense.

(@}

On May 9, 2012 the Hawaii Supreme Coucbncluded that there are no judicially manageable standards for
determining Asuf fi ci davelopisglote,dAoank, amd (3ehabiliptios gagectn f (1)
which are the first three items listed in Artidldl, Sectionl. TheHawaii Supreme Gurt thus heldhat
plaintiffsdéd claims with respect to those items sh
Intermediate Court of Appeals erred in not so concluding. The Hawaii Supreme Court did, however, uphold
the Intermediate Qot of Appeals as to iterf@) of Article XII, Sectionl, concluding that there are judicially
manageable standards to determine what constitute
expenses. 0 Det er mi nat i o rationih the cicuitcoud omogemand. Parsuantto s f
the Judgment on Appeal issued on BBy 2013, the case has been remanded to the circuit court for further
proceedings.
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The State intends to defend vigorously against the claims against the Staté iheateonaining Individual
Claims Cases and Melson The State is currently unable to predict with reasonable certainty the

magni tude of its potential Iliability, if any, for
Individual ClaimsCass, and some of Ndlsen plmainhhe fredpedtai ms p
could have a materi al adverse effect on the State

Empl oyeesd Retirement System

InKa h o6 o h a nab\h Gtateof HawdiCivil No. 02-1-1001-04 (GWBC) (£' Cir.), the plaintiffs
challenged certain | egislation o@a)lotauthmizedthee St a
State to apply the ER&tuarial investment earnings in excess of 10% for fiscal years 1997 and 1998 toward
the State and county employeesd annual contributic
plaintiffs asked the court to declare A@O unconstitutional, to enjoin the State from taking future actions
inconsistent with ArticleXVI, Section2 of the Hawaii Constitution, and to require the State to pay damages

to the ERS in the amount of $346r8llion plus lost earnings and prand posjudgment interest, costs, and
attorneysd fees.

The plaintiffs were allowed to amend their complaint to addstate civil service employees as plaintiffs,

and their motion to certify a class, consisting of all current and former public employees other than members
of the legislature, judges and attorneys in the Department of the Attorney General, was gratitets Mo

made by the trustees of the ERS to intervene as plaintiffs and by the City and County of Honolulu to
intervene as a defendant were granted. The Court made the counties of Hawaii, Maui, and Kauai intervenor
defendants.

The plaintiffs filed two motios for partial summary judgment (as to liability only), and the State filed a

motion to dismiss and a motion for summary judgment against the claims of the plaintiffs as well as the
ERSO trustees. The Statebds moaniMayd6, 2003. Aniogleni ss was
granting summary judgment in favor of the State and against all of the claims of the plaintiffs and ERS
trustees, and denying the plaintiffsd?242003 Teti ons
county intervenodefendants filed a motion to alter or amend the order and judgment cR7JIRGOD3. By

court rule, the motion was deemed denied on SeptedH@003, and notices of appeal from the e

2003 order and judgment were filed the plaintiffs and the RS trustees on Octob27, 2003. The State

cross appealed the order denying its motion to dismiss on Nov&mb@d3. On Decembdg, 2003, the

circuit court entered an order granting the county intervenor defendants motion to alter or amend the

June24, 2003 order and judgment, and filed an amended summary judgment order and an amended final
judgment. The plaintiffs and the ERS trustees filed notices of appeal from the amended order and amended
judgment on Decemb@3, 2003. The appeals from the amethdrder and amended judgment were

dismissed on ApriB0, 2004.

In a 32 decision filed on Julg23, 2007, the Hawaii Supreme Court vacated the 2dan2003 order and

judgment, and remanded the case to the circuit court with instructionseotét )an ater dismissing the
plaintiffsdé cl ai ms entenpsumnmay jpdgmentfagajnat tha Ssatk iana tn fagonof the( 2 )
ERSO trustees on the trust eXB6ola@dkAttleVl,&ectonyoftheu d g me
Hawaii Constitub n, and (3) di spose of the ERSO trusteesbod
In concludingthat Ack 00 was wunconstitutional, the makKuwrity I
Section2 [of the Hawaii Constitution] prohibiting ipairment of accrued benefits is the protection of the
sources of t h06 retroscivelyedivestedsthe ERScof $34Bullion of employer
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contributions for 1997, 1998, and 1999, thereby eliminating the sources used to fund constitutionally
protect ed O6accrued 1Ddnafnidtes dni nemdd éd Aet reti rement sys

integrity.o Af Ul nder the circumstances of th[e]
the ERSOG trustees gceudgtletf., t(hlen EtRIS&i rt rpursa yeers faosrk e c
and agents [be enjoined] from any further skimmin
other or further actionthat(®i | I di mi ni sh, i mpai r o rrial owestreentwi se o6&
earnings; or (byvi | | reduce the Employersodo periodic contri!l

accordance with the Chap#®8 and sound actuarial practice; ordth)erwise will impair the contractual
rights of t heexaseigagdinebefare thie)circuit Tourt to fashion the order the Supreme Court
directed the circuit court to enter, and, if nece
judgment claims.

Hawaii EmployefUnion Health Benefits Trust Fund

INJune2 006, certain retired public employees (APl ain
Court, State of Hawaii, against the State, all of the counties of the Stai)Tieand the EUTF Board of
Trustees (col | encttsi@epedrign Evetsdnectl. Vv.Sm@te ef Halvaii, el., Civil

No.06-1-1142-06, First Circuit Court, State of Hawaii. In relevant part, Plaintiffs claimed that Defendants
violated their constitutional, contractual and statutory rights under AKMIeSection2 of the Hawaii

Constitution and HRS Chapte8Z and 87A by not providing health care benefits to retirees and their
dependents that are equivalent to those provided to active employees and their dependents.

Following a related proceedingat commenced in 2007, the Hawaii Supreme Court held that health benefits
for retired state and county empl oy &¥l,sSectooo$t i t ut e
the Hawaii Constitution, but that HRS Chapter 87A (particularly HRS Segtiar23) did not require that

retiree health benefits reasonably approximate those provided to active empBgeegerson v. State

122H a w a4D19 R.3d282 (2010). The Hawaii Supreme Court did not decide when retiree health benefits

i a c cr u etalb& pretectedaunder ArtickVI, Section2 of the Hawaii Constitution nor did it decide

whether the enactment of any part of HRS Chapiér violated ArticleXVI, Section2 of the Hawaii

Constitution.

In December 2010, Plaintiffs filed a Second Amended@laint in Civil N0.06-1-1140-06 (nkaJames
Dannenberg, edl. v. State of Hawaii, &fl.) claiming that Defendants have violated their constitutional,
contractual and statutory rights under ArtigI|, Section2 of the Hawaii Constitution and HRS

Chaper 87 by failing to provide them and other State and county retirees withedth care benefits that

are equivalent to those provided to State and county active employees; andéaltfbrare benefits that

are equivalent to benefits provided toartlemployeéeneficiaries and dependdmneficiaries, regardless

of age. The Second Amended Complaint also claims that State and county employees who retired prior to
July 1, 2001, are contractually entitled to have their employers pay for all thetin péat premiums despite

the contribution caps in SectioB%A-33 through 87A36, HRS. The Second Amended Complaint also

claims that the EUTF was negligent in failing to properly interpret constitutional, statutory, and contractual
requirements when it eated retiree health plans. Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief and
monetary damages. The monetary damages sought atée @nount that retirees and their dependents

have had to personally pay for health care because Defendants waftesiétl to provide them with the

health benefits that they were constitutionally or contractually entitled tdaf@ages for health care that

retirees and their dependents have foregone because Defendants refused or failed to provide them with the
heath benefits that they were constitutionally or contractually entitled to; argh(Bages for pain and

suffering. OnAugus2e 9, 2013, the First Circuit Court entere
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Class Action Certification. The class certifisdall employees (and their dependbeheficiaries) who

began working for the Territory of Hawaii, State of Hawaii, or any political subdivision thereof, before

July 1, 2003, and who have accrued or will accrue a right toenetistment health benefits a retiree or
dependenbeneficiary of such a retiree. This includes: tl@se who have not yet received any

postretirement health benefits from Defendants as a retiree or depdratadiciary of such a retiree; and

(b) those who have received angspretirement benefits from Defendants since Jyl2003 as a retiree or
dependenbeneficiary of such a retiree. For purposes of damages only, if any, the class shall also include
the estates and heirs of any deceased retiree or deceased dependierary of a retiree who is or was a
member of the class. On Decemtte®d , 2012, Pl aintiff filed Plaintif
Judgment seeking judgment in their favor and against Defendants on the liability issues in the lawsuit, i.e.,
that Plairtiffs be granted their requested declaratory and injunctive relief, and that Defendants be found

liable for monetary damages in an amount to be determined later. (26)@Q13, State Defendants filed

St ate Defendant s6é Mot i otseeKing judgiemtrinttieiafdvor 8nd agaiast y J u d g
Plaintiffs on all of Plaintiff s dStaeDeendastshaveat ar e
violated the constitutional, contractual, and statutory rights of Plaintiffs by not providing healthecefits

for retirees and their dependents that are equivalent to those provided to active employees and their
dependents; (State Defendants have violated the constitutional and contractual rights of Plaintiffs by not
providing health care benefits tetirees and their dependents that are equivalent to those provided to other
employeebeneficiaries and dependdrgneficiaries, regardless of age; and3&te Defendants were

negligent in providing health benefits to retirees and their dependents.mBtonswerescheduled to be

heard by the First Giuit Court on Octobe80, 2013. The Court advised the parties that it would issue a
decision after further review of the partiesd men
waitingf or t he Courtodés decision on the motions.

Department of Education

Consolidated class action cases have been brought against the State Department of Education (DOE) on
behalf of substitute teachers alleging that the DOE has failed to pay substitutest@aaleordance with
the rate provided in the Hawaii Revised Statutes from July 1,1986e 30, 2005.

An adverse ruling against the State was made by the First Circuit Court on a motion for summary judgment
regarding liability issues. The adverse rglimas the subject of an interlocutory appeal to the Intermediate
Court of Appeals, which issued its ruling on October 30, 2009, affirming the adverse ruling. The Supreme
Court denied certiorari on August 16, 2010 and the case was remanded to the CinduitrGo

determination of damages.

In November 2013, partial settlement agreement was reached whereby thea§tatd tgpay $14,031,000

to resolve the claims for backpay (mandatory fringe benefits). The claims fjudgraent interest and

at t o rfeesergmmil to be determined. The partial settlement agreement amount was appropriated by the
2013 Legislature.

-901-



STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The State records a liability for risk financing and insurance related losses if it is determined that a loss has
been incurrd and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The State retains various risks and insures
certain excess layers with commercial insurance companies. The excess layers insured with commercial
insurance companies are consistent with the prior fiscal yeledselaims have not exceeded the coverage
provided by commercial insurance companies in any of the past three fiscal years. A summary ofthe State
underwriting risks is as follows:

Property Insurance

The State has an insurance policy with a varieingirers in a variety of layers for property coverage. The
deductible for coverage is®b of loss subject to a $1,000,000 per occurrence minimum. This policy
includes windstorm, earthquake, flood damage, terrorism, and boiler and machinery coveragat dhe |
loss per occurrence is $22680,000, except for flood and earthquake, which individually 25 600,000
aggregate loss and terrorism, which is $80,000 per occurrence and a $#® deductible.

The State also has a crime insurance policy doious types of coverages with a limit of loss of

$10,000,000 per occurrence with a $500,000 deductible per occurrence, except for claims expense coverage,
which has a $100,000 limit per occurrence and a $1,000 deductible. Losses not covered by insurance a

paid from legislative appropriations of the Séat&eneral Fund.

General Liability (Including Torts)

Claims under $10,000 are handled by E#&GS risk management officéll other claims are handled by
the Department of the Attorney General. The Statepersonal injury and property damage liability,
including automobile and public errors and omissions, insurance policy in force with a $4,000;000 self
insured retention per occurrence. The anagaregate per occurrence is Fi#,000and for crime los,
$10,000,000 with no aggregate limit

Losses under the deductible amount or over the aggregate limit are paid from legislative appropriations of
the Statés General Fund.

Medical Insurance

The Statés community hospitals included in the HHSC are insiged comprehensive hospital
professional liability policy. The policy covers losses from personal injury, professional liability, patient
property damage, and employee benefits. This pobegis losses up to a limit of $35,000,000 per
occurrence and $3000,000 in aggregate.

Seltlnsured Risks

The State generally sdlisures its automobile Aawult and worker8compensation losses. Automobile
losses are administered by thpdrty administrators. The State administers its wotlammpensation
losses.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Costs

A liability for workersd compensation and thaaner al
a loss hakeen incurred as of JuB@, 2013 and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estinTdted.
liability also includes an estimate for amounts incurred but not reported. The amount of the estimated loss is
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recorded in the accompanying statement of net position, as those losses will be liquidated with future
expendable resources. The estimatedIs e s wi | | be paid from I egislativ
General Fund. The following table represents changes in the amount of the estimated losses and the loss
adjustment costs at JuB8, 2013 (amounts expressed in thousands):

2013 2012
Unpaid | osses and | oss adjustment costs @
fiscal year $169,900 $153,520
Incurred losses and loss adjustment costs:
Provision for insured events of current fiscal year 26,270 43,517
Decrease in provision for insured events of prior fiscal years (1,159) (487)
Total incurred losses and loss adjustment costs 25,111 43,030
Payments:
Losses and loss adjustment costs attributable to insured events
of current fiscal year (19,954) (7,770)
Losses and loss adjustment costs attributable to insured events
of prior fiscal years (19,919) (18,880)
Total payments (39,873) (26,650)

Unpaid | osses and | oss adj ust$b5il88 c &569,300 &

14, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION INSURANCE RECOVERY

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Airports Division received a business interruption insurance
recovery relating to the events of Septembef@@1, amounting to $19,000,000. This amount is refiecte
on a separate line item between the caption total operating expenses and operating income in the
accompanying Proprietary Fund statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
General Obligation Bonds

On NovembeRl, 2013, the State issued $106),000million in Tax-Exempt Refunding Bonds of 281
Series El, EJ, EK and EL; $Z95000million in Taxable General Obligation Qualified School
Construction Bonds of 2013 Series EN; and $860,000million in Tax-Exempt Gneral Obligation Bonds
of 2013 Series EM and EHseries EH, EM, and EN were issued for the purpose of financing, or
reimbursing the State of Hawaii for, the Hawaiian Home Lands Settlement, and the costs of acquisition,
construction, extension or improvent of various public improvement projects, among which are public
buildings and facilities, elementary and secondary schools, community college and university facilities,
senior housing facilities, public libraries and parks and for other public purpbseRefunding Bond
proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding General Obligation Bonds previously issued.

*kkkkk
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDI TURES ¢
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

BUDGET AND ACT

Actual Variance With
Original Final (Budgetary Final Budc
Budget Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
General excise tax $ 2,878,453 $ 2,962,446 $ 2,944,487 $ (17,959)
Net income tax:
Corporations 56,362 56,647 100,988 44,341
Individuals 1,540,136 1,612,070 1,735,520 123,450
Inheritance and estate tax 19,600 14,421 14,886 465
Liquor permits and tax 49,558 50,219 48,962 (1,257)
Public service companies tax 126,244 155,740 163,930 8,190
Tobacco tax 124,591 103,034 94,180 (8,854)
Tax on premiums of insurance companies 115,000 122,000 131,906 9,906
Franchise tax (banks and other financial institutions) 29,788 27,848 20,673 (7,175)
Transient accommodations tax 131,399 167,963 171,556 3,593
Other taxes, primarily conveyances tax 37,089 34,449 41,206 6,757
Total taxes 5,108,220 5,306,837 5,468,294 161,457

Non-taxes:

Interest and investment income 10,262 10,403 5,873 (4,530)
Charges for current services 251,431 252,568 252,967 399
Intergovernmental 4,577 12,918 13,708 790
Rentals 634 429 276 (153)
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 24,293 23,556 22,343 (1,213)
Licenses and fees 5,820 6,012 6,465 453
Revenues from private sources 27,647 3,304 2,423 (881)
Debt service requirements 35,546 35,546 35,753 207
Other 177,709 270,354 381,189 110,835

Total non-taxes 537,919 615,090 720,997 105,907

Total revenues 5,646,139 5,921,927 6,189,291 267,364

EXPENDITURES:

General government 2,063,763 2,109,101 1,984,204 124,897

Public safety 238,681 244,315 241,689 2,626

Conservation of natural resources 26,238 26,995 22,358 4,637

Health 396,261 411,595 398,196 13,399

Hospitals 82,140 88,181 84,565 3,616

Welfare 1,050,638 1,052,251 1,038,220 14,031

Lower education 1,414,215 1,416,683 1,374,663 42,020

Higher education 377,460 378,385 375,132 3,253

Other education 5,509 5,509 5,117 392

Culture and recreation 37,490 37,654 35,519 2,135

Economic development and assistance 19,200 25,883 29,031 (3,148)

Housing 15,461 15,748 14,793 955

Other 874 30,097 14,613 15,484

Total expenditures 5,727,930 5,842,397 5,618,100 224,297
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (81,791) 79,530 571,191 491,661
OTHER FI NANCI NG SOURCES o8 Transf ers 17004 41,825 45,149 3,324
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $  (64,787) $ 121,355 $ 616,340 $ 494,985

-97-



STATE OF HAWAII

MED-QUEST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

EXPENDI TURES @&

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Liquid fuel tax:
Highways
Boating
Airports
Vehicle registration fee tax
State vehicle weight tax
Rental/tour vehicle surcharge tax
Employment and training fund assessment
General excise tax
Tobacco tax
Conveyances tax
Environmental response tax
Hospital and nursing facility tax
Transient accommodations tax
Franchise tax
Tax on premiums of insurance companies

Total taxes

Non-taxes:
Interest and investment income
Charges for current services
Intergovernmental
Rentals
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Licenses and fees
Revenues from private sources
Other

Total non-taxes
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General government
Public safety
Highways
Conservation of natural resources
Health
Hospitals
Welfare
Lower education
Higher education
Other education
Culture and recreation
Urban redevelopment and housing
Economic development and assistance
Airports
Water transportation and terminals
Housing
Other

Total expenditures

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) OVER EXPENDITURES

Actual Variance With
Original Final (Budgetary Final Bud
Budget Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
965,180 1,018,190 868,751 (149,439)
- - 40,501 40,501
32,000 50,005 77,459 27,454
997,180 1,068,195 986,711 (81,484)
997,180 1,068,195 986,711 (81,484)
995,234 995,234 993,573 1,661
995,234 995,234 993,573 1,661
$ 1,946 $ 72,961 $ (6,862) $ (79,823)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 8 BUDGETARY CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The budget of the State is a detailed operating plan identifying estimated costs and results in relation to
estimated revenues. The budgetudes (1the programs, services, and activities to be provided during the
fiscal year; (2the estimated revenues available to finance the operating plan; dhd €3imated spending
requirements of the operating plan. The budget represents apthoeugh which policy decisions are made,
implemented, and controlled. Revenue estimates are provided to the State Legislature at the time of budget
consideration and are revised and updated periodically during the fiscal year. Amounts reflectedted budge
revenues in the General Fund Schedule of Revenues and ExpentlitBredget and Actual (Budgetary

Basis) are those estimates as compiled by the Council on Revenues and the Director of Finance. Budgeted
expenditures are derived primarily from the GehAppropriations Act of 2013 and from other

authorizations contained in the State Constitution, the HRS, and other specific appropriations acts in various
SLH.

All expenditures of appropriated funds have been made pursuant to the appropriations ialtBeXs2013
biennial budget.

The General Fund and Special Revenue Funds have legally appropriated annual budgets. The Capital Projects
Funddés appropriated budgets are for projects that

The final legally adopted budgietthe accompanying General Fund Schedule of Revenues and
Expenditure® Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represents the original appropriations, transfers, and
other legally authorized legislative and executive changes.

The legal level of budgetary ntyol is maintained at the appropriation line item level by department, program,
and source of funds as established in the appropriations acts. The Governor is authorized to transfer
appropriations between programs within the same department and soluncgsphowever, transfers of
appropriations between departments generally require legislative authorization. Records and reports reflecting
the detail level of control are maintained by and are available at DAGS. During the fiscal year en@§&j June
2013,there were no expenditures in excess of appropriations in the individual funds.

To the extent not expended or encumbered, the Gen:
the fiscal year for which the appropriations are made. The Statslategeé specifies the lapse dates and any
other contingencies which may terminate the authorizations for other appropriations.

Budgets adopted by the State Legislature for the General Fund are presented in the General Fund Statement o
Revenues and Expetdiiesd Budget and Act ual (Budgetary Basis).
on the cash basis of accounting excepthierencumbrance of purchase order and contract obligations (basis
difference), which is a departure from GAAP.
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STATE OF HAWAII

GENERAL FUND AND MED-QUEST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
RECONCILIATION OF THE BUDGETARY TO GAAP BASIS
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

A reconciliation of the budgetary to GAAP basis operating results for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013, follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Med-Quest
Special

General Revenue
Fund Fund

Excess of revenues and other sources over expendi

(budgetary basis) $ 616,340 $ (6,862)
Transfers - (3,147)
Excess of revenues and over expendit ur6&63400 a c(100@9)
Reserve for encumbrances at fiscal year end * 321,949 69,682
Expenditures for liquidation of prior fiscal year encumbrances (318,281) (51,225)
Revenues and expenditures for unbudgeted programs and capital

projects accounts & net (1,273) -
Tax refunds payable (31,387) -
Accrued liabilities (36,481) (116,197)
Accrued revenues 66,968 105,196

Net change in fund balance 8 GAAP ba$i647,835 $ (2,553)

* Amount reflects the encumbrance balances (included in continuing appropriations) for
budgeted programs only.
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Amounts in millions)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

EUTF
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, 2007 - $ 7,192 $ 7,192 - % $1,782 403.6%
July 1, 2009 - 11,523 11,523 - 1,432 804.7
July 1, 2011 - 11,706 11,706 - 2,093 559.3
HSTA-VEBA
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, 2007 - $ 1,579 $ 1,579 -% $ 680 232.2%
July 1, 2009 - 2,484 2,484 - 683 363.7
UH
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
July 1, 2007 - $ 1,136 $ 1,136 - % $ 477 238.2%
July 1, 2009 - 1,850 1,850 - 495 373.7
July 1, 2011 - 1,861 1,861 - 504 369.2
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted for specific purposes. Certain Special Revenue Funds seatpreseparately in the accompanying
combining financial statements, with the remainder grouped as a single entity. The Special Revenue Funds are
as follows:

Highwaysd Accounts for programs related to maintaining and operating land transportatiorefacilit

Natural Resourcesd Accounts for programs related to the conservation, development, and utilization of
agriculture, aquaculture, water, land, and other natural resources of the State.

Health & Accounts for programs related to mental health, nutrgienvices, communicable disease, and for
other public health services.

Human Servicesd Accounts for social service programs, which include public welfare, eligibility and
disability determination, and housing assistance.

Educationd Accounts for programsefated to instructional education, school food services, and student
driver education.

Economic Developmen® Accounts for programs related to the development and promotion of industry and
international commerce, energy development and management, ecoeseaich and analysis, and the
utilization of resources.

Employmentd Accounts for programs related to employment and training, disability compensation,
placement services, and occupational safety and health.

Regulatory 8 Accounts for programs related ¢onsumer protection, business registration, and cable
television regulation.

Hawaiian Programsd Accounts for programs related to the betterment of the conditions of native
Hawaiians.

Administrative Support 8 Accounts for programs of certain administratagencies.

All Other & Accounts for programs related to water recreation, inmate stores, and driver training and
education.

Debt Service Fund
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general

obligaion bonds serviced by the General Fund and general obligation bonds and revenue bonds serviced by
the Special Revenue Funds.
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STATE OF HAWAII
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)
Special Revenue Funds
Natural Human Economic
Highways Resources Health Services Education Development Employment
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 9118 $ 6521 $ 8856 $ 2483 $ 40932 $ 1,280 $ 1,950
RECEIVABLES:
Notes and |l oans & net 17,828 - - - 1,973 -
Other - - - 16,700 - - -
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - - - - -
INVESTMENTS 161,341 102,168 138,742 38,905 164,474 20,046 30,555
TOTAL $ 170,459 $ 126,517 $ 147,598 $ 58,088 $205,406 $ 23,299 $ 32,505
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Vouchers and contracts payable $ 31945 $ 7322 $ 11592 $ 9,171 $ 13281 % 1,784 $ 4,674
Other accrued liabilities 4,679 2,369 6,945 391 12,032 705 2,165
Due to federal government - - - 37,145 - - -
Due to other funds - 2,152 - 16,700 - - -
Payable from restricted assets & matured
bonds and interest payable - - - - - - -
Total liabilities 36,624 11,843 18,537 63,407 25,313 2,489 6,839
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted - - - 21,791 - - -
Committed - 88,474 148,684 848 - 16,637 17,300
Assigned 133,835 26,200 - - 180,093 4,173 8,366
Unassigned - - (19,623) (27,958) - - -
Total fund balances 133,835 114,674 129,061 (5,319) 180,093 20,810 25,666
TOTAL $ 170,459 $ 126,517 $ 147,598 $ 58,088 $205,406 $ 23,299 $ 32,505

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Total
Debt Nonmajor
Hawaiian Administrative All Service Governmental
Regulatory Programs Support Other Total Fund Funds

$ 3,141 $ 16,785 $ 15,407 $ 2,798 $ 109,271 $ 235 $ 109,506
- 54,502 - - 74,303 - 74,303

- - - - 16,700 - 16,700

- - - - - 63 63
49,206 215,479 94,927 43,856 1,059,699 - 1,059,699

$ 52,347 $ 286,766 $ 110,334 $ 46,654 $ 1,259,973 $ 298 $ 1,260,271
$ 641 $ 9,298 $ 2,774 $ 1,177 $ 93,659 $ - $ 93,659
1,504 454 2,610 2,635 36,489 - 36,489

- - - - 37,145 - 37,145

- - - 1,496 20,348 - 20,348

- - - - - 235 235
2,145 9,752 5,384 5,308 187,641 235 187,876

- - - - 21,791 63 21,854
39,428 120,585 54,284 - 486,240 - 486,240
10,774 156,429 50,666 41,346 611,882 - 611,882

- - - - (47,581) - (47,581)
50,202 277,014 104,950 41,346 1,072,332 63 1,072,395

$ 52,347 $ 286,766 $ 110,334 $ 46,654 $ 1259973 $ 298 $ 1,260,271
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STATE OF HAWAII
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)
Special Revenue Funds
Natural Human Economic
Highways Resources Health Services Education Development Employment
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Franchise tax $ - $ - $ - $ - $ = - $ -
Other tax revenue - 23,029 1,295 - - 3,884 300
Transient accommodations tax - 1,000 - - - - -
Tobacco and liquor taxes - - 15,777 - - - -
Liquid fuel tax 85,775 250 - - - - -
Tax on premiums of insurance companies - - - - - - -
Vehicle weight and registration tax 116,194 - 5,411 - - - -
Rental motor/tour vehicle surcharge tax 47,593 - - - - - -
Total taxes 249,562 24,279 22,483 - - 3,884 300
Interest and investment income 2,043 1,495 1,124 10 267 244 244
Charges for current services 3,163 28,802 53,847 646 41,911 5,411 15,958
Intergovernmental 159,257 22,903 125,209 675,402 318,482 13,930 47,012
Rentals 613 9,108 - - 359 1,361 -
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 2,012 59 2,047 - - - 1,231
Licenses and fees 2,035 549 1,069 169 695 - -
Revenues from private sources - 49 48,263 34 8,609 - -
Other 9,451 7,707 779 443 19,019 231 2,831
Total revenues 428,136 94,951 254,821 676,704 389,342 25,061 67,576
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - 4,352 191 - - - -
Public safety - 5,388 - - - - 1,913
Conservation of natural resources - 59,609 - - - - -
Health - - 207,255 - - - -
Welfare - - - 652,811 - - -
Lower education - - - - 435,248 - -
Other education - - - 14,349 - - -
Culture and recreation - 11,916 - - 2,742 - -
Urban redevelopment and housing - - - 7,338 - - -
Economic development and assistance - 2,740 - - - 26,339 62,974
Other - 3,061 - - - - -
Highways 245,863 71 - - - - -
Debt service - - - - - - -
Total expenditures 245,863 87,137 207,446 674,498 437,990 26,339 64,887
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 182,273 7,814 47,375 2,206 (48,648) (1,278) 2,689
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of GO and refunding GO bonds - par - - - - - - -
Issuance of GO and refunding GO bonds - premium - - - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - - - -
Transfers in 14,963 2,086 59 3,743 60,212 2,020 57
Transfers out (202,162) (1,243) (26,348) (16,259) - - (328)
Total other financing (uses) sources (187,199) 843 (26,289) (12,516) 60,212 2,020 (271)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (4,926) 8,657 21,086 (10,310) 11,564 742 2,418
FUND BALANCES 8 Beginni ngl3876l ye at06,017 107,975 4,991 168,529 20,068 23,248
FUND BALANCES o0 End of $ eH8835 $ 114674 $ 129,061 $ (53190 $ 180,093 $ 20,810 $ 25,666
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Total
Special Revenue Funds Debt Nonmajor

Hawaiian Administrative All Service Governmental

Regulatory Programs Support Other Total Fund Funds
$ 2,000 $ - $ - $ - 2,000 $ - $ 2,000
- - - - 28,508 - 28,508
- - - - 1,000 - 1,000
- - 2,148 - 17,925 - 17,925
- - - 1,620 87,645 - 87,645
1,679 - - - 1,679 - 1,679
- - - - 121,605 - 121,605
- - - - 47,593 - 47,593
3,679 - 2,148 1,620 307,955 - 307,955
411 6,528 533 179 13,078 - 13,078
18,503 4,559 52,339 21,878 247,017 - 247,017
4,605 3,218 19,645 54,462 1,444,125 - 1,444,125
- 12,707 960 3,249 28,357 - 28,357
6,351 57 233 2,469 14,459 - 14,459
15,237 - 20,197 423 40,374 - 40,374
1 3,000 1,757 33 61,746 - 61,746
67 11,611 2,991 4,271 59,401 59,401
48,854 41,680 100,803 88,584 2,216,512 - 2,216,512
- - 40,426 11,845 56,814 - 56,814
41,182 - 21,984 58,928 129,395 - 129,395
- - 210 - 59,819 - 59,819
- - 1 - 207,256 - 207,256
- - 11,938 549 665,298 - 665,298
- - 1,306 - 436,554 - 436,554
- - - - 14,349 - 14,349
- - 10,355 19,457 44,470 - 44,470
- 55,573 - - 62,911 - 62,911
33 - 47 - 92,133 - 92,133
- - 5,778 634 9,473 - 9,473
- 2,817 44 - 248,795 - 248,795
- - - - - 687,649 687,649
41,215 58,390 92,089 91,413 2,027,267 687,649 2,714,916
7,639 (16,710) 8,714 (2,829) 189,245 (687,649) (498,404)
- - - - - 396,990 396,990
- - - - - 106,382 106,382
- - - - - (503,372) (503,372)
2,701 30,000 5,390 9,278 130,509 687,648 818,157
(2,900) (3,063) (18,545) (2,441) (273,289) - (273,289)
(199) 26,937 (13,155) 6,837 (142,780) 687,648 544,868
7,440 10,227 (4,441) 4,008 46,465 1) 46,464
42,762 266,787 109,391 37,338 1,025,867 64 1,025,931
$ 50,202 $ 277,014 $ 104,950 $ 41,346 $ 1,072,332 $ 63 $ 1,072,395
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBI NI
(BUDGETARY BASIS)

NG SCHEDULE OF

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES AND EXPENDI

TURES o

March 28, 2014

8:46 PM

BUDGET

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Unemployment compensation tax
Liquid fuel tax:
Highways
Boating
Vehicle registration fee tax
State vehicle weight tax
Rental/tour vehicle surcharge tax
Employment and training fund assessment
Tobacco tax
Conveyances tax
Environmental response tax
Transient accommodations tax
Franchise tax
Tax on premiums of insurance companies

Total taxes

Non-taxes:
Interest and investment income
Charges for current services
Intergovernmental
Rentals
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Licenses and fees
Revenues from private sources
Other

Total non-taxes
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General government
Public safety
Highways
Conservation of natural resources
Health
Welfare
Lower education
Other education
Culture and recreation
Urban redevelopment and housing
Economic development and assistance
Other

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

Highways Natural Resources
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budget & (Budgetary Final Budg
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
91,371 85,775 (5,596) 230 250 20
41,683 42,291 608 - - -
66,846 73,902 7,056 - - -
45,632 47,593 1,961 - - -
- - - 14,775 19,144 4,369
- - - 3,400 3,884 484
- - - 1,000 1,000 -
245,532 249,561 4,029 19,405 24,278 4,873
5,000 134 (4,866) 1,058 850 (208)
79,506 3,163 (76,343) 24,974 28,730 3,756
30,893 63,074 32,181 12,773 22,898 10,125
- 613 613 2,876 9,108 6,232
1,725 2,012 287 37 59 22
1,935 2,035 100 495 549 54
- - - - 49 49
37 50,672 50,635 3,208 7,093 3,885
119,096 121,703 2,607 45,421 69,336 23,915
364,628 371,264 6,636 64,826 93,614 28,788
- - - 4,523 4,187 336
- - - 7,864 2,306 5,558
336,974 273,345 63,629 - - -
- - - 101,351 64,140 37,211
- - - 14,520 11,245 3,275
- - - 6,789 2,799 3,990
1,725 1,063 662 - - -
338,699 274,408 64,291 135,047 84,677 50,370
$ 25929 % 96,856 $ 70,927 $ (70,221) $ 8,937 $ 79,158
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Health Human Services
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budget 8 (Budgetary Final Budge
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
5,144 5,411 267 - - -
17,587 15,777 (1,810) - - -
1,340 1,295 (45) - - -
24,071 22,483 (1,588) - - -

345 195 (150) - 3 3
82,962 80,494 (2,468) - 646 646
110,235 112,377 2,142 235,154 185,965 (49,189)
1,142 2,047 905 - - -

2,192 1,070 (1,122) 406 169 (237)
28,354 48,263 19,909 - 34 34
254 1,088 834 - 774 774
225,484 245,534 20,050 235,560 187,591 (47,969)
249,555 268,017 18,462 235,560 187,591 (47,969)
188 185 3 - - -
349,712 283,387 66,325 - - -
- - - 269,872 166,487 103,385
- - - 22,953 14,053 8,900
- - - 4,201 4,077 124
- - - 36 - 36
349,900 283,572 66,328 297,062 184,617 112,445
$ (100,345) $ (15,555) $ 84,790 $ (61502) $ 2,974 $ 64,476
(Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBI NI NG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDI TURES 8 BUDGET AND AC
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Education Economic Development
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budget 0 (Budgetary Final Budge
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:

Unemployment compensation tax $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Liquid fuel tax:

Highways - - - - - -

Boating - - - - - -

Vehicle registration fee tax - - - - R -
State vehicle weight tax - - - - - -
Rental/tour vehicle surcharge tax - - - - - -
Employment and training fund assessment - - - - - -
Tobacco tax - - - - - -
Conveyances tax - - - - -
Environmental response tax - - - 3,526 3,884 358
Transient accommodations tax - - - - - -

Franchise tax - - - - - -

Tax on premiums of insurance companies - - - - - -

Total taxes - - - 3,526 3,884 358
Non-taxes:
Interest and investment income 217 66 (151) 122 52 (70)
Charges for current services 39,145 39,557 412 9,271 5,411 (3,860)
Intergovernmental 224,383 293,181 68,798 23,047 13,930 (9,117)
Rentals 40 359 319 2,610 1,361 (1,249)
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties - - - - - -
Licenses and fees 1,718 695 (1,023) - - -
Revenues from private sources 370 187 (183) 250 - (250)
Other 51,860 16,042 (35,818) 4 2,251 2,247
Total non-taxes 317,733 350,087 32,354 35,304 23,005 (12,299)
Total revenues 317,733 350,087 32,354 38,830 26,889 (11,941)
EXPENDITURES:
General government - - - - - -
Public safety - - - 1,100 - 1,100
Highways - - - - - -
Conservation of natural resources - - - - - -
Health - - - - - -
Welfare - - - - - -
Lower education 570,592 334,885 235,707 - - -
Other education - - - - - -
Culture and recreation 5,044 3,429 1,615 - - -
Urban redevelopment and housing - - - - - -
Economic development and assistance - - - 81,402 27,198 54,204
Other - - - - - -
Total expenditures 575,636 338,314 237,322 82,502 27,198 55,304

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) OVER EXPENDITURES $ (257,903) $ 11,773 $ 269,676 $ (43672) $ (309) $ 43,363
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Employment Regulatory
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budget 8 (Budgetary Final Budge
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- 300 300 - - -
- - - 2,000 2,000
- - - 1,500 1,679 179
- 300 300 3,500 3,679 179
160 71 (89) 538 124 (414)
18,500 15,958 (2,542) 18,856 18,503 (353)
40,392 47,013 6,621 10,000 4,606 (5,394)
200 1,231 1,031 - 6,351 6,351
- - - 15,766 15,237 (529)
6 3,474 3,468 3,004 2,769 (235)
59,258 67,747 8,489 48,164 47,590 (574)
59,258 68,047 8,789 51,664 51,269 395)
4,472 1,913 2,559 73,366 44,143 29,223
130,298 63,195 67,103 59 33 26
134,770 65,108 69,662 73,425 44,176 29,249
$ (75,512) $ 2,939 $ 78,451 $ (21,761) $ 7,093 $ 28,854
(Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBI NI NG SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDI
(BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Hawaiian Programs Administrative Support
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budget & (Budgetary Final Budg
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Unemployment compensation tax $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Liquid fuel tax:
Highways - - - - - -
Boating - - - - - -

Vehicle registration fee tax - - - - - -
State vehicle weight tax - - - - - -
Rental/tour vehicle surcharge tax - - - - - -
Employment and training fund assessment - - - - - -
Tobacco tax - - - 1,752 2,148 396
Conveyances tax - - - - - -
Environmental response tax - - - - - -
Transient accommodations tax - - - - - -
Francnise ax - - - - - -

Tax on premiums of insurance companies - - - - - -

Total taxes - - - 1,752 2,148 396
Non-taxes:
Interest and investment income 710 310 (400) 808 89 (719)
Charges for current services 1 16 15 46,399 54,904 8,505
Intergovernmental 8,000 3,218 (4,782) 20,878 19,645 (1,233)
Rentals 9,537 12,350 2,813 6,235 6,460 225
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties - 57 57 261 233 (28)
Licenses and fees - - - 17,296 20,197 2,901
Revenues from private sources - 3,000 3,000 1,940 1,757 (183)
Other 4,660 6,551 1,891 5,864 4,720 (1,144)
Total non-taxes 22,908 25,502 2,594 99,681 108,005 8,324
Total revenues 22,908 25,502 2,594 101,433 110,153 8,720
EXPENDITURES:
General government - - - 86,710 52,090 34,620
Public safety - - - 25,532 18,990 6,542
Highways - - - 568 555 13
Conservation of natural resources - - - 336 19 317
Health - - - - - -
Welfare - - - 15,463 11,238 4,225
Lower education - - - 1,500 1,307 193
Other education - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - 14,473 11,055 3,418
Urban redevelopment and housing 43,532 21,787 21,745 - - -
Economic development and assistance - - - 45 45 -
Other - - - 22,507 5,785 16,722
Total expenditures 43,532 21,787 21,745 167,134 101,084 66,050
(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) OVER EXPENDITURES $ (20,624) $ 3,715 $ 24,339 $ (65,701) $ 9,069 $ 74,770
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All Other Total Special Revenue Funds
Actual Variance With Actual Variance With
(Budgetary Final Budg (Budgetary Final Budge
Budget Basis) Positive (Negative) Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - 91,601 86,025 (5,576)
1,600 1,621 21 1,600 1,621 21
- - - 46,827 47,702 875
- - - 66,846 73,902 7,056
- - - 45,632 47,593 1,961
- - - - 300 300
- - - 19,339 17,925 (1,414)
- - - 14,775 19,144 4,369
- - - 8,266 9,063 797
- - - 1,000 1,000 -
- - - 2,000 2,000 -
- - - 1,500 1,679 179
1,600 1,621 21 299,386 307,954 8,568
345 64 (281) 9,303 1,958 (7,345)
18,718 21,878 3,160 338,332 269,260 (69,072)
31,376 54,461 23,085 747,131 820,368 73,237
2,000 3,249 1,249 23,298 33,500 10,202
2,628 2,470 (158) 5,993 14,460 8,467
512 423 (89) 40,320 40,375 55
30 34 4 30,944 53,324 22,380
7,833 12,809 4,976 76,730 108,243 31,513
63,442 95,388 31,946 1,272,051 1,341,488 69,437
65,042 97,009 31,967 1,571,437 1,649,442 78,005
18,486 14,661 3,825 109,907 71,123 38,784
116,130 66,793 49,337 228,464 134,145 94,319
- - - 337,542 273,900 63,642
- - - 101,687 64,159 37,528
- - - 349,712 283,387 66,325
550 549 1 285,885 178,274 107,611
- - - 572,092 336,192 235,900
- - - 22,953 14,053 8,900
19,135 13,841 5,294 53,172 39,570 13,602
- - - 47,733 25,864 21,869
- - - 218,629 93,270 125,359
- - - 24,232 6,848 17,384
154,301 95,844 58,457 2,352,008 1,520,785 831,223
$ (89,259) $ 1,165 $ 90,424 $ (780,571) $ 128,657 $ 909,228
(Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BUDGETARY TO GAAP BASIS
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDI TURES & A28t6bra
RESERVE FOR ENCUMBRANCES AT YEAR-END* 287,081

EXPENDITURES FOR LIQUIDATION OF PRIOR FISCAL YEAR
ENCUMBRANCES (372,032)

EXPENDITURES FOR UNBUDGETED PROGRAMS, PRINCIPALLY
EXPENDITURES FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS ACCOUNTS AND

REVOLVING FUNDS (46,440)
EXPENDITURES FOR DEBT SERVICE PAID OUT OF

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (687,649)
TRANSFERS 170,418
ACCRUED LIABILITIES (498,835)
ACCRUED REVENUES 520,396

DEFI CIl ENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDI T ®RE98,404)

* Amount reflects the encumbrance balances (included in continuing appropriations)
for budgeted programs only.
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Employer- Water Pollution Drinking Water Total Nonmajor
Union Control Treatment Proprietary
Trust Fund Revolving Fund Revolving Fund Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,669 $ 148,844 $ 64,924 $ 226,437
Receivables:
Accounts and accrued interest (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $0) 44 599 104 747
Promissory note receivable (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $0) = 26,199 4,364 30,563
Federal government 102 492 594
Premiums 67,896 - - 67,896
Other 2,849 281 629 3,759
Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,355 - - 5,355
Total current assets 88,813 176,025 70,513 335,351
CAPITAL ASSETS - Equipment 9,956 78 1,237 11,271
9,956 78 1,237 11,271
Less accumulated depreciation (5,149) (51) (1,052) (6,252)
Net capital assets 4,807 27 185 5,019
Promissory note receivable - 279,296 56,973 336,269
Other - 12,198 - 12,198
Total noncurrent assets 4,807 291,521 57,158 353,486
TOTAL ASSETS $ 93,620 $ 467,546 $ 127,671 $ 688,837
(Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Vouchers and contracts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Accrued vacation, current portion
Benefits claims payable
Premiums payable

Total current liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued vacation
Other postemployment benefit liability

TOTAL

NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
RESTRICTED FOR BOND REQUIREMENTS AND OTHER

UNRESTRICTED

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Employer- Water Pollution Drinking Water Total Nonmajor

Union Control Treatment Proprietary
Trust Fund Revolving Fund Revolving Fund Funds

$ 191 $ 102 $ 325 $ 618
1,811 - — 1,811
66 60 24 150
2,665 - - 2,665
35,771 - - 35,771
40,504 162 349 41,015
205 213 133 551
1,476 1,124 490 3,090
42,185 1,499 972 44,656
4,807 27 185 5,019
- 466,020 126,514 592,534
46,628 - - 46,628
$ 51,435 $ 466,047 $ 126,699 $ 644,181
(Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Employer Union

Water Pollution
Control

Drinking Water
Treatment

Total Nonmajor
Proprietary

Trust Fund Revolving Fund Revolving Fund Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Administrative fees $ 5,821 $ 1,838 $ 2,228 $ 9,887
Premium revenue 0 self i nsur an cb€,843 - - 50,843
Increase in premium reserves 39,540 - - 39,540
Other 208 2,479 226 2,913
Total operating revenues 96,412 4,317 2,454 103,183
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services 2,741 1,743 1,053 5,637
Depreciation 1,375 10 84 1,469
Repairs and maintenance 9 - 70 79
General administration 2,403 161 1,384 3,948
Claims 46,819 - - 46,819
Other 24 10 19 53
Total operating expenses 53,371 1,924 2,610 57,905
Operating income (loss) 43,041 2,393 (156) 45,278
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE):
Interest and investment income 409 1,346 299 2,054
Other - (1,000) (7,214) (8,214)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 409 346 (6,915) (6,160)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 43,450 2,739 (7,071) 39,118
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: - 22,114 7,465 29,579
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 43,450 24,853 394 68,697
NET POSITION & Beginning of year 7,985 441,194 126,305 575,484
NET POSITION 6 End of year $ 51,435 $ 466,047 $ 126,699 $ 644,181

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATE OF HAWAII

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Water Pollution Drinking Water Total Nonmajor
Employer Union Control Treatment Proprietary
Trust Fund Revolving Fund Revolving Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from employer and employee for premium
and benefit payments $ 487,681 $ - $ - $ 487,681
Cash paid to suppliers (2,757) (149) (1,352) (4,258)
Cash paid to employees (2,282) (1,466) (863) (4,611)
Cash paid for premiums and benefit payments (486,285) - - (486,285)
Reserves returned by insurance carriers 15,914 - - 15,914
Interest income from notes receivable - 2,662 230 2,892
Administrative loan fees - 1,962 2,283 4,245
Principal repayments on notes receivable - 46,523 15,132 61,655
Disbursement of notes receivable proceeds - (28,536) (3,316) (31,852)
Net cash provided by operating activities 12,271 20,996 12,114 45,381
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
State capital contributions - 3,157 2,715 5,872
Proceeds from federal operating grants - 18,856 4,497 23,353
Disbursement of federal operating grants - (2,581) (368) (2,949)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - 19,432 6,844 26,276
CASH FLOWS FROM I NVESTI NG ACTIVITIES &8 Interest from
and change in fair value of investments 398 1,308 282 1,988
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,669 41,736 19,240 73,645
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS 8 Including restricted
amounts & beginning of year - 107,108 45,684 152,792
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS 6 Including restricted
amounts & end of year $ 12,669 $ 148,844 $ 64,924 $ 226,437
(Continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Premium reserves held by insurance companies
Principal forgiveness of loan
Decrease (increase) in assets:

Receivables

Deposits

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase in liabilities:

Vouchers and contracts payable

Other accrued liabilities

Benefits claim payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Employer Union

Water Pollution
Control

Drinking Water
Treatment

Total Nonmajor

Proprietary

Trust Fund Revolving Fund Revolving Fund Funds
$ 43,041 $ 2,393 $ (156) $ 45,278
1,375 10 84 1,469
(36,405) - - (36,405)
- (1,000) - (1,000)
550 19,294 11,876 31,720
11,456 - - 11,456
(101) - - (101)
(240) 19 148 (73)
(2,584) 280 162 (2,142)
(4,821) - - (4,821)
$ 12,271 $ 20,996 $ 12,114 $ 45,381
(Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBI NI NG STATEMENT OF FIDUCI ARY NET POSITI ON 0o

JUNE 30, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

/

Agency Funds Total
Tax Agency
Collections Custodial Other Funds
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2,137 $ 208917 $ 5,629 $ 216,683
RECEI VABLES &6 taxes - - 39,078 39,078
INVESTMENTS 33,479 279,636 82,856 395,971
OTHER ASSETS o0 primarily due from
individuals, businesses, and counties (26,506) 58,159 - 31,653
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,110 $ 546,712 $ 127,563 $ 683,385
LIABILITIES
VOUCHERS PAYABLE $ 9110 $ 7 $ 597 $ 9,714
DUE TO INDIVIDUALS, BUSINESSES,
AND COUNTIES - 546,705 126,966 673,671
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 9,110 $ 546,712 $ 127,563 $ 683,385
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STATE OF HAWAII

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBI NI NG STATEMENT OF CHANGES I N ASSETS AND LI ABI LI 1
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Bal ance 0 Bal ance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
TAX COLLECTIONS:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5541 $ 7,551,805 $ (7,555,209) $ 2,137
Due from individuals, businesses, and counties 46,169 7,479,130 (7,551,805) (26,506)
Investments 6,772 33,479 (6,772) 33,479
Total assets $ 58,482 $ 15,064,414 $ (15,113,786) $ 9,110
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable $ 58482 $ 9,110 $ (58,482) $ 9,110
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties - - - -
Total liabilities $ 58,482 $ 9,110 $ (58,482) $ 9,110
CUSTODIAL:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 443,341 $ 4,622936 $ (4,857,360) $ 208,917
Due from individuals, businesses, and counties 48,378 465,867 (456,086) 58,159
Investments 42,660 279,636 (42,660) 279,636
Total assets $ 534,379 $ 5,368,439 $ (5356,106) $ 546,712
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable $ 74 $ 7 $ 74) $ 7
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 534,305 4,385,782 (4,373,382) 546,705
Total liabilities $ 534,379 $ 4,385,789 $ (4,373,456) $ 546,712
OTHER:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29582 $ 42,516  $ (66,469) $ 5,629
Receivables 33,444 39,078 (33,444) 39,078
Investments 43,100 82,856 (43,100) 82,856
Total assets $ 106,126 $ 164,450 $ (143,013) $ 127,563
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable $ 65 $ 597 % 65 $ 597
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 106,061 48,150 (27,245) 126,966
Total liabilities $ 106,126 $ 48,747  $ (27,310) $ 127,563
TOTAL 8 All agency funds:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 478,464 $ 12,217,257 $ (12,479,038) $ 216,683
Receivables 33,444 39,078 (33,444) 39,078
Due from individuals, businesses, and counties 94,547 7,944,997 (8,007,891) 31,653
Investments 92,532 395,971 (92,532) 395,971
Total assets $ 698,987 $ 20,597,303 $ (20,612,905) $ 683,385
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable $ 58,621 $ 9,714 $ (58,621) $ 9,714
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 640,366 4,433,932 (4,400,627) 673,671
Total liabilities $ 698,987 $ 4,443,646 $ (4,459,248) $ 683,385
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 COMPLIANCE REPORTS
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

I ndependent Auditorsd Report

To the Auditor of
State of Hawaii:

We have audited in accordance with auditing standagdsrglly accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contaif@aviernment Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, he businessype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Hawaii as of and for the year ended
Jure 30, D13, and the related notes to the financial statésnevhich collectively comprise the State of
Hawaiits basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 23m@1y.

Our report includes a reference tiher auditorsvho audited the financial statements of the Department
of Transprtationd Airports and Harbors Divisions, which are major enterprise funds; the Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fundhe Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, the Employer
Union Health Benefits Trust Fund, which are nonmajor enterprise fundsha University of Hawaii,

the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation, the Hawaii Public Housing Authority, the
Hawaii Tourism Authority, the Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund, the Hawaii Community Development
Authority, and the Hawaii Health Syshs Corporation, which are discretely presented component units,
as described in our report on the State of Haw/éimancial statements. This report does not include the
results of the other auditdresting of internal control over financial reportiogcompliance and other
matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the State dsHawaii
internal control over finanal reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ®@bStdawaics internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of State of &antaiinal control.

A deficiency in internal contragxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employeds the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely bagsisat&rial weaknesis a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonablibiptysthat a material misstatement

of the entitys financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Member of
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A significant deficiencys a deficiencyor a combination of deficiencigi® internal control that is less
sevee than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose describedfirstigaragraplof this

sectionand was not designed to identify déficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identifie@Given these limitations, during our audit we did not iderdify

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule dfrfgs and questioned costs that we consider to be
significant deficiencie$2013-001 through 203-004).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State oftsifimaiicial statements are

freefrom material nisstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howgesiding an opinion on compliance

with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosednstances of noncompliance or other matters that are

required to be repatl undeiGovernment Auditing Standards

State of Hawaifs Response to Findings

The State of Hawads response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and question c3ie State of Hawads responsaas not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of interndlarhitompliance

and the resudtof that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of thesemtigrnal

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standaris considering the entifg internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dty ¥ Sauche LiP

Honolulu, Hawaii
January 272014
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

I ndependent Auditorsd Report

To the Auditor of
State of Hawaii:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the State of HawmiDepantnent of Accounting and General Servid@spartment of
Agriculture, Department oBudget and Financ&epartment oBusiness, Economic Development and
Tourism,Department oCommerce and Consumer AffaiBepartment oDefenseDepartment of

Human ResourceDevelopmentepartment of.abor and Industrial RelationBepartment of.and and
Natural Resourcefepartment oPublic SafetyDepartment ofraxation, and the GovernisrOffice
(collectively, thefiDepartments), compliance with the types of compliarmeguirements described in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemehgt could have a direct and material effect on each of
these Departmerfisnajor federal programs for the year ended Bhe2013. These Departmeditsajor
federal programs are idefitid in the summary of auditdisesults section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

The State of Hawdié basic financial statements include, among other departments and agencies, the
operations of: Department tfe Attorney Gaeral, Department of Education, Department of Hawaiian
Home Lands, Department of Health, Department of Human Services, Department of Transportation,
Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, Hawaii Community Development Authority, Hawaii
EmployerUnion Health Benefits Trust Fund, Hawaii Health Systems Corporation, Hawaii Housing
Finance and Development Corporation, Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund, Hawaii Public Housing Authority,
Hawaii Tourism Authority, University of Hawaii, and the Water Pollution GariRevolving Fund.

These entitiegxpended $,030,702,950n federal awards, whicarenot included in theccompanying
scheduleof expenditures of federal awarfis the year ended Jui®®, 2013. Our audit, described below,
did not include the operatios the Department of Attorney General, Department of Education,
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, Department of Health, Department of Human Services,
Department of Transportation, Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund, Hawaii Community
Developmen®uthority, Hawaii EmployeiUnion Health Benefits Trust Fund, Hawaii Health Systems
Corporation, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation, Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund,
Hawaii Public Housing Authority, Hawaii Tourism Authority, University of Hawand the Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund, because these units engaged other auditors to perform audits in
accordance with OMEircularA-133 or did not require an audit in accordance with CMiBularA-

133.
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Managemends Responsibility

Managemenis responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditorés Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Depadmajotsfedeal

programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financialits contained ittovernment Auditing Standardssued

by theComptroller General of the United States; and OBIiBular A-133,Audit of States, Local

Government, and NeRrofit Organizations Those standards and OMBrcularA-133 require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, e@sabasis, evidence about the Departnients

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliancé foagac
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Depértments
compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Major Federal Programs

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost, the Depalitheot

comply with the requirements regardicgsh managemetiiat are applicable to CFDMo. 12.401 and

ARRA 12.401 National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Proje@EDA No. 12.800Air

Force Defense Research Sciences Prog@RDA No. 17.225and ARRA 17.225Unemployment

Insurance CFDA No. 81.041and ARRA 81.041State Energy ProgranGFDA No. 93.525, State

Pl anning and Establishment Gr a n tCGFDA No.r97.656Pert Af f or d al
Security Grant Programand CFDA M. 97.067 Homeland Security Grant Prograas described in

finding numbers 201-815,2013022,2013035,2013044, 2013047, 2013050and2013053,

respectively Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Depéstiment

complywith the requirements applicable to that programs.

Qualified Opinion Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
Departmentsd compl i ed, typesddompliana requireémanits refegesifpe ct s,
above that could have a direct and material effect on CFDARd01 and ARRA 12.40National

Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projed@$-DA No. 12.800Air Force Defense Research

Sciences ProgranCFDA No. 17.225and ARRA 17.225Unemployment Insuranc€FDA No. 81.041

and ARRA 81.041State Energy ProgranCFDA No.93.525,State Planning and Establishment Grants

for the Affordabl @FDEIMHor % .058R0tt SesuritiE GranhPaogrgnard CFDA

No. 97.067Homeland Security Grant Prografar the year ended June 30, 2013.

Unmodified Opinion onEach of the Other Major Federal Programs

Inouropiniont he Depart ment s® c¢ o mp Wiih theltypesiohcongpliahce mat er i al
requiremets referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Departtinemts
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major federal programisdent i fi ed i n the summary of auditords
schedule of findings and questioned cdstghe year ended Juid®, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to
be reported in accordance with OMBrcularA-133 and which are described in the accompanying

schedule of findings and questaxhcosts as items 28005 through 2038-014, 2013-016 through 203-

021, 2013023 through 2013034, 2013-036through 208-043, 2013045, 2013046, 2013048, 2013

049, 2013051, 2013052,and2013-054 through 20B-057. Our opinion on each major fedepabgram is

not modified with respect to these matters.

The Departmentzesponse to the noncompliance findimgentified in our audit are described in the
accompanying corrective action plan. The Departndgatponse was not subjected to the auditing
procedues applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the State of Hawaii is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over comiiance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Departdiateésnal control over compliance

with the types of requirements that could have a direct and matedel eff each major federal program

to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each nfaperalprogram and to test and report on internal
control over compliarein accordance with OMBircularA-133, but not for the purpose of expiiegs

an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Departre@imternal control over copliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or sigant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be materiaésazskand
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over complianegists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to pevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basisfaterial weakness in internal control over compliaizca

deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over diamge, such that there is

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies
in internal control wer compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item2013015,2013022, 2013035, 2013044, 2013047, 2013050 and 201353to be

material weaknesses

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliansea deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to metiattention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
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items2013-005 through 201814, 2013016 through 201821, 2013023 tirough 2013034, 2013036
through 208-043, 2013045, 2013046, 2013048, 2013049, 2013051, 2013052, and 201854
through 2013057to be significant deficiencies.

The Departmentgesponse to thimternal control over compliandadings identified in ar audit are

described in the accompanying corrective action plan. The Deparfmesgense was not subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

The purpose of this repash internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any othénpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by GBitBular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of governmental activities, the bugpesastivities, the

aggregate discretely presented component units, eachfunagorand the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of Hawaii as of and for the year endesl3Iyr#013, and have issued our report
thereondatedJanuary27, 2014 ,which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Our auditwas conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by OMBircularA-133 and is not a requirguhrt of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial stédemémthe financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated
in all maerial respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Dt ¥ Sauche LIP

Honolulu, Hawaii
March 28 2014

-132-



STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
U.S. Department of Agriculture Direct Programs:
Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care
Voluntary Public Access and Habitat Incentive Program
Inspection Grading and Standardization
Market Protection and Promotion
Specialty Crop Block Grant
Organic Certification Cost Share Programs
Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs)
Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program
Emerging Markets Program
Cooperative Forestry Assistance
Urban and Community Forestry Program
Forest Legacy Program
Forest Stewardship Program
Forest Health Protection

Federal

Amount
Federal Provided to

CFDA Number Expenditures Subrecipients

10.025 $
10.093
10.162
10.163

Program 0 KE&vOm Bi

ARRA 90 Wildland Fire Management

Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention
Wildlife Habitat Incentive Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture Direct Programs

U.S. Department of Agriculture Pass-Through Program from:
State Department of Human

10.171
10.568
10.576
10.603
10.664
10.675
10.676
10.678
10.680
ARRA 10.688
10.904
10.914

526,636 $ -
20,232
12,723
35,272
1420,368
46,066
76,003 52,301
486,817 466,107
575
1,283,539 707,084
438,322 56,186
42,556
298,490 108,080
1,121,055
563,606
214,293
115,989

5,702,542 1,389,758

Services 0 State Administrati v

Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE:

U.S. Department of Commerce Direct Programs:
Economic Adjustment Assistance
Interjurisdictional Fisheries Act of 1986
Fishery Products Inspection and Certification
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards

Financial Assistance for National Centers for Coastal Ocean Science

Marine Sanctuary Program
Pacific Fisheries Data Program
Unallied Management Projects
Habitat Conservation
Meteorologic and Hydrologic Modernization Development
Unallied Science Program
Coastal Services Center
Center for Sponsored Coast
Coral Reef Conservation Program

10.561

134,792

5,837,334 1,389,758

11.307
11.407
11.413
11.419
11.426
11.429
11.437
11.454
11.463
11.467
11.472
11.473

al Ocean Re#%letd@8r ch

ARRA 0 State Broadband Data and

Manufacturing Extension Partnership

Nati onal Oceanic and Atmosphere
Hawaiian Islands Humpback Whale, Joint Enforcement Agreement

Total U.S. Department of Commerce

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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11.482
De VARRAILBES n t
11.611
Administrati
11.Unknown

164,534
42,623
564
1,984,537 1,086,440
40,567
325,130
392,479
45,963
118,580
522,079
235,508
192,969 74,859
031l@idast al Oc:
305,969
@32587Vt P rd82¢p87a |
404,944
on & Managem
742,039

5,982,483 1,593,886
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title CFDA Number

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE:
U.S. Department of Defense Direct Programs:

National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects 12.401
ARRA 0 National Guard Military Ope rARRA1B.40%
National Guard ChalleNGe Program 12.404
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering 12.630
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800
Research and Technology Development 12.910

Total U.S. Department of Defense

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Federal

Expenditures

$ 21,001,492

a n 261,89a
3,799,283
81,820
4,985,798
1,598,550

Amount
Provided to
Subrecipients

intenanc

31,728,833

Uu. S. Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment Direct Pr
Fair Housing Assistance Program 0 St al4dd0land 128,996 |
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 128,996 -
DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR:
U.S. Department of Interior Direct Programs:
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 504,404
Coastal Wetlands Planning, Protection and Restoration Act 15.614 33,066
Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund 15.615 4,030,856 173,146
Partners for Fish and Wildlife 15.631 23,784
Landowner Incentive Program 15.633 751,260
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 673,000
Service Training and Technical Assistance (Generic Training) 15.649 2,013
Endangered Species Conservation 0 Recl®85ry | 9@p25e&mentatio
Fish and Wildlife Coordination and Assistance Programs 15.664 17,175
Economic, Social, and Political Development of the Territories 15.875 131,088
Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 106,096
Outdoor Recreation o0 Acquisition, Devl®pblép men873,286d PI83,806 i
Natural Resource Stewardship 15.944 463,716
Coral Reef Studies 15.Unknown 21,964
Total U.S. Department of Interior Direct Programs 8,556,009 960,951
Fish and Wildlife Cluster:
Sport Fish Restoration Program 15.605 3,310,241
Wildlife Restoration and Basic Hunter Education 15.611 1,817,168
Total Fish and Wildlife Cluster 5,127,409 -
Total U.S. Department of Interior 13,683,418 960,951
See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. (Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Amount
Federal Federal Provided to
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures Subrecipients
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
U.S. Department of Justice Direct Programs:
Discretionary Grant Program 16.203 $ 70,348 $ -
Crime Victim Compensation 16.576 404,905
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement Assistance
Discretionary Grants Program 16.580 128,503
Statewide Automated Victim Information Notification Program 16.740 145,492
Criminal and Juvenile Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program 16.745 58,696
Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative 16.812 83,791
U.S. Drug Enforcement Agency 16.Unknown 149,206
Marijuana Eradication 16.Unknown 226,681
Total U.S. Department of Justice Direct Programs 1,267,622 -
U.S. Department of Justice Pass-Through Programs from:
State Department of the Attorney General:
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners 16.593 82,426
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program 16.742 139,768
Total U.S. Department of Justice Pass-Through Programs 222,194 -
State Department of the Attorney General:
Justice Assistance Grant Program Cluster:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 117,315
ARRA &6 Edward Byrne Memori al Justice Assistance Grant
Program/Grants to States and Territories ARRA 16.803 104,283
Total Justice Assistance Grant Program Cluster 221,598 -
Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,711,414 -
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR:
U.S. Department of Labor Direct Programs:
Labor Force Statistics 17.002 637,943
Compensation and Working Conditions 17.005 73,345
Unemployment Insurance 17.225 357,815,540
ARRA 6 Unemployment Insurance ARRA 17.225 527,393
Senior Community Service Employment Program 17.235 1,942,403 1,806,450
Trade Adjustment Assistance 17.245 41,565
ARRA o6 Workforce Investment Act Di sARREH260d WdZR3GeLr s 63,732
Workforce Investment Act Pilots, Demonstrations, and Research Projects 17.261 974,772
Work Opportunity Tax Credit Program 17.271 153,316
Temporary Labor Certification for Foreign Workers 17.273 49,312
ARRA 6 Program of Competitive Grants for Worker Training
Placement in High Growth and Emerging Industry Sectors ARRA 17.275 2,036,653 1,617,278
Workforce Investment Act National Emergency Grants 17.277 14,845
Occupational Safety and Health o6 St at &.563r ogrls829,831
Consultation Agreements 17.504 380,430
Total U.S. Department of Labor Direct Programs 366,091,899 3,487,460
See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. (Continued)
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Amount
Federal Federal Provided to
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Employment Service Cluster:
Employment Service/Wagner-Peyser Funded Activities 17.207 $ 3,036,278 $ -
Di sabled Veteransé Outreach Program 17.801 350,901
Local Veteransdé Employment Represent afl7804e Pr 8625 m
Total Employment Service Cluster 3,762,436 -
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster:
WIA Adult Program 17.258 2,628,730 1,906,584
WIA Youth Activities 17.259 2,290,190 2,057,164
WIA Dislocated Workers 17.278 2,208,364 1,490,928
Total Workforce Investment Cluster 7,127,284 5,454,676
u. s. Department of Labor Pass-Through Program from &
State of Hawaii Research Corporation of the University of
Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training Grants 17.282 166,487
Total U.S. Department of Labor 377,148,106 8,942,136

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
U.S. Department of Transportation Direct Programs:

Recreational Trails Program 20.219 602,160
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants 20.703 110,600
Total U.S. Department of Transportation Direct Programs 712,760 -
u. s. Department of Transportation Pass-Through Program 0
State Department of Transporation 0 FRObeOr al 6FB60®HMsi t o Ca
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 7,273,408 -
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY:
u. s. Department of Treasury Direct Program 0
State Small Business Credit Initiative 21.Unknown 315,000 315,000
Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 315,000 315,000
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION:
u. s. Equal Empl oyment Opportunity Commi ssion Direct Prograi
Discrimination & State and Local Fair30002p 1 oy m&@4Q@8 Pr acti c:
Total Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 189,408 -
GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION:
U.S. General Services Administration Direct Programs:
Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property 39.003 3,967,193
Help America Vote Act 2002, Title I, Section 101 39.011 290,945
Total U.S. General Services Administration 4,258,138 -

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

-136-

(Continued)



STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS:

u. S. National Endowment for the
Promotion of the Arts o Partn
Total National Endowment for the Arts
SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION:
u. S. Smal | Business Administration

State Trade and Export Promotion Pilot Grant Program
Total U.S. Small Business Administration

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Direct Programs:
Performance Partnership Grants
Pollution Prevention Grants Program

Total Environmental Protection Agency

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:
U.S. Department of Energy Direct Programs:
State Energy Program
ARRA & State Energy Program
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

ARRA 6 Weatherization Assistance

Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Information Dissemination,
Outreach, Training and Technical Analysis/Assistance

State Energy Program Special Projects

Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability, Research, Development
and Analysis

ARRA & Electricity Delivery and

Development and Analysis
ARRA & Energy Ef
s e

fi
arch

iency and

Amount
Provided to
Subrecipients

Federal Federal
CFDA Number Expenditures

s Direct Program 0
i p A45t0B5e m® n 749,931 $ 286,578

749,931 286,578

Direct Program 0

59.061 497,634 251,563
497,634 251,563
66.605 227,281
66.708 21,976
249,257 -
81.041 100,233
ARRA 81.041 3,653,862 712,996
81.042 88,908 74,538
f 0ARRA&LWA42| n c o 46514P e r s 4082
81.117 212,990 212,990
81.119 981,947 910,000
81.122 20,751
Energy Reliability, Resec¢
ARRA 81.122 197,008

[« Conser ARRAB81428 Bl @@7kK44Gr an t7,489r «
Projects Agency

Advanced Re 0 E 8lelB5g y 6,357
Total U.S. Department of Energy Direct Programs 5,516,314 1,958,095
U. S. Department of Energy Pass-Through Program 9
University of Hawaii & Conservation R8&l08ar ch &R27 Devel opl
Total U.S. Department of Energy 5,520,541 1,958,095

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
U.S. Department of Education Di

U.S. Department of Education Pass-Through Programs from:
State Department of Education
and Delinquent Children and Youth
University of Hawaii & Career

Total U.S. Department of Education Pass-Through Programs from
the State Department of Education and the University of Hawaii

Total U.S. Department of Education

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Amount
Federal Federal Provided to
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor and Program Title CFDA Number Expenditures Subrecipients

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Direct Programs:
Affordable Care Act State Healthcare Workforce Development Grants 93509 $ 12530 $ -
Affordable Care Act Grants to States for Health Insurance Premium Review 93.511 137,074
State Planning and Establishment Gr an®35625f or 4P2M@E86Af f402240386b
Refugee and Entrant Assistance 0 St at @.586dmi nilG06lr ed $0r200g |

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 3,929,765 3,793,718
Af fordabl e Car e Aé¢unding forSviogetDesigh nnovati on Model s
and Model Testing Assistance 93.624 188,828
ARRA 0 Strengthening Communities FuARRA93.711 65,361
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Direct Programs 8,664,505 8,108,814

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Pass-Through Program from:
St ate Department of Health & Substance Abuse and Ment al
Projects of Regional and National Significance 93.243 920
State Department of Human Services 08 J355por ar69,949s si sl60000c «

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Pass-Through
Programs from the State Department of Health and Human Services 270,869 150,000

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 8,935,374 8,258,814

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
U.S. Department of Homeland Security Direct Programs:

Non-Profit Security Program 97.008 28,323 28,323
Boating Safety Financial Assistance 97.012 856,464
Community Assistance Program State Support Services Element 97.023 58,171
Disaster Grants-Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 1,905,220 1,904,751
National Dam Safety Program 97.041 75,721
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2,962,322 2,962,306
Cooperating Technical Partners 97.045 127,235
Fire Management Assistance Grant 97.046 265
Pre-Disaster Mitigation 97.047 255,649 255,649
Emergency Operations Center 97.052 91,000
Interoperable Emergency Communications 97.055 112,220 110,102
Port Security Grant Program 97.056 3,926,723 1,190,912
Intercity Bus Security Grants 97.057 195,469
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 10,607,231 7,518,956
Buffer Zone Protection Program 97.078 639
Earthquake Consortium 97.082 7,648 7,648
Regional Catastrophic Preparedness Grant Program 97.111 1,876,442 1,843,366
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 23,086,742 15,822,013
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $487,813,796  $39,807,953
See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. (Concluded)
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STATE OF HAWAII

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) includes the federal grant activity
of thefollowing State of Hawaii departments and agencies

Department of Accounting and General Servigistate DAGS)
Department of AgriculturéfiState DOA)

Department of Budget and FinaniState B&F)

Department of Business, Economic Development and To|fiStae DBEDT0)
Department of Commerce and Consumer AffeirSt at e) DCCAO
Department of DefendéiState DOD)

Department of Human Resources Development

Department of Labor and Industrial Relati¢fiState DLIRY)

Department of Land and Natural Resour@&tateDLNRO)

Department of Public Safe{fiState DP§)

Department of Taxation

Governoés Office

=8 =4 =8 =8 =888 8888

Certainotherdepartments anagenciewithin the State of Hawaiobtainedseparataudits performed in
accordance with OMB Circula-133, and accordingly, separatel33 submissionhave been made
(seeNote2).

2. OTHER STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENTS AND AGEN CIES NOT INCLUDED IN THE
ACCOMPANYING SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The following is a summary of Staté Hawaiidepartments and agencies tbatainseparate OMB
CircularA-133 auditor do not receive federal grants atiterefore do not obtain an OMB
CircularA-133 audit Awards listed in these audit reports are not included iachempanying SEFA

Department of the Attorney General

Department of Edcation

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands
Department of Health

Department of Human Services

Department of Transportation

Drinking WaterTreatmenRevolving Loan Fund
Hawaii Community Development Authority
Hawaii EmployerUnion HealthBenefits Trust Fund
Hawaii Health Systems Corporation

Hawaii Housing FinancandDevelopment Corporation
Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund

Hawaii Public Housing Authority

Hawaii Tourism Authority

University of Hawaii

Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

E R . T I BB B R |
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The bagk financial statements of the State of Hawaii have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAI®)Governmental Accounting
Standards Board is the accepted stangatting body for eskdishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirenthet®ffice of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circuksr133,Audits of States, Lot&overnments, and Nerofit
OrganizationsExpenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting.

NONMONETARY ASSISTAN CE

The SEFAcontains values for a nonmonetary assistance progiamrovided by program regulations
propety received under the Donation of Federal SurplessonaPropertyprogram CFDA No. 39.003)
is preented athefederalgovernmends historical cost.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURAN CE

State unemployment tax revenues and government contributions are used togbiésy nester federally
approved State unemployment la@f the$358342,933reported as expenditures for tlmemployment
insurance program (CFDHNo. 17.225),$224,122,313epresented expendituresSthate of Hawaii
funds.

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDE RAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

The regulations and guidelines governing the preparation of Federal and state financial reports vary by
state and Federabency and among programs administered by the same ageooydingly, the

amounts reported in the Federal andestaiancial reportslo not necessarily agree with the amounts
reported in the accompanyil&EFAwhich is prepared as explainedNiotes3 and 4 above.
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8. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

The SEFAincludes the followindResearch and Developmemhounts:

Federal Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture Direct Programs:
Urban and Community Forestry Program 10.675 $ 438,322
Forest Stewardship Program 10.678 298,490
Forest Health Protection 10.680 1,121,055
Total U.S Department of Agriculture 1,857,867
U.S. Department of Commerce Direct Programs:
Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards 11.419 1,984,537
Financial Assistance for National Centers for Coastal Ocean Science 11.426 40,567
Center for Sponsored Coast al Oc e alM78Re s ear 8H411H
Coral Reef Conservation Program 11.482 305,969
Total U.S Department of Commerce 2,362,484
U.S. Department of Defense Direct Programs:
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering 12.630 81,820
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 4,985,798
Research and Technology Development 12.910 1,598,550
Total U.S Department of Defense 6,666,168
U.S. Department of Interior Direct Programs:
Sport Fish Restoration Program 15.605 3,310,241
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 504,404
Wildlife Restoration and Basic Hunter Education 15.611 1,817,168
Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund 15.615 4,030,856
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 673,000
Endangered Species Conservation @&568ecover9oe4Aing
Economic, Social, and Political Development of the Territories 15.875 131,088
Natural Resource Stewardship 15.944 463,716
Total U.S Department of Interior 11,854,724
U.S. Department of Energy Pa8shr ough Program From 0
University of Hawaii 0 Conservat Blo0B6 Resear L2227 ¢
Total Research and Development Cluster $22,745,470

* k kk k%
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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STATE OF HAWAII

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION 18 SUMMARY OF AUDITOR®&® RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditofs report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

1 Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

1 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes none reported

Noncompliance material to consolidated financial
statementsioted? yes X no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? X yes no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes none reported

Type of auditofs report issued on compliance for major programs:

An unmodified opinion was issued on the State of Hadaiompliance with its major
federal prgrams for the year ended JB®& 208, except fotthe requiremeistregarding
cash management that are applicablEeR®A No.12.401 and ARRA 12.40National
Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projec@®~DA No. 12.800Air Force
Defense Research Sciences Progr@fDA No.17.225and ARRA 17.225
Unemployment Insuranc€FDANo. 81.041and ARRA 81.041State Energy Program
CFDA No.93.525,State Planning and Establistent Grants for the Affordable Care
Act 6 s EXEDANO §7e056Port Security Grant Prograirand CFDA No.
97.067,Homeland Security Grant Prograrfor which the opinion on compliance was
qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required tadmorted in
accordance with Sectiobl((a) of OMB CircularA-133? X yes no
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Identification of major programs:

Federal CFDA Number

ARRA 10.688
ARRA 11.558

12.401
ARRA 12.401

12.404

17.225
ARRA 17.225

ARRA 17.275

Employment Service Cluster:
17.207
17.801
17.804

39.003

81.041
ARRA 81.041

93.525
93.569
97.042
97.056
97.067

Research and Development Cluster:
10.675
10.678
10.680
11.419
11.426
11.478
11.482
12.630
12.800
12.910
15.605
15.608
15.611
15.615
15.634
15.657
15.875
15.944
81.086

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

ARRA & Wildland Fire Management
ARRA 0 State Broadband Data and Dev

National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects
ARRA 6 National Guard Military Oper

National Guard ChalleNGe Program

Unemployment Insurance
ARRA o6Unempl oyment Il nsurance

ARRA &6 Program of Competitive Grant
Placement in High Growth and Emerging Industry Sectors

Employment Service/Wagner-Peyser Funded Activities
Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program
Local Veterans' Employment Representative Program

Donation of Federal Surplus Personal Property

State Energy Program
ARRA &6 State Energy Program

State Planning and Establishment Grants for the Affordable Care Act's Exchang
Community Services Block Grant

Emergency Management Performance Grants

Port Security Grant Program

Homeland Security Grant Program

Urban and Community Forestry Program

Forest Stewardship Program

Forest Health Protection

Coastal Zone Management Administration Awards

Financial Assistance for National Centers for Coastal Ocean Science
Center for Sponsored Coast al Ocean
Coral Reef Conservation Program

Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering

Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program

Research and Technology Development

Sport Fish Restoration Program

Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance

Wildlife Restoration and Basic Hunter Education

Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund

State Wildlife Grants

Endangered Species Conservation 0 R
Economic, Social, and Political Development of the Territories

Natural Resource Stewardship

Conservation Research and Development

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $3,000,000

Auditee qualified as lowisk auditee? yes X no
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SECTION 11 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
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SECTION 11 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

REFERENCE: 2013-001

Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Significant Deficiency)

State Department of Accounting and General Services

Criteria 0 Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control over financial

reporting, the objectives of which are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute assurance that
transactions are executedinacabance wi th management 6s authorizat.
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP). ThetateDepartment of Accounting and GenleBervices $tateDAGS)
Accounting Division is responsible for preparing |
(CAFR) in accordance with GAAP.

Conditond The Stateb6s internal contr ol over fi30ancial
2013 audit, we identified multiple deficiencies, that, when considered in the aggregate, indicated a significant
deficiency in thes t a interdakcontrol over financial reporting.

The process used by tB¢ateDAGS Accounting Division to consoliterequired information from State
departments and agencies to create the CAFR (e.g., preparing Governmental Fund financial statements on a
modified accrual basis and the Governm@fitle financial statements on an accrual basis) is inefficient, time
consuning, and causes delays in statewide financial repoiietays caused by State departments and

agencies do not provide adequate timeSateDAGS management to perform necessary \geaf closing

review and reconciliation procedures.

Information necessg to prepare such accounting entries must be obtained from the State departments and
agencies. In fiscal year 2018tateDAGS requested formal reporting information packages to obtain the
financial information from State departments but did not receleguaate responses from some of the
departments

In addition, there is a lack of adequate review of appropriation warrants creStateBX{AGS for the

purpose of creating appropriations for various departments and divisions. Further, the reviewaryf trea
deposit receipts and journal voucher forms by departments are inadequate. The reviewlo$ipggburnal
entries to convert the cash basis financial statements to the modified accrual basis was also not performed
adequately to detect misstatement

A similar finding was i ncl udRetertdopagb3{Referpnca20l20l)y ear 6
Caused Due to inefficiencies of the financial statement preparation process, the lack of timeliness of

information received from variowdepartmentsand the lack of review at the departments atrfétateDAGS,
adjustmentsvere needetb compile the GovernmeiWide financial statements and footnote disclosures.
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Effectd Due to the information not being submittedSateDAGS timely andhe review of journal entries
by the departments ai8tateDAGS not being adequate, the following audit adjustments were identified and
were made to the financial statements

9 Correction of the following misstatements:

o $106million financial statementeclassificationbetweerrevenue, other financing sources,
and expenses

o $40million financial statement mdassification between intergovernmental revenues and
revenues from private sources

o $40million financial statement mdassificationbetweerrevenues ahexpenses related to
Medquest but recordday theStateDepartment oHumanServices

o $40million financial statememieclassification of cash to investments
i The following misstatementkat were not recorded in the financial statements

o $3million in assets not recorde@11 million in expenses not recorded, &idt million of
liabilities not recordedh the Special Revenue Fund for the effect of Charter School
transactions related to Department of Education Charter Schools

Recommendatio® DAGS shoutl continue to develop wetlefined, systematic, efficient, and orderly
processes for financial reporting that include a comprehensive set of policies and procedures necessary to
establish internal control over financial reporting. The process and itdtkibytas (e.g., overall timing,
methodology, format, and frequency of analyses) should be formally documented, approved, communicated
to other departments and agencies, and monitored on a regular basis.

Appropriation warrants for new bills that passidgrthe year should be reviewed to ensure that the
appropriation is coded to the proper department or division to which the legislation relates. Further,
individuals who perform reviews of journal entries at the departments should be adequatelydraiview

for proper source codes, appropriations, and object codes being used. Departments should also perform a
thorough review of postlosing journal entries to ensure all items from various schedules are reflected in the
postclosing journal entries ahall journal entries properly reflect what is shown on the schedules.

Adherence to these policies and procedures will facilitate the processing of complete, accurate, and timely
financial information.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Aabin Plan.
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SECTION 11 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-002

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) (Significant Deficiency)

State Department of Accounting and General Services

Criteria @ The Federal Office of Managemertd Budget (OMB) issued OMB Circular133 pursuant to
the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. OMB CiréulE33 requires
nonFederal entities that expend $500,000 or nieyearf Federal award® have a Single Adit
conducted on its financial statements and SEFA.

OMB CircularA-133 established the following responsibilities for the Stateganagement:

91 Identify, in its accounts, all Federal awards received and expended and the Federal programs under
which they wereeceived. Federal program and award identification shall include, as applicable, the
CFDA title and number, award number and year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass
through entity.

1 Maintain internal control over Federal programs that pravigasonable assurance that the auditee is
managing Federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or
grant agreements that could have a material effect on each of its Federal programs.

1 Comply with laws, regulationsnd the provisions of contracts or grant agreements related to each of
its Federal programs.

1 Prepare appropriate financial statements, including the SEFA.

1 Ensure that the audits requiredthis circular are properly performed and submitted within nine
months after the end of the fiscal year end

Conditiond The Statés current accounting process does not tFezkeral funds individually within the

general ledger system. Instead, one appropriation account is often created and sstignedpective
departmentandmanyFederal grants expended by the department are grouped within the one appropriation
account. For a department that receives and expends mukigdeal funds, it must prepare and maintain
separate accounting records outside of the Financieddnting and Management Information System
(FAMIS), the Staté& general ledger system, to be able to segregate the cash balances, receipts, and
expenditures by each grant that it receives. These separate accounting records are maintained by multiple
accountants in the larger departments and are not combined and recomicilEAMIS periodically.

A similar finding was included in the prior yéarsingle audit reporRefer topage264 (Reference201202).
Caused A thorough review of each Departmé&teonciliation of its separate accounting records that track

Federal fund expenditures to FAMIS was not performed by someone knowledgeable to ensure that the
expenditure amounts and CFDA information were accurate.

-151-



Effectd Due to the deficiencies in internabntrol over the SEFA preparation noted above, material
misstatements occurred in the SEFA that were not detected by managentental controls and were
subsequently corrected through audit adjustments. Accordingly, we believe the above collegtigsbntea
significant deficiencyn internal control over financial reporting. The effects of the errors are:

1 Federal expenditure amounts for the following programs were inaccurate:

1 CFDA No.10.561,State Administrativélatching Grants for the Supplemenhdtrition
Assistance Programyas overstated by $79,885

1 CFDA No.12.401 National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projeetas
overstated by $271,137

1 CFDA No.12.404 National Guard ChalldlGe Program was understated by $271,137

1 CFDA No0.81.04] State Energy Progranwas overstated by $154,434

1 CFDA No.ARRA 81.041ARRAI State Energy Programwas overstated by $103,794

1 CFDA No. 93.558Temporary Assistance for Needy Familigas overstated by $387,364

1 Amounts reported as provided to subreaigsefor the following programs were inaccurate:

1 CFDA No0.93.525,State Planning and Establishment Grants for the Affordable Cafie #\ct
Exchangesexpenditures disclosed as being passed through to subrecipients were understated by
$4,224,886

1 The CFDA numbefor the following program was inaccurate:

1 CFDA No. 93.624Affordable Care Act State Innovation Models: Funding for Model Design
and Model Testing Assistander $188,828 was erroneously codeda nomxistent CFDA
number.

1 The expenditures in the SEFR&e reported on the cash basis of accounting. For the year ended June 30,
2013,the net effect oéxpenditures paid during the period July 1, 2013 through July 8, 2013 included in
the SEFAwas $581277.

Recommendatio® StateDAGS should develop a wedlefined process fdfederal financial reporting that

includes a comprehensive set of policies and procedures necessary to establish internal control over preparing

the SEFA.

Training and instructions should be communicated to affected State departmesgtahpkto aid in fiscal
manageme preparation of the SEFA.

Additionally, an independent review of departmental SEFA should be performed by appropriately trained
personnel to ensure completeness, consistency, and compliance with reporting requirath&tidde a
accounting and disclosure policies.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION 11 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-003

Accounting for Component Units and Proprietary Funds (Significant Deficiency)

State Department of Accounting and General Services

Criteria @ Component Units (CU) are legally separate organizations that the State must include as part of its
financial reporting entity for fair presentation in conformity with GAAP. CUs have unicgeuating and

reporting requirements as established by GASB Statemeiihélrinancial Reporting Entity: Omnibds

an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and Noh845ASB accounting standards provide defined

criteria for determining whether a partiaulegally separate entity is a CU of the State.

Similarly, Enterprise Funds that meet the definition of major funds established by GASB Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statemensand Management 6s DB©b docStasesanddotaland Anal y
Governmats: Omnibugd an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and Nsh@&dld be reported

separately within the Proprietary Fund (PF) financial statements.

Conditiond During fiscal year 2008tateDAGS implemented &nancial statemerytolicy on reporting

material CUs and PFs, whighdicatedthat only material CUs and PFs would be disclosed as discretely
presented CUs and major PFs in the CAFR. Materiality was determined based on certain quantitative criteria
determined bystateDAGS. During the year endetline 30, 2013%5tateDAGS revised its financial reporting

policy to comply with updated provisions from GASB Statement No. 61.

As a resultStateDAGS determinedhat the Stadium Authority, Hawaii Strategic Development Corporation,
Hawaii Technology Devepment Corporation, Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii, and Agribusiness
Development Corporation, met the definition of discretely presented CUs as defined in GASB Statement No.
61, but did not meet t he mat er ithmdwete pot disblasedsash ol ds u |
discretely presented in the June 30, 2013 CAFR. InsteadGtadium Authority, Hawaii Strategic

Development Corporation, Hawaii Technology Development Corporation, Natural Energy Laboratory of

Hawaii, and Agribusiness DevelopmeCorporationwere reported as part of the Governmental Funds to

which these entities were administratively attached.

StateDAGS alsodeterminedhat the Department of Labor and Industrial RelatioBssability

Compensation Fund, the Public Safety Dapanti Correctional Industries Fund, the Accounting and
General Services State Parking Revolving Fund, and the Accounting and General Sérktae®r Pool

Fund met the definition of PFs as defined in GASB Statement No. 37, but did not meet theitpaterial

t hreshol d ufindneial repotiregpolidyt, and tbud were not disclosed as PFs in the June 30, 2013
CAFR. Insteadthe Department of Labor and Industrial Relatiori3isability Compensation Fund, the Public
Safety Departmerit Correctionalndustries Fund, the Accounting and General Senvicgtste Parking
Revolving Fund, and the Accounting and General Serviddstor Pool Fundvere reported as part of the
Governmental Funds to which these entities were administratively attached.

Asimilar  f i ndi ng was incl uded i nRefertpag@otd(Reference20B203h.s s i n
Caused In determining which CUand PFshould be presented as discretely presented CUscamdajor
PFsin the CAFR, management did radoptthe gudelinesdescribedn GASB Statement No. 61 and GASB

Statement No. 3fespectivelyStateDAGS alsodeterminedhat some of theotentialCUs and PFare
unable to close them@ccounting recordand to complete audits in a timely manner, such that auiliteacial
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statements would not be available for the preparation of the CRirdRefore, implementation of GASB
Statement No. 61 and GASB Statement Now8udld require time and resources to complete and would
likely further delay the completion of the CAFR

Effectd | n accordance with the Stateds policy, these
Governmental Fundsctivities of the CAFR and were not reported as discretely presented CUs or major PFs,
despite meeting the CU and PF critarader GAAP A summary ofaccountbalances and funds that were
incorrectly classified by State management (in millidagresented below

Revenues Expenditures Assets
Discretely presentecbmponenunits:
Stadium Authority $6.8 $138 $87.4
Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii Authority 5.6 8.1 20.1
High Technology Development Corporation 6.6 7.5 12.4
Hawaii Strategic Development Corporation 2.0 4.0 55
Agribusiness Development Corporation 3.0 15.6 28.9
Nonmajorproprietaryfunds:
Department of Land and Industrial Relatigns
Disability Compensation Fund 16.0 16.1 15.3
Public Safety DepartmeintCorrectional
Industries Fund 3.9 4.2 4.4
Accounting and General ServiceState
Parking Revolving Fund 3.7 3.8 23.5
Accounting and General Service$lotor
Pool Fund 25 2.5 4.0

We believe that this situation results in a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.

Recommendatio® StateDAGS should consider changing t8&FR accountingand reportingpolicy to
conform to the provisionsf GASB Statement Nos. 37 and 61.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION 11 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-004

Accounting for Cash Receipts at the Department of Taxation (Significant Deficiency)

State Department of Taxation

Criteria 0 A best practice for effective internal controls is the reconciliatiolewénues te@ash receipts.

According to the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) 2013

Internal Control Integated Framework, Chapter 7, a reconciliation compares two or more data elements, and,

if differences are identified, action is taken to bring the data into agreement. According to the COSO
framework, a reconciliation is an example of a transadtipe cortrol that can address the completeness and

or accuracy of transaction®aymentsubmittedoy t axpayers and deposiged int
should bereconciletd o every individual taxpayer record withi
accounting records.

Condition 8 Taxpayers have theptiontos ubmi t t ax payments through the
website DOTAX refers to tax payments collected through online submissicgle@sonic fundieposits.

Taxpayers who use tleHawaii.gov websiteéo submit tax payments are able to select from two methods of
payment:1l) credit card paymenty 2) an AutomatedClearingHouse (ACH)transfer (amethod of
transferringinds directly from the taxpayéeérsddbamknlacaound

1 Credit Card PaymenisPayments processed through credit cards are first receivibe Hawaii
Information Consortium (HIC), a third parservice providecontracted by DOTAX HIC receives
moni es i nto Hla@odegatethataxkayen datm and cash,collectbdn deposits theash
i nt o t hreasuB/ tankceodrs.

1 ACH Transferi ACH transfers argransferredd i r ect ly from the taxpayerds
treasury banlaccount The bank maintainingtifet at e treasuryo6s account doe
of deposits, instead it sends a daily confirmation to DOTAX, indicating only the grand total deposits
received by the bank via ACH transactions for the day.

Cash received i n tg whetheSttarsfereed foom b€ wikcreditcardpayments or directly
from the taxpayer via ACH transfers, should be reconciled to tax returns submitted by the individual taxpayer
each accounting period.

Caused DOTAX does noteceive details diaxpaymat s from t he Stletdeta r e
effectively reconciléndividual cash receipts to tax returns. Whilh e St at e t r e aBQITAX
with confirmation of amounts received on a daily basis, the confirmation lacks suffecipatye detail to
enableDOTAX to identify specific taxpayers

Q <

(@) e))
o =

Effectd At June 30, 2013, the Statebs accounting recor
received in the State treasury and eHawaii.gov online tax submissions of approximatélioi6 DOTAX
was unable to determine which specific taxpayer(s) caused the unreconciled difference.

Recommendatio® DOTAX shouldimprove its procedures to account for online tax payments. Detailed
cash receipts by individual taxpayer should be reitexhto detailed taxpayer records. Differences should be
identified, investigated, and reported to appropriate personnel for further actions at each accounting period
close.
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Also, since the State relies on the successful operating effectivenessradliotetrols at a thirgarty

service provider for complete and accurate recordkeeping and cash collections, the State should consider
obtaining additional assurance over the operating environment of the service provider. A possible procedure
wouldbetor equi re the service provider to obtain a ser)\
di sclosures about the service providero6s internal

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.

- 156-



SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

REFERENCE: 2013-005

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.10.680 Research and Development Clusteir Forest Health Protection
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Agriculture (Awat@-DG-11052021036)

Criteria 8 U.S. Department of the TreasuRggulatons 31CFR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requires the State to minimize the time betweeaedkptof Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Statebdés disbursement ofngt he f ul
and amount of furglbeing requested and received must be as close as administratively feabibletoat e 6 s
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days ¢éodbreasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the

date of receipt of cash from the Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different
time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined ¥élections oFederalcashdrawsand identifiedoneinstance

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweernréoeipt of the-ederal cash advanceanch e St at ed s
disbursement of thieinds exceeded 3@ays (43 day)s As a result, the State may be accountable for interest
earned ortheadvance when the State does not minimize the time elapsed betweetethtof the funds

from theFederal governmemind the disbursement.

Questioned Costd The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Causei The lag in dishrsing the funds was due to the lack of resourcesraachalcontrols to ensure that
the Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we netloneout of 17 instances totaling4b,001where Federal funds were disbursed after 30
days from being received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DLNRshoul consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the time lag betwede receipt and disbursementfederal fundin accordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Correctivéction Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-006

Reporting (Significant Deficiency)

Untimely Submission of Reports
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No. 10.680 Research and Develoment Clusteri Forest Health Protection
Direct Award from the U.S. Department éfgriculture (Award 10-DG-11052021036)

Criteria & TheStateDLNR receives funds from the U.S. Departmen#gficulturefor the Forest Health
Protection programwhich requirs semiannual progress reports to be filed one month folloveimghsemt
annual period.

Conditiond During our audit, wexamined the two serainnual progress reports as of themianth
periodsendedDecember 31, 2012, and June 30, 2013. The progress fepperiod ended June 30, 2013
was submitted on August 23, 2013, which wasl@s past the due date of July 30, 2013.

Questioned Costd None.

Caused The individuals responsible for preparing the reports did not properly monitor the required deadline
to submit theprogresseport.

Effectd The filing of theprogresgeport after the required deadline results in noncompliance with the
program requirement.

Recommendatio® Controls related to the preparation and review of the reports should be improved
order to ensure that required reports are submitted on a timely Has&tate DLNRshould consider
implementing aracking systenof the required report® remind the preparers of the due datisaddition,
thereviewers of theeportsshould mortor the timeliness of theeportpreparation and submission.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-007

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.ARRA 10.688 ARRA & Wildland Fire Management
Direct Award from the U.SDepartment of AgriculturéAward 09-DG-11059702022)

Criteriad U.S. Department of the TreasuRggulations 3ICFR Sectior205.33, for cash management
compliance, requires the State to minimize the time betweeardkptof Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Stasedisbursement of the funéts Federal program purposes. Therefore, the timing

and amount of funds being requested and received must be as close as administratively fdasibds

actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowedste dodisThe

State has determine® 8ays to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the
date of receipt of cash from the Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different
time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 4@lections ofederal cash dravesd identified 15nstances

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweernréoeipt of thd=ederal cash advances andh e St at ed s
disbursement of the fusdexceeded 3@ays (range of 32 t88 days). As a result, the State may be

accountable for interest earned on advances when the State does not minimize the time elapsed between the
receiptof the funds from th&ederal governmerind the disbursement.

A similar finding was included in theripr yeais single audit reporRefer to pag®71 (Reference201207).
QuestionedCostsd The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resourcastarrhlcontrols to ensurthat
the Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we noted 15 out ofid8tances totaling $189,962 where Federal funds were disbureed aft
30 days from being received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DLNRshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management interold con
to minimize the time lag betwede receipind disbursememif Federal fund# accordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Respasible Officialsd See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-008

Period of Availability (Significant Deficiency)

Expenditures Paid Subsequent to Liquidation Period
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.ARRA 10.688 ARRA & Wildland Fire Management
Direct Award from the U.SDepatment of AgriculturgAward 09-DG-11059702022and10-DG-11059702
082)

Criteria 0 According to OMB CirculaNo. A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circullio. A-110 (2 CFR
Section215.71),Federal awards may specify a time period during which the nonfederalreagtyse the

Federal funds. Where a funding period is specified, a nonfederal entity may charge to the award only costs
resulting from obligations incurred during the funding period and angweed costs authorized by the

Federal awarding agency.

According to the grant agreement, all obligations associated with the grant should be paidaddys &
the grant ending date (Octot&l, 212).

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 3&lections for compliance with period of availability
requirementsnd notedneinstance of noncompliance. According to the geagreementthe progranended
on Octobe 31, 12, and theStateDLNR obtainedanextension for amdditionall80days (througtApril 29,
2013) to payand liquidateall grant obligations. Hower, we notedneexpenditure totaling #,476that was
processed for paymeat May 31, 013,which wassubsequent to the deadline to pay all grant obligations
Questioned Costd8 $12,476

Caused The invoice was not received from the vendor timely.

Effectd $12,4760f expenditurepaidafter theliquidation periodwvere improperlypaid by Federal funds.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance with the period of
availability should be improved. The State DLNR should imprbeediesign and implementatiofinternal
controlsto communicate the period of availability of funds to enguoper cutoff ofexpenditurest the end
of a grant.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-009

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

CFDA No. 11.419 Research and Development Cluster Coastal Zone ManagemenAdministration
Awards
Direct Award from U.S. Department dtommercgAward NA11NOS4190095

Criteria d U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€CBR Sectior205.33, for cash management

complance, requires the State to minimize the time between the receipt of Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Statebés disbursement of the ful
and amount of funds being requested and receivedm be as c¢cl ose as administr
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for diesntqosis (from the

date of receipt of cash from the Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different
time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined foselections ofederal cash dravesd identified

oneinstancan which the number of days elapsed betweernréoeipt of thé-ederal cash advance aBd at e 6 s
disbursement of the fundxceeded 3@ays (38 days). As a result, the State may be accountable for interest
earned ortheadvance when the State does not minirtiieetime elapsed between tleeeiptof the funds

from theFederal governmemind the disbursement.

Questioned Costd The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resourcéstanthlcontrols to ensure that
the Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we noted one out of finstances totaling $268,450 wheredEral fundsveredisbursed after
30 days from being received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DBEDTshould consider improving the design and implementati@ash management internal

controls to minimize the time lag betwettre receipt and disbursement of Eel funds in accordance with

31 CFR Sectior205.33.

Views of Responsible Officials See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-010

Reporting (Significant Deficiency)

Transparency Act Reports Not Filed
State Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

CFDA No. 11.419: Research and Development Cluster Coastal Zone ManagementAdministration
Awards

Direct Award from U.S. Department GommercgAward NA11INOS419009andNA12NOS419009y
Criteria ®@ TheFederal Funding Accountability and Transparency A&ATA) requiresprime awardegto
file a FFATA subaward report byhe end of the month following the month in whitlwards any sugrant
greater than or equal to $25,000.

Conditiond The Coastal Zone Managemekdministration Awardgjrantis subject to the FFAX
requirements. During the course of our audit, wedthat theStateDBEDT did notfile FFATA subaward
reportsfor the NA11l & NA12 grants in accordance witte FFATA requirements

Questioned Costd None.

Caused Responsible personnel did not appropriately evaluate itaxsabds for FFATA requirements.

Effectd Failure to fulfill the FFATA reportingrequirementsesuls in non-compliancewith Federal grant
requirements

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DBEDTshould consider improvintipe design and implementatiofreportingcontrols to properly
report subawards for FFATA requirements.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-011

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.11.482 Research and Development Cluster Coral Reef Conservation Program
Direct Award from U.S Department oCommercg Award NA11NOS4820006)

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€<BR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requires the State to minimize the time between the receipt of Federal furttie fredteral
government and the Statebds disbursement of the f ul
and amount of funds being requested and received I
actual cash outlay for direprogram costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The

State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the
date of receipt of cash from the Federal government) unless titeagraement explicitly allows a different

time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examinazheselection ofrederal cash dravend noted that the number

of days elapsed between tleeeipt of thé-ederal cash advanceancth e St at e 6 s thdfurmlb ur s e me
exceeded 3days (B days). As a result, the State may be accountable for interest eartieglasivance when

the State does not minimize the time elapsed betweaerdbiptof the funds from th&ederal government

and the disbursement.

Questiored Cost® The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resourcastarhlcontrols to ensure that
the Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result othe deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we notezheinstance of 8,468where Federal furslveredisbursed after@Bdays from being
received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications peess over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DLNRshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the time lag betwedine receipt and disbursement of Federal fundsccordancevith 31 CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-012

Equipment and Real Property Management (Significant Deficiency)

Unrecorded Property Acquisitions
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.11.482 Research and Development Cluster Coral Reef Conservation Program
Direct Award from U.S. Department adEommercg Award NA11NOS4820006)

Criteria & According tothe OMB CircularA-133 Compliance Supplement, SectlarEquipment and Real

Property ManagemenBuggested Audit Procedure€ o mp | i a n casamplé & equipmerit
transactions and test for compliance wi t Bpoditibne St af
of equipment

According to the St at e 6 sNewlynaeqeired poopeyty sBayl Isetreeardeddrstleer  Ma |
Fixed Asset Inventory SysterRAIS) in the quarter of the fiscal year the agency receives the property or

when the agency asses responsibility for maintaining the properiyhis applies to new purchases, capital

|l ease, and donated or transferred property. o

New property acquisitions should be recorded in the FAIS if the item meets the inweoryng threshold,

is theft semitive, or if the designated property custodian determines it as a controlled item. Upon notification

of receipt, property management personnel wil/ i n:
other characteristics, and tag the item witmague inventory decal number. All property inventory

information is recorded on the Detail Inventory of Property AGS Fbffand is forwarded through the
Department 6s fiscal ctateDAGInBateiPodurcraentiOfigsPO)farfidihee e t o t |
Inventory Management Office for review and subsequent entry into the FAIS.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined one equipment purchase, noting that the purchase was not
reported in the FAIS, and no ForiiA was completed.

Questioned Costd None

Caused There was a lack of monitoring to ensure that the newly acquired property was entered into the
FAIS or that newly acquired property was entered into FAIS timely

Effectd Failure to maintain accurate inventory of equipment could result in unkndferedices of actual
and recorded equipment inventory.

Recommendatio® TheState DLNRshould ensure that responsible individuals have the proper knowledge

of the Statebds policies and procedur SBtate DLNRshoutda n a g e |
consider establishing a monitoring process in order to ensure that newly acquired property is entered into the
FAIS on a timely basis.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-013

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

CFDA No. ARRA 11.558 ARRA & State Broadband Data ad Development Grant Program
Direct Award from the U.epartment of Commerd@dward 1550-M09057)

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€<BR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requires the State to minimize the time batvilee receipt of Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Statebds disbursement of the f ul
and amount of funds being requested and received must be as close as administratively feasible t the 6 s
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the
date of receipt of cash fromehrederal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different

time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined tveelections ofederal cash dravemd identifiedoneinstance

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweernréloeipt d the Federal cash advanceandh e St at e d s
disbursement of thieinds exceeded 3@ays (35 days). As a result, the State may be accountable for interest
earned ortheadvance when the State does not minimize the time elapsed betweetethtof the funds

from theFederal governmemind the disbursement.

Questioned Costd The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resourcastarhlcontrols to ensure that
the Federal fundsvere disbursed on a timely basis

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we notatheout oftwo instances totaling $203,270 where Federal funds were disbused 3
daysafter keing reeived from the Federal government

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DCCAshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the tine lag betweethe receipt and disbursement of Federal fundsccordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-014

Allowable Costs/Cost Principles (Significant Deficiency)

Payroll Certifications Not Completed
State Department of Defense

CFDA No. 12.4QL: National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defense (Awatél12J613-2-1001)

Criteria & According to the OMB Circular 7 At t achment B I tem 8(h): A(3)
expected to work solely on a singtederal award or cost objective, charges for their salaries and wages will

be supported by periodic certifigans that the employees worked solely on that program for the period

covered by the certification. These certifications will be prepared at leasasamally and will be signed by

the employee or supervisory official having fireind knowledge of theavr k per f or med by t he

Conditiond We noted that payroll certifications were not completed for employees who solely worked on a
singleFederal award. During our audit, we selected eight employees who were required to complete a payroll
certification and noted that there were seven employees without payroll certifications.

A similar finding was i ncl udRetertopageV2{Referpnce2@l21l)y ear 0 !

Questioned Costd Cannot be determined

Caused Supervisory persarel were not aware of the requirement to prepare payroll certifications for
employees who solely work on a single Federal award

Effectd Without the completion of the required payroll certifications, there is a possibility that employees
may be working omnauthorized or unallowable activities while being paid from a specific grant program
funding.

Recommendatio® TheState DODshouldconsider improving the design and implementation of internal
controls over payroll certifications, to ensure that semiahpayroll certifications are prepared for

employees who solely work on a single Fedaveard, as required by OMB Circular&v.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-016

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Defense

CFDA No. 12.401 National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defense (Awatél12J613-2-1002

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the TreasuRggulations 3ICFR Sectior205.33, for cash management
compliance, requirethe State to minimize the time between teeeiptof Federal funds from the Federal
government and tefmefth&funasfear BeseratlprogranupurposHserefore, the timing

and amount of fundlseing requested and receivedst be as close as administratively feasibthé®s t at e 6 s
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate shaseadloavable indirect costs.

The State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from tht
date of receipt of cash from the Federal governmédnijther, in accordance withationalGuard

Regulationss-1, Chapter 115: Advance Payent Methodthe granteés requiredto minimize the time

elapsing between the transfer of funds fromRbderal governmerndits disbursement tao more than @

days.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 4@lections ofederal cash drawand identifiedone instance

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweenréoeipt of thd=ederakcashadvanceantl he St at e d s
disbursement of the fundgas104days and was not covered by an Unliquidated Obligations Méks@

result, he State may be accountable for interest earned on advances when the State does not minimize the
time elapsed between the receipt of the funds from the Federal government and the disbursement.

A similar finding was i nc tepod.RetertopageV3{Referpnce2@l212)y ear 0 !
Questioned Costd The amount of potential interesirmnot be determined

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resources and controls to ensuge that
Federafunds were disbursezh a timely basis

Effectd As a result of the deficiency on internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, there was ooet of 40instance for $1,281whereFederal fundsvere disbursed04 daysafter
being received from the Fedégovernment.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DODshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the time lag betwedne receipt and disbursement Bederal fundin accordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-017

Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking (Significant Deficiency)

Incorrect Matching Percentage
State Department of Defense

CFDA No.12.4Q: National Guard Military Operations and Mainten ance Projects
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defe@gvard W912J613-2-1001)

Criteria® TheNational Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Project grant has a matching
requirement whereby the National Guard Bureau (NS&#)e of employee, repair, supply, equipment, utility,
and other costs directly and exclusively associated avittility is 5 percent NGB participation in costs

that are generated for facilities that are authorized at several different support levels will be at a rate that
reflects the actual level of effort but not to exceBg@rcentof such costs (NG Pamphlié20-10, Chapter2).

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 32lections ofournalvouchers andouchemayablesand
identifiedtwo instances in which the project numbers were incarrbtaddition, the errors were not detected
during the review mrcess.As a result, these incorrecitypdedprojects should have been 75% federally
fundedrather tharl00%federally funded.

Questioned Costd $1,143

Caused The individuals did notorrectlyprepare andeview the reports prior to submitting to theSU
Property and Fiscal Office

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with the matching requirements,
we notedwo out of 32 instances where the project numbereincorrectlycodedwhichresulted in thétate
DOD receiving additional funds of $1,143.

Recommendatio® The communications and review process over the caroelihgof project numbers

should be improved. Thetate DODshould consider improving the design and implementation of matching
internal controls t@nsure project numbers are accurately coded.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-018

Reporting (Significant Deficiency)

Lack of Evidence of Review of ARRA Reports
State Department of Defense

CFDA No. ARRA 12.401 ARRA i National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defense (Aw&®12J609-2-9030

Criteria & According to ARRArequirementsii Thi s award requires the reci|
activities which are funded under the American Re:
and to report on use of Recovery Act funds provided through this award information fromethase will

be made avail aThéStateDQD isteluired poyredare and submit these ARRA reports

guarterly, and has designed and implemented internal cantréduresvhereby the Program Managsr

required tareview the ARRA reports ppared bythe Fiscaldepartment

Conditiond During our audit, we examined two quarterly ARRA reports raoteédthat there was no
evidence thathe two reports were reviewed by responsible individuals prior to submission to the Recovery
Act website.

Questbned Cost® None

Caused The ndividuals responsible for reviewing tA&RRA reports did notlemonstratevidence othe
review performed.

Effectd Without proper evidence of the review performed by responsible individuals, we are unable to
verify the impgementation and assess the propriety ofShea t e inbe@& éostrol. Further, the lack of a
proper review by responsible individuals can leathé@curate expenditures being reported.
Recommendatio® The State DODshould consider improving the designd implementation of internal
controls over ARRA reports, in order to maintain proper evidence of the review performed by responsible
individuals.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-019

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Defense

CFDA No. 12.404 National Guard ChalleNGe Program
Direct Awardfrom the U.S. Department of Defense (Award W9121&-4002 and W9123&1-2-400K)

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the TreasuRggulations 3ICFR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requirethe State to minimize the time between teeeiptof Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Stateds di sbur s eTheeefote, thefimnghe f ul
and amount of fundlseing requested and receivedst be as close as administratively feasibthé®s t at e 6 s
actual cah outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs.

The State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from tht
date of receipt of cash from the Federal govemtjind-urther, in accordance with National Guard

Regulations 8L, Chapter 115: Advance Payent Methodthe granteés requiredto minimize the time

elapsing between the transfer of funds fromRbderal governmerndits disbursement tao more than 8@

days.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 6@lections ofFederal cash dravend identifiedfour instances

in whichthe number of days elapsed between the Fedashhdvancesand he St at ebés di sbur ¢
fundsranged betweeB5 and129days As a result, the State may be accountable for interest earned on

advances when the State does not minimize the time elapsed between the receipt of the funds from the Federa
government and the disbursement.

A similar finding was included inthe prioryea® s s i n g | ®efeato pagé74 (Reteremnce201214).
Questioned Costd8 The amount of potential interestirmot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resources and controls to ensuge that
Federalfunds were disbursed on a timely basis

Effectd As a result of the deficiency on internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirementsthere werdour out of 60instancegotaling$57,112whereFederal fundsvere disbursed
between 65 and 128sys from being received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DODshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the time lag betweehe receipt and disbursement of Federal fundsccordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-020

Eligibility (Significant Deficiency)

Lack of Evidence of Eligibility Verification
State Department of Defense

CFDA No.12.404 National Guard ChalleNGe Program
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defef@gvard W912J612-2-400K, W9126-12-2-4002,and
F7CH002319M001)

Criteria 0 The Master Youth Program Cooperative Agreement (MYPCA) contains eligibility participant
requirementsTwo of the requirements of the MYPCA drthatthe participant must be a high school
dropout an) not curently on parole or probation for other than juvenile status offenses, not awaiting
sentencing, and not under indictment, charged, or convicted of a crime that is considered a felony when
charged as an adult.

Conditiond During the course of our audit, vgelected 40 participants to test the eligibility requirement

under theMYPCA. For one participanthere was no availabkvidenceo verify that theparticipantwas a

high school dropoufor five participants therewereno evidencea verify thatthe participants werenot

currently on parole or probation for other than juvenile status offenses, not awaiting sentencing, and not under
indictment, charged, or convicted of a crime that is considered a felony when charged as an adult.

A similar finding was icluded in the prior ye& single audit reporRefer to page74 (Reference201215).
Questioned Costd Cannot be determined.

Caused Program management experientachoverin personnel, and eligibility documents were not
obtained.

Effectd As a resulof the deficiency, there wamd supporing evidenceo verify eligibility of the
participants

Recommendatio® The application review process and eligibility requirements should be communicated
timely to everyprogramemployee and neprogramemployees In addition, evidence of eligibility
verification $1ould be properly obtained and maintained.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-021

Period of Availability (Significant Deficiency)

Expenditure Incurred Prior to Funding Period
State Department of Defense

CFDA No. 12.404 National Guard ChalleNGe Program
Direct Award from the U.S. Department of Defef@gvard F7CH002319M001)

Criteria & According to OMB CirculaNo. A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circulbio. A-110 (2CFR
Section215.71),Federal awards may specify a time period during which the nonfederal entity may use the
Federal funds. Where a funding period is specified, a nonfederal entityhamyedo the award only costs
resulting from obligations incurred during the funding period and argweed costs authorized by the
Federal awarding agency.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 25 selections and notedransaction thatvas notincurred
within the period that the funds wemathorized The grantfunding documenindicated that the 201f8inding
year wador the periodOctoberl, 2012 througtSeptembeB0, 2013 We identifiedan expendituréghatwas
incurred in July 2012or $1,010thatwas paidrom the 2013 funthg award Such expenditurghould have
been paid from the 2012 funding awasdthe expenditure was incurred during the2fthding periodand
not the2013 fundhg period

Questioned Costd $1,010

Caused There was a cmge in personnel within the fiscalfice, whichcaused a lack of proper training and
guidance related to the program.

Effectd The 2013grant expenditureimcluded$1,010 in expenditurgbat should have been pdidm the
2012funding amount

Recommendabn & TheState DODshould improve the design and implementattbéimternal controlgo
communicate the period of availability of funds in order to ensure compheitittgrantperiod of availability
requirements

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-022

Cash Management (Material Weakness)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

CFDA No.12.800 Research and Development Cluster Air Force Defense Research Sciences
Program
Direct Award from U.S. Department of Defens&ward FA8650-11-2-5605)

Criteria d U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€€BR Sectior205.33, for cash management
compliance, requires the State to minimize the time between the receipt of Federal funds from the Federal

government and the Statebés disbursement of the ful
andanmunt of funds being requested and received must

actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days to be a redde period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the

date of receipt of cash from the Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different
time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 2@lections ofederal ash drawsnd identified 16nstances

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweernréoeipt of thd=ederal cash advances andh e St at ed s
disbursement of thieinds exceeded 3fays (range of 37 to 31kys). Asthe StateDBEDT held the Federal
funds beyad an administratively feasible period, ®&teDBEDT remitted estimated interest to the Federal
government.

A similar finding was included in the prior yéassirgle audit report. Refer to pag€4 (Reference201216).
Questioned Costd The amount opotential interestannot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resources and controls to enthee that
Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal control&ocompliance with cash management
requirements, we noted 16 out ofiB6tances totaling $1,629,264 where Federal funds were disbursed after
30 days from being received from the Federal government. Alth@sgjmatednterest earnedas remitted

to the Federalgovernmentthe StatéOBEDT is still responsible for minimizing the time elapsing between the
receipt and disbursement of Federal funds

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DBEDTshould consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal
controls to minimize the time lag betwettre receipt and disbursement of Federal fundscordance with

31 CFR Sectior205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corredte Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-023

Equipment and Real Property Management (Significant Deficiency)

Untimely Recording of Property Acquisitions
State Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

CFDA No.12.800 Research and Development Cluster Air Force Defense Research Sciences
Program
Direct Award from U.S. Department of Defens&ward FA8650-11-2-5605)

Criteria & According tothe OMB CircularA-133 Compliance Supplemg SectionF. Equipment and Real
Property Managemenfuggested Audit Procedure€ o mp | i aeleat a&sampfe 8f equipment
transactions and test for compliance with the &aielicies and procedures for management and disposition
of equipment

Accordng to the Stats Inventory System User ManuélNewly acquired property shall be recorded in the
FAIS in the quarter of the fiscal year the agency receives the property or when the agency assumes
responsibility for maintaining the propertirhis applieso new purchases, capital lease, and donated or
transferred property. o

New property acquisitions should be recorded in the FAIS if the item meets the inweporyng threshold,
is theft sensitive, or if the designated property custodian determiaea itontrolled item. Upon notification
of receipt, property management personnel will inspect the item, record ti@e ieysical condition and
other characteristics, and tag the item with a unique inventory decal number. All property inventory
information is recorded on the Detail Inventory of Property AGS Fbr and is forwarded through the
Departmerts fiscal or administrative office to ttf&tateDAGS, SPQ andthe Inventory Management Office
for review and subsequent entry into the FAIS.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined three equipment purchases, noting that all three purchases were
not reported in the FAIS in the quarter they were received. We noted that the equipment was purchased in the
first and thirdquartershowever they were notecorded until the last quarter of the fiscal year.

A similar finding was included in the prior yéassirgle audit report. Refer to pag€5 (Reference201217).
Questioned Costd None.

Caused The untimely recordingvas due to the reassignment of treffatnembers responsible for the filing
of theForm17A, which resulted in &ack of internal communication, monitoring, and understanding of the
requirements

Effectd Failure to maintain accurate inventory of equipment could result in unknown differaxesal
and recorded equipment inventory.

Recommendatio® TheState DBEDTshould ensure that responsible individuals have the proper
knowledge of the Stafe policies and procedures for management and disposition of equipmeBtaidne
DBEDT should cosider establishing a monitoring process in order to ensure that newly acquired property is
entered into the FAIS on a timely basis.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-024

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism

CFDA No0.12.910 Research and Development Clust i Research and Technology Development
Direct Award from U.S. Department of Defense (Award HRO@IA2-0005)

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€<BR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requires the State to minimizetthne between the receipt of Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Statebds disbursement of the f ul
and amount of funds being requested and received must be as close as administratidelgfeasiln t he St
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the
date of receipt of cdn from the Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different

time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examinesvenselections ofederal cash dravesd identifiedfour
instancesn whichthe number of days elapsed betwésreceipt of thé-ederal cash advances ahd

St ateds di s lunds execatdedhdaysdringetoh38 to 5afays). Asthe StateDBEDT held the
Federal funds beyond an administratively feasible periodstiteDBEDT remitted estimated inteseto the
Federal government.

A similar finding was included in the prior yéassirgle audit report. Refer tpage276 (Reference201220).
Questioned Costd The amount of potential interesirinot be determined.

Caused The lag in disbursing the funeigs due to the lack of resources and controls to ensuria¢hat
Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we notddur out of seveninstances totaling $399,079 where Federal funds were disbursed
after P days from being received from the Federal government. Alth@sgimatednterest earnedias
remitted to the Federgbvernmentthe StatdBEDT is still responsible for minimizing the timedapsing
between theeceiptof funds from thd-ederal governmemind the disbursement.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
DBEDT should consider improving the design and implementation ofroasiagement internal controls to
minimize the time lag betweehe receipt and disbursement of Federal fundscordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Corrective Action Plan.
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SECTION Il 8 FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)

REFERENCE: 2013-025

Cash Management (Significant Deficiency)

Timing Not Minimized Between the Receipt and Disbursement of Federal Funds
State Department of Land and Natural Resources

CFDA No.15.605 Research and Development Ckteri Sport Fish Restoration Program
Direct Award from U.S.Department of InteriofAward F12AF0030)

Criteria ® U.S. Department of the Treasury Regulation€<BR Sectior205.33, for cash management

compliance, requires the State to minimize the tintevden the receipt of Federal funds from the Federal
government and the Statebds disbursement of the f ul
and amount of funds being requested and received must be as close as administratively fdagble$tt at e 6 s
actual cash outlay for direct program costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The
State has determined 30 days to be a reasonable period to disburse cash for direct program costs (from the
date of receipt of cash frothe Federal government) unless the grant agreement explicitly allows a different

time period.

Conditiond During our audit, we examined 38lections of-ederal cash dravesd identifiedoneinstance

in whichthe number of days elapsed betweernréoeiptof theFederal cash advanceancdh e St at e d s
disbursement of the fundéxceeded 3@ays 63 days). As a result, the State may be accountable for interest
earned ontheadvance when the State does not minimize the time elapsed betweerethtof the furds

from theFederal governmemind the disbursement.

A similar finding was i ncl udRetertopagV/i{Referpnca20l223)y ear 6
Questioned Costd The amount of potential interest due cannot be determined.

Caused The kg in disbursing the funds was due to the lack of resources and controls to enghee that
Federal funds were disbursed on a timely basis.

Effectd As a result of the deficiency in internal controls over compliance with cash management
requirements, we rted oneout of 25instances totaling@®,923where Federal funds were disbursed after
30 days from being received from the Federal government.

Recommendatio® The communications process over Federal grant compliance should be improved. The
State DLNRshoud consider improving the design and implementation of cash management internal controls
to minimize the time lag betwede receipt and disbursement of Federal fundsccordance with 3CFR
Section205.33.

Views of Responsible Officiald See Correctig Action Plan.
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